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ANNUAL MEETING

The Annual Meeting
of Sharerolders of
Grand Banks Energy

Corporation will be held on
Tuesday, June 5, 2007
at 10:30 a.m. [Calgary timel

in the Cardium Room of the
Calgary Petreleum Club
located at 319 Fifth Avenue
S.W., Calgary, Atberta.

All sharehclders are
cordially invited and
encouraged to attend.
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HIGHLIGHTS

p——

ll Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 Change 004 0 1
1 [DD0s, except per share amounts %l ($) {%) (%)
Financial Results
‘ Gross revenues 17,504 17.377 1 2,590
‘ Net (loss) before income taxes 1679 (2.160] 69 {1.260)
v Net income {loss) 627 930 (33) 999
‘ Per share - basic 0.02 0.03 (33] 0.05
Per share - diluted 0.02 0.03 {331 .05
Funds flow from operations ' 9,706 9,066 7 652
| Per share - basic 0.32 0.3 (6) 0.03
i Per share - diluted 0.31 0.32 (3) 0.03
W Additions to property and equipment,
net of proceeds 25,956 22,255 17 13,10t
Total assets 52,251 42,336 23 24,647
| Working capital 110,562) 1777 (694) 3.802
| Asset retirement obligation 961 894 7 341
" Flow-through share obligations 3,855 6,740 (43] 5,000
' [000s] [#] (#) (%] [#
Share Data
| Weighted average shares outstanding
~ Basic 30,173 26,821 12 18,801
. Diluted 30,979 28,489 9 19.075
| Equity outstanding
Common shares 31,915 29.750 7 23,272
Stock options 2,854 2,310 24 1,730
‘ Warrants - - - 2,344
‘~ Sales Volumes
Crude oil and liquids (bbls/d) 892 258 129 68
! Natural gas [mct/d) 1,554 3.834 {591 457
Royalty income (boe/d) 1 2 (501 8
} Average boe/d (¢:1) 852 898 (] 152
! (5) 1$) (%) ($)
1 Product Prices
; Crude oil and liguids [$/bbll 63.07 55.63 H £7.17
Natural gas [$/mcf) 6.70 8.50 (21) 6.70
| [$/boel |$/boe; (%) {$/boe}
‘ Netback Analysis
| Oiland gas revenue (&1 56.11 52.61 7 43.31
Royalty expense 10.71 14.35 (25 7.83
Operating costs 8.89 6.18 44 8.94
' Netback 36.51 32.08 14 26.54

[1] Funds flow from operations is a non-GAAP measure that represents net income plus depletion, depreciation and amortization,
stock-based compensation, future taxes and other non-cash expenses. See further discussion under Non-BAAP Measures In the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis.
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OUR DRILLING SUCCESS IN 2006 WAS HIGHLIGHTED BY
LETTER TO A MAJOR LEDUC REEF GAS DISCOVERY AT TOWER CREEK
SHAREHOLDERS (HARLEY) THAT, ALONG WITH MEASURABLE PROGRESS IN OUR
LIGHT OIL FOCUS AREA, HAS PROVIDED AN EXCELLENT BASE

FROM WHICH TO ACCELERATE OUR GROWTH.
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2006 was another year of growth and measurable progress
for Grand Banks Energy Cerporation. We continued to build
a solid foundatien of reserves and production with the
dritl bit, which was highlighted by the successful drilling
of a 4.900-metre exploration well at Tower Creek (Harley]
located in west central Alberta. As operator, we drilled
and cemzleted the significant Leduc sour gas discovery at
2-21-55-27 WHM [16.67% working interest], which, along
with drilling success in our light oil focus area, has given us
our best year ever in terms of reserves and value per share
increases and has positioned us for strong production
growth going forward.

Operational Highlights

m During 2004, we drilied 28 gross {15.6 net]
wells for an average $0% success rate. Average production
was 852 bee/d, which was slightly below the 898 boe/d we
posted a year ago. Having said that, we ended 2006 in a
much stronger position as we essentially doubled our
proved reserves while replacing our production 4.2 times.
The reserve life index of the Corporation as at December
37, 2006, on a boe basis, was 6.9 years proved and
12.2 years proved plus prebable compared to 4.2 years and
6.4 years, respectively, at the end of 2005. This increase in
reserves came almost entirely from the drill bit and was
achieved at a finding, development and acquisition cost of
$25.64/boe proved or $15.58/boe proved plus probable.
Moreover, almost all of our reserves consist of relatively
high priced light oil and natural gas, resulting in an
operating netback of $36.51/boe and a positive recycle ratio
lincluding future development costs] of 1.42 proved or 2.35
proved plus probatle.
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Significant increases in our production levels will begin to
reflect these reserves additions once we tie-in our Tower
Creek gas discovery. During the second guarter of 2007,
this well is expected to come on-stream at gross rates of
about 20 mmcf/d, and as a result, corporate production is
anticipated to increase ta approximately 1,100 boe/d. Grand
Banks, as operator, plans to spud a secend explaration
well at Tower Creek by July 2007, and if successful, expects
to have the new well tested, tied-in and on-stream by the
beginning of 2008.

We have also targeted a number of drilling lacations fer
nigh value light oil in our Williston Basin focus area. During
2007, we intend to drill approximately 10 gross (9.5 net]
ol wells in this area. At Sinclair, we have identified three
promising “sweet spots” on our land base. The information
and knowledge that we have gained from two years of
exploration, as well as our refinements in the drilling
and completion of oil wells on this play, have resulted in
dramatic produclivily increases. Consequently, we intend
lo allocate a substantial part of our 2007 budget developing
these areas. We also have plans to drill at least one well in
our Kingsford prospect area.

We recently put our Stoughten/Viewfield property, located
in southeastern Saskatchewan, up for sale, This property,
which was developed in 2006 by drilling four oil wells on the
large-scale farm-in area, currently produces approximately
40 bbls/d net to Grand Banks and most of the lands
associated with the sale lie within the heart of the emerging
Bakken light oil resource play. This resource play is being
developed by several larger companies in the area.
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~—— Edward C. McFeely, President & Chief Executive Dfficer

Financial Highlights

®m Gross revenues fotaled
$17.5 million in 2004, a modest increase over
2005. Year-over-year net income fell to $0.6
million or $0.02 per share due primarily to
lower future income tax recoveries. Funds
flow from operations improved slightly
to $9.7 million or $0.31 per share as a
result of & 14% increase in our netback to
$34.51/boe, which was high by industry
standards and a reflection of the gquality of
our light oil and the effect of royalty holidays.
During 2006, the Corporation raised
$4.2 million before commissions by way of
a flow-through share financing at a price of
$2.10 per share. These proceeds, together
with cash flow and debt, were used to fung
our 2006 drilling program. Since Novernber
2003, we have raised approximately $32.2
millien in equity, of which over B0% has come
by way of flow-through shares. Grand Banks
is an ideal vehicle for this type of financing
because we possess over $52.0 million in
tax pools and can, therefore, replace pools
that have been renounced to our investors.

" We expect both revenue and funds from

operations to increase substantially in 2007
as we tie-in our Tower Creek gas discovery
and further develop our light oil properties.
Our capital budget for 2007 is expected to
be funded primarily from cash flow and the
proceeds of our minor property divestiture.

Growth Strategy

m We witl continue to grow
our Corporation through lower risk
development and exploitation drilling that
is supplemented by a prudent mix of high
impact exploration. We use cash flow
from our successful discoveries to acquire
additional lands, escalate development and
fund our drilling programs. In order to help
mitigate the effects of commedity price
swings, we will continue to develop both light
oil and natural gas preduction. We expect
the ratio of our production of cil and gas
to be approximately 50/50 once our Tower
Creek well commences production. We will
continue to pursue and evaluate acquisition
opportunities that are complementary to
our operations and that provide sufficient
upside potentiat for meaningful per share
value gains,




Outlook

@ Grand Banks has all the components
in place for Goth rapid growth in the short-term and
sustained growth for the lang-term, and given the current
economic and industry climate, we see excellent potential
for opportunities to further accelerate this growth. The
current capital constrained environment is resulting in
an increase in the supply of good quality acquisition and
farm-in opportunities as other companies look for partners
to drill wells on their lands, and the terms of these deals
are also improving. In addition, we are seeing signs that
the inflated service costs that were associated with the
unusually high activity levels during the past two years are
beginning to maderate, and as a result, the potential now
exists to increase our capital efficiency {we can get more
barrels flowing for less money]. Commodity prices are still
very good by historical standards, thereby providing for
improved revenues with production growth,

Our substantial productien base, cur inventory of land
and drilling opportunities, our record of prudent financial
management, our ability to effectively drill and operate
both deep sour gas wells and horizantal oil wells, and our
energized and experienced team of oiland gas professionals
give us the critical components that investors typically
seek. The irany of the current industry climate is that while
capital is more difficult to access, the business conditions
are shaping up to be the best that we have seen in many
years. We intend to undertake a number of imtiatives to
help position Grand Banks to access capital on terms that
are attractive to our shareholders, including expanding
the scope of our promotional activities in order to spread
the Grand Banks story to new, prospective investors and
financial institutions.
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2006 was unguestionably the best yearin our Corporation’s
history, and as a result, we are excited about our future. The
sustained and diligent efforts of our dedicated and capable
staff and Board of Directors are bearing fruit, We have
qualified our Corporation &s a prudently managed energy
business that is able to create profitable growth with the
drill bit. Our goal s to grow our production to the 4,000 to
5,000 bbls/d range within the next three to four years and,
as always, to continue to increase the value of each share of
Grand Banks Energy Corporation. We thank every investar
for their interest and confidence in Grand Banks and we
lock forward to reporting the results of our efforts as we
continue in our mission to accemplish our geals.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Edward C. McFeely
President & Chief Executive Officer
April 16, 2007
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OPERATIONS
REVIEW

DURING 2006, GRAND BANKS ACHIEVED RECORD RESERVES
ADDITIONS THAT GREATLY INCREASED OUR RESERVE LIFE.
AS THESE RESERVES ARE TIED-IN AND DEVELOPED OVER THE
COURSE OF THE COMING YEAR, WE EXPECT OUR PRODUCTION
RATE TO INCREASE SUBSTANTIALLY.
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BRITISH ALBERTA SASKATCHEWAN MANITOBA
COLUMBIA
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Wood River

Grand Banks focuses its efforts in two key operating areas: The Peace River Arch/West Central Alberta
area, which is primarily a natural gas exploration region, and the Williston Basin area in southeastern

Saskalchewan/southwestern Manitoba, a rich oil prone region.
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Kingsford, Saskatchewan

The Kingsford property is located in southeastern Saskatchewan in the Williston Basin gealogicat
regicn. The area is characterized by high deliverability cil wells with moderate declines and high
netbacks. Our property produces approximately 250 net bbls/d of 32% APl oil from the Steelman
Midale pocl. Grand Banks currently operates, with & 74% average working interest, é gross (4.8
net] horizontal wells and 1 gross (0.4 net) vertical well. We also operate a central battery and
water disposal facility [73% working interest] where the oil from our wells is gathered and treated
and then shipped via pipeline to sales. During 2004, we upgraded these facilities such that they
now have over 1,000 bbls/d of spare capacity tc handle additional fluid volumes. As well, we
acquired approximately 320 net acres of additicnal lands in the area and have plans to drill at

teast one development well on the property in 2007.
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Sinclair, Manitoba

The Sinclair Three Forks/Torquay Upper Devonian
light oil pool covers over 80 sections of land
in southwestern Manitoba and just across the
border into southeasiern Saskatchewan. Industry
activity continued to be robust on this play during
2006 with over 400 wells licenced and 375 wells
drilled targeting this very high quality 400 API
sweet crude oil.

During 2006. Grand Banks drilled 8 gross 5.9 net]
vertical stepout anc exploratory wells to better
delineate the reservoir quality and production
potential of our tands. This was followed up with
3 gross [3.0 net] development horizontal wells on
our Saskatchewan acreage late in the year that
has provided significant production and reserves
The herizontal wells have shown
substantial gains in initial production rates [up to
100 bbls/d). In addition, horizontal wells produce
at very low water-cuts and receive extremely
royalty incentive holidays. These
factors result in law operating costs and excetlent
field netbacks for this play.

additions.

favourable

During the latter half of 2007, we have planned a
steady drilling program of additional development
horizontal wells along with a number of vertical
delineation wells. Grand Banks operates over
21,000 net acres of land across this region, with
the majority being at 100% working interests.
Currently, Grand Banks has 18 single well oil
batieries (14 vertical, 4 horizontall preducing
approximately 240 net bbls/d.

Exploration Prospects

® The Tower Creek [Harley] area
in west central Alcerta will once again be an
exploration focus for Grand Banks in 2007
Following up on the significant Leduc sour gas
discovery at 2-21-55-27 W5M in 2006, Grand
Banks will operate with a 19.65% interest and
have an after earned working interest of 17.56%
in a 4,400-metre new pool wildcat well at
11-26-55-27 W5M. This well will target a 3-D
seismically defined, very high deliverability,
fractured and over-pressured Wabamun sweet

—
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Harley
(Tower Creek]),
Alberta

Grand Banks ¢t al
Tower Creek
2-21-55-27 WHM Leduc
Discovery

gas reservoir only two miles from the newly
constructed 14-15 gas plant.

During 2006 in the west central deep basin Kakwa
region, we drilled a 50% working interest stepout
to our 2005 Gething discovery targeting other
Cretaceous gas bearing zanes. A new exgloration
discovery was made in the Bluesky zone and gas
was also tested from the existing Gething and
Falher pools. Approvals for downspacing and
commingling applications are needed before this
gas is tied-in and placed on production, which is
anticipated for late 2007.

Completion and tie-in of our Brazeau River
exploration test was completed in the summer of
2006 with a gas and liquids rich discovery made in
the Ellerslie and Upper Mannville zones. This area
is characterized by multi-zone pay with potential
in the Betly River, Upper and Lower Mannvitle and
Nisku formations.

in the Wood River area of south central Alberta,
Grand Banks made one new pool discevery in
the Leduc formation and a second Leduc oil well
was brought on-stream from a re-entry into an
existing suspended Leduc oil producer. The new
pool Leduc discovery encountered approximately
10 metres of oil pay and was tested at rates over
200 bbls/d. Pipeline work is currently underway
to tie into an existing oil battery in the area.
Production of approximately 39 net bbls/d is
expected to commence early in the second quarter

of 2007. Grand Banks has a 35.3% working interest
in this well. The Leduc re-entry well was brought
on production just after year-end with gross oil
production rates of approximately 40 bbls/d. Grand
Banks has a 70% working interest in this welt.

In late 2005, Grand Banks, as operatorand holding
a 50% participatory interest, entered into a large-
area farm-irt with a major cil and gas company
covering over 30,000 acres of land in southeastern
Saskatchewan. The lands lie fully within an
emerging Bakken light oil resource play that is
being developed by several industry competitors
and along traditional Mississippian subcrop
trends. During 2006, Grand Banks drilled 1 gross
(0.5 net] vertical exploration well and 4 gross
(2.0 net) productive horizontal cit wells focusing
on the Bakken formation potential. By year-end
2004, ten sections of land had been earned and
net production was approximately 50 bbls/d with
a significant number of exploitation locations set
up by this activity. In order to maximize the value
frem the Bakken play, however, facilities must be
installed to gatherand processthe oil, solutien gas
and water from this zone. Grand Banks believes
that this value may be better realized by another
company with a more concentrated land position
and existing infrastructure. Accordingly, Grand
Banks is currently in the process of disposing of
all of its interests in this area, including the farm-
in agreement through a public sales process.
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Reserves
& During 2006, Grand Banks achieved exceptional growth in reserves, including:

e Proved plus prabable reserves per 100 shares [fully diluted) increased to 10.9 boe versus 6.1 boe in 2005;

e Grew proved reserves 102% and proved plus probable reserves 94%;

e Estimated net asset value per fully diluted share was $2.35 and $1.84 based on discounted proved plus probable reserve
value before tax at 5% and 10%, resgpectively:

e Finding, development and acquisition costs on a proved plus probable basis with future development capital totaled
$15.54/boe;

@ Proved plus probable reserves replacement was 691%; and

# Proved plus probable reserve life index was 12.2 years based on 2006 exit production.

Summary of Year-Znc Yorking Inierest leserves and Yalues

Proved Total Total Total Proved Plus Probable
Producing Proved Probable 2006 Change 2005
%]
Crude oil imbbls] 1,008.5 1,356.2 996.2 2,352.5 68 1,401.0
Natural gas (mmcil 1,249.7 3,571.8 4,783.8 8,355.4 169 3.1091
Liquids [mbbls) 28.0 321 16.1 48.2 31 36.9
Qil equivalent {mboe} 1,244.8B 1,983.6 1,809.7 3,793.3 94 1.956.0
[000s) I$] (3) (! ($) %] (3l
Before tax present value
discounted at
5% 34,130.4 49,7603 37,325.3 87,085.6 78 48,897.0
10% 29.799.3 42,587.7 26,496.4 69,0841 67 41,2750

The above summary of reserves and values was based on the following price and cost assumptions:

Summary of Pricing and Inflation Rate Assumptions [Forecast Prices end Cosis)

ail Natural Gas

WTI £dmonton Cromer Alberta Inflation Exchange

Year Cushing Ref. Price 29° AP Spot Price Rate Rate
(US$/obl) (CDN$%/bbl ICDN%/bbll [CDN$/mmbtul [%/yearl (USH/CONS)

2007 61.00 68.58 63.78 7.15 2.0 0.87
2008 40.00 67.40 62.69 7.72 2.0 0.87
2009 60.00 67.37 62.66 7.70 2.0 0.87
2010 58.00 65.04 60.49 7.68 20 0.87
2011 56.00 62.71 58.32 7.83 20 0.87

Note: All prices and costs escalated at 2% per year after 2011.
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Working Interest Reserves Reconciliation [Forecast Prices and Costs)

Total

Total Proved Plus

Proved Probable

[mboel [mbee)

Opening balance - December 31, 2005 982.8 1,956.0
Acquisitions/dispositions 16.0 14.3
Extensions/revisions/discoveries 1,295.9 21341
Production (311.1) (311.1)
Closing balance - December 31, 2004 1,983.6 3,793.3
Reserve replacement ratio 4.2 5.9
Reserve life index lysars) 6.4 12.2

[Reserve life index has been based on the 2006 exit production rate of approximately 850 boe/d).

Finding, Development and Acquisition Costs

During 2006, Grand Banks spent approximately $26.0 million an explaration and develapment [including minor acquisition
costs) and estimates its finding, development and acquisition costs to be as follows:

Proved Plus

Proved Probable

lunaudited) [$/boe) ($/boel

Finding, developing and acquisition costs, including future development capital 25.64 15.56

Recycle Ratio

The 2006 operating netback for the Corporation was $36.51/boe.

Proved Plus

Proved Probable

All-in, inctuding future development capital 1.42 2.35




GRAND BAMKS ENERGY CORPORATION | 2006 ANMUAL REPORT | PAGE 13

Net Asset Value Per Fully Diluted Share Information Using Reserve
Value at December 31, 2006 (Forecast Pricing and Costs)

Before Tax

5% 10%
(000s, except per share amounts) ($) ($)
Proved plus probable reserve value, including future capital 87,086 69,084
Undeveloped property, at cost 1,785 1,785
Option proceeds 3,548 3,548
Net debt (10,562) (10,562)
Total net assets 81,857 63,855
Fully dituted shares outstanding (4| 34,769 34,769
Estimated net asset value per fully diluted share 2.35 1.84

Advisory

The oil and natural gas reserves data set forth above is based on a consolidation of evaluations performed by Paddock Lindstrom &
Associates Ltd. |"Paddock Lindstrom”), excluding the Stoughton/Viewfield properties, and McDaniel & Associates Consullants Ltd.
["McDaniel "], for the Stoughton/Viewfield properties only, each being a qualified, independent reserves evaluator firm engaged by the
Board of Directors 1o collectively evaluate the Corporation’s oil and natural gas reserves. The above information, with an effective date
of December 31, 2006, comes from the Paddock Lindstrom report dated February 22, 2007 and the MeDaniel repert dated January 18,
2007. These estimates were calculated using forecast prices and costs.

Finding, Development and Acquisition Costs

Finding, development and acquisition costs are the aggregate of the exploration, development and acquisilicn costs incurred in the most
recent financial year and any change during that year in estimated future development costs. This number generally will not reflect total
finding, development and acquisition cosis related to reserves additions for that year.

Forecast Prices and Costs

Forecast prices and costs means future prices and costs used by Paddock Lindstrom and McDaniel in the reserves report that are
generally accepted as being a reasonable outlook of the future, or fixed or currently determinatle future prices or costs to which the
Corporation is bound.

Reserves Replacement

Reserves replacement is calculated by dividing the changes in proved plus probable volumes from December 31, 2005 to December 31,
2004, prior te deducting the 2004 production, by 2006 preduction.

Working Interest

Working interest reserves eguate to those reserves that are referred to as “gross” reserves by the Canadian Securities Association
National Instrument NI 51-101 Standards of Disclosure for Oil and Gas Activities, which are the Corporation’s werking interest [operating
or non-cperating] share before deduction of royalties and without including any royalty interests of the Corporation.
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Present Value

Present value of future net revenue attributakble to Grand Banks' reserves is stated without provision for interest costs and general
and administrative costs, but after providing for estimated royalties, preduction costs, develepment costs, other income, future capital
expenditures and well abandonment costs for only those wells assigned reserves. [t should nct be assumed that the undiscounted or
discounted net present value of future net revenue attributable to the Corporation’s reserves estimated in the reserves report represent
the fair market value of those reserves. The estimates of reserves and future net revenue for individual properties may not reflect the
same confidence level as estimates of reserves and future net revenue for atl properties, due to effects of aggregation. The recovery and
reserves estimates of the Cerporation’s oil, natural gas and liquids reserves provided herein are estimates only and there is no guarantee
that the estimated reserves will be recovered. Actual reserves may be greater than or less than the estimates provided herein.

Land Holdings

m During 2006, Grand Banks participated in Crown land sales and earned lands through exploratory drilling,
which brought the Corpaoration’s total land holdings at December 31, 2006 to 94,455 gross (39,349 netl acres compared to
89,007 gross (35,058 net] acres a year ago.

2004 2005
Average Average
Gross Net Interest Gross MNet Interest
|acres) lacres) (%) lacres) lacres] [%)
Developed lands 27,524 8,547 3 25,761 7.792 30
Undeveloped lands 66,931 30,802 46 63,246 27,264 43

Total lands 94,455 39,349 42 89,007 35,058 39
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Drilling Activity

m Grand Banks participated in the drilling of 28 gross [15.6 netl wells in 2006 versus 36 gross (21.3 net]
wells in 2005. Of this 2006 total, 7 gross (3.6 net) wells were exploratary and 21 gross [12.0 net} wells were development.
The Corporation’s success rate was 58% for exploration wells and 100% for development wells, representing an overall
success rate of 0% in 2004.

Exploration Development Total
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net
[#) (#] (#) 1#1 (# (4]
2006
Crude oil and liquids 2 1.3 20 11.9 22 13.2
Natural gas 3 0.8 1 0.1 4 0.9
Dry and abandoned 2 1.5 - - 2 1.5
Total wells 7 3.6 21 12.0 28 15.6
Success rate I%) A 58 100 100 23 90
2005
Crude oil and liguids 2 1.2 16 121 18 13.3
Natural gas 2 0.7 3 0.8 5 1.5
Dry and abandoned 12 5.7 1 0.8 13 6.5
Total wells 16 7.6 20 13.7 36 21.3
Success rate (%) 25 25 95 04 b4 69
]
Production

m During 2006, Grand Banks' production averaged 852 boe/d compared to 898 boe/d in 2005. The 5% decline
in average production was due to a 2,278 mcf/d decrease in natural gas volumes, primarily from a high decline gas well
dritled in 2004 in the Virginia Hills area. This was largely offset by a 334 bbls/d increase in crude oil and liquids volumes
from southeastern Saskatchewan and Maniteba.
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MANAGEMENT'S
DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

STRONG YEAR-OVER-YEAR RESULTS AND DISCIPLINED COST
MANAGEMENT PROVIDES GRAND BANKS THE ABILITY TOINVEST
IN GROWTH AND SEIZE OPPORTUNITIES TO BUILD VALUE.
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This Management's Discussion and Analysis ["MD&A’] should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements of Grand
Banks Energy Corporation and accompanying notes for the year ended December 31, 2006. In this MD&A, production and reserves
information are commonly reported in units of barrels of oil equivalent |"boe”]. For purposes of cemputing such units, natural gas is
converted to equivalent barrels of oil using a conversion factor of six thousand cubic feet to one barrel of oil. This conversion ratio of 6:1
is based on an energy equivalent wellhead value for the individuat products. Such disclosures of boes may be misleading, particularly if
used in isolation, Readers should be aware that histarical results are not necessarily indicative of future performance.

This MD&A and the annual financial statemenis and accompanying notes have been prepared by management and approved by the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors of Grand Banks and include information to April 16, 2007.

The quarterly financial statements have not been reviewed or audited on behalf of the shareholders by the Corporation’s independent
external auditors,

All financial measures presented in this Annual Report are expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated.

Highlights

mGrand Banks Energy Corporation ("Grand Banks” or the "Carporation”] recorded average sales of natural
gas, crude oil and liguids during the year ended December 31, 2006 of 852 boe/d versus 898 boe/d produced a year
prior. However, during 2006 Grand Banks dramatically increased its reserves, thereby positioning the Corporation for
commensurate increases in its production levels as it ties-in its Tower Creek gas discovery and develaps its light ail
properties.

During 2006, Grand Banks participated in 28 gross [15.6 net] wells, of which 22 gross (13.2 net) were cased oil wells, 4
gross [0.9 net] were cased gas wells and 2 gross (1.5 net) were dry holes, for an average 93% gross (0% net] success rate.
By December 31, 2006. 20 gross [12.2 net] of these oil wells and 2 gross [0.2 net] gas wells had been brought on production.
The remaining 2 gross [1.0 net| oit wells will be brought on-stream in 2007. The remaining 2 grass [0.7 net) gas wells are
awaiting tie-in.

The Corporation will continue with its strategy for growth through the drill bit. The progress that has been made over
the past year, which emphasizes lower risk develeprent drilling, is expected to steadily increase corporale reserves.
As reserves are added in a cost effective manner, depletion will decline and profitability will increase. Grand Banks will
continue to devote a portion of its budget to high impact exploratory projects, financed primarily with the proceeds of flow-
thraugh financings. This strategy is particularly well suited to Grand Banks because the tax pools renounced to investors
in flow-through shares are offset by corporate tax pools in excess cf $52,000.G00.
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Financial and Operational Results

m The following table summarizes the results for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004:

Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 Change 2004
(%]
Sales Yolumes
Crude oil and liquids [bbls/d) 592 258 334 129 68
Natural gas [mcf/d) 1,556 3,834 [2,278] [59] 457
Royalty income [boe/d) 1 2 (1] {501 8
Average boe/d (6:1) 852 898 [46) (5] 152
3] (3l (%] (%) 13!
Product Prices
Crude oil and liquids [$/bbl] 63.07 56.63 b.44 A 47.17
Natural gas ($/mefl 6.70 8.50 (1.80] (21] .70
[000s, except per share amounts) 1$) 1% %) (%) 1$1
Financial Results
Gross revenues 17,504 17,377 127 1 2,590
Loss before income taxes (679) (2,140] 1,481 69 [1,240]
Net income (loss) 627 930 [303] (33) 599
Per share - basic 0.02 0.03 (0.01] (33] 0.05
Per share - diluted 0.02 0.03 (0.01) (33) 0.05
Funds flow from operations 9,706 9,066 640 7 652
Per share - basic 0.32 0.34 (0.02] (6) 0.03
Per share ~ diluted 0.31 032 (0.01) (3] 0.03
Additions to property and equipment,
net of proceeds 25,954 22,255 3,701 17 13,101
Total assets 52,251 42,336 2,215 23 24,667
Warking capital (10,552) 1,777 {12.33%] (694 3,802
Asset retirement obligation 9561 894 67 7 341
Flow-through share obligations 3,855 4,740 (2,885) (43) 5,000
[$/boel [$/boe) [$/boe] (%I ($/boe)
Nethack Analysis
Oil and gas revenue (6:1) 56.11 52.41 3.50 7 43.31
Royalty expense 10.71 14.35 [3.64) (25) 7.83
Cperating costs 8.89 6.18 2. 44 B.94
Netback 36.51 32.08 4.43 14 2654
Sales Volumes
Three Months Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change
(%) (%]
Crude cil and liquids (obls/d} 631 522 21 592 258 129
Natural gas fmci/d] 1,363 2,690 (49) 1,556 3,834 (59} {
Royalty income [boe/d) 2 - - 1 2 (501

Average boe/d [¢:1) 860 970 (11] 852 898 (5]
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The 5% decline in average production was due to a 2,278 mcf/d decrease in natural gas volumes largely ofiset by a 334
bbls/d increase in crude oil and liquids volumes. The reduction in natural gas volumes was primarily due to expected
declines at Virginia Hills in Alberta. Natural gas sales from the Tower Creek 02-21 well drilled in 2006 are expected to
commence in June 2007. The increases in crude oll and liquid volumes were primarily as a result of new wells at Kingsford,
Frys and Stoughton in Sackatchewan and Sinclair in Manitoba. All of the Corporation’s sales volumes consisted of natural
gas and light to medium gravity crude oil, with no heavy cil.

Gross Revenues

Three Months Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change

(000s) ($! (3l %) ($) (%) %]
Crude il and liquids 3,443 2,751 25 13,637 5327 154
Natural gas 863 2871 (70) 3,806 11,895 (¢8)
Royalty income 9 1 8C0 13 29 (55)
Interest and other income - 30 (100) 48 126 (62]
4,315 5,653 (24]) 17,504 17,377 1

The 1% increase in total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006 was due to a 156% increase in crude oil and
liquids revenue offset by a 68% decrease in natural gas revenue. The increase in crude oil and liquids revenue was due to
a 129% rise in crude oil and liquids volumes combined with an 11% increase in prices. Natural gas revenues declined in
2004 due to a 59% decrease in natural gas volumes and a 21% decline in product prices. For the year ended December 31,
2006, interest income totaled $48,000 versus $126,000 in 2005 due to lower average cash balances earning interest. The
Corporation has not hedged any of its production.

Royalty Expenses

Threa Months Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change
(000s) (sl 1% 1%I (%) 1$) %)
Royalty expenses 737 1,547 (52 3,33 4,706 (29]
$/boe 9.31 17.34 [46) 10.7 14.35 {25
Royalty rate (%) 17.1 275 - 19.1 273 -

The lower royalty rates were due to royalty holidays on new wells in Frys and Sinclair combined with lower volumes from
a high royalty well at Virginia Hills.

Production Expenses

Three Months Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change
{ooos| (sl 1$) (%! [$) (3] %)
Production expenses 729 628 16 2,766 2,027 34
$/boe 9.21 7.04 31 8.89 618 44

Production expenses totaled $2,766,000 or $8.89/boe for 2006 compared to $2.027.000 ar $6.18/boe a year ago. The
$739.000 increase was a result of higher unit operating costs. The increase in unit operating costs resulted from lower
production for the Virginia Hills well and an increase in oil production and its higher per unit production costs.
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Depletion, Amortization and Accretion

Three Menths Ended December 31,

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change

{000s] (%) (%) %] i3 (3] (%)

Depletion and amortization 2,125 2,629 [19) 9,493 10,652 (11)

Loss on asset retirement - 22 (100) - 98 {100]
Accretion of asset

retirement obligations 24 18 33 85 &7 27

2,149 2,669 (19] 9,578 10,817 (1)

$/boe 27.15 29.91 (9 30.79 32.99 (6)

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the 11% decrease in depletion, amortization and accretion costs was due to a
5% decline in production volumes and a 6% decrease in the depletion, amortization and accretion rate. For the three
months ended December 31, 2006, these costs declined 19% due to an 11% decrease in volumes and a 9% reduction in the
depletion rate. The lower depletion rate was due to improved finding and developing costs of proved reserves.

Interest
Three Months Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 Change 2004 2005 Change
(000s) i3l 1$ (%) ($) 3] (%I
Interest expenses 40 (6) - 177 50 254
$/boe 0.51 (0.07) - 0.57 0.15 -

The increase in interest costs was due to an increase of $89.000 in interest and line of credit fees combined with a rise
of $38,000 in charges relating to flow-through share funds. The Corporation utilized its line of credit in 2006 as working
capital declined from $1.8 miltion at December 31, 2005 to net debt of $10.6 million at December 31, 2006. The interest en
flow-through shares relates to amounts renounced and not spent until the following year under the “look back” rule.

General and Administrative Costs

Three Months Ended December 31,

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 Change 2004 2005 Change
(000s} (%] (3l (%i %) (%] (%
Gross general and
administrative costs 736 589 25 2,082 1,679 24
Overhead recovered (172) (128 34 (587) [247] 138
Overhead capitalized - 3 (100) - (178} (100}

564 Lb4 22 1,495 1,254 19
$/boe 7.12 5.20 37 4.81 3.82 26

Year-over-year general and administrative costs increased $241,000 or 19% due primarily to expanded operations resulting
in higher salaries and benefits, consulting fees and reduced overhead capitalized partially offset by increased recoveries
from operations. Overhead recoveries increased due to more operated capital projects. The decrease in capitalized
overhead was primarily as a result of higher overhead recovered. The incresse in the cast per boe was attributable to
lower production velumes combined with increased general and administrative costs. The 22% increase in general and
administrative costs in the three-month period was primarily due to increased bonuses.
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Stock-Based Compensation

Three Months Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change
(000s| (%) %) 1%) 1%l (31 %)
Stock-based compensation 137 167 (18] 836 483 22
$/boe 1.73 1.87 (71 2.69 2.08 29

Stock-based compensation costs increased $153,000 or 22% due to a higher number of options issued combined with an
increase in the value assigned to each option. During 2006, the Corporation issued 709,000 stock options compared to
580,000 issued in 2005. The average stock compensation cost assigned to each option was $1.12 in 2006 versus $0.87 in i
2005. Stack-based cempensation costs are amortized over the vesting period, which is two years from the date of grant.

Income Tax

The Corporation recorded a future income tax recovery of $1,306,000 in 2006 compared to $3,090,000 a year ago. Grand
Banks recorded a future income tax recovery in each of the periods relating to flow-through shares issued during
the year.

Net Income

Grand Banks recorded net income of $627,000 or $0.02 per share for 2006 compared to $930,000 or $0.03 per share
in 20065,

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2006, the Corporation had a working capital deficiency of $10,562,000 lincluding bank indebtedness of
$6,328,000] versus positive working capital of $1,777,000 at December 31, 2005. Grand Banks had a $10,500,200 line of
credit available at the bank’s prime rate plus 0.25%, which was fully utitized at December 31, 2006. The Corporation has
a covenant to ensure that its working capital defictency is not in excess of its lines of credit. The financial institution has
agreed the Corporation was not in breach of this financial covenant. Subsequent to year-end, the Corporation received
approval for a $1,200,000 non-revolving reducing term facility that was drawn down in February 2007, The Corporation
has executed a purchase and sale for its Stoughton/Viewfield properties in Saskatchewan, which is scheduled to close
May 3, 2007 The proceeds from this sale, together with cash {low and lines of credit, are expected to meet the Corporation’s
working capital commitments for 2007. The Corporation has an cbligation to commence drilling an exploration well at
Tower Creek 11-26 by July 2007. The Corporation’s estimated share of this well is $3.8 miltion.

During 2006, the Corporation had funds flow from operations of $9.760,000. [See "Non-GAAP Measures.”) The Carporation
has not declared any dividends. The Corporation had a $3,855,000 flow-through spending obligation at December 31, 2006,
which it believes will be met by the December 31, 2007 deadline.

The Corporation expects to use funds flow from operatiens plus the addition of a $1,200,000 term loan facility to meet
its spending plans, which includes the tie-in of the existing Tower Creek well. increased funds flow from the 02-21 Tower
Creek discovery well plus the sale of the Stoughton/Viewfield property is expected to fund the Corporaiion’s capital plans,
including the Tower Creek 11-26 option well, until the end of 2007.

Financing Activities

The Corporation closed a private placement in November 2006 raising $4,200,000 through the issuance of 2,000,000
flow-through common shares. At December 31, 2006, there was $47,500 in share purchase lcans outstanding. During
2006, the Corporation was granted an increase in its revelving line of credit from $5,400,000 to $10.500.000. Subsequent
to December 31, 2004, the Corporatien borrowed $1,200,000 in the form of a fixed term loan to finance the facilities far the
tie-in of the Tower Creek well.
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December 31, 2006 2005 Change
[00Ds) 13] (%) (3 (%)
Land 1,478 1,300 178 14
Geological and geophysical 312 804 (492] (61]
Drilling and completion 20,505 18,320 2,185 12
Equipment and gathering 3,760 2,842 918 32
General and administrative costs capitalized - 178 (1781 (100]
Office equipment 24 11 13 118
26,079 23,455 2,624 N
Less proceeds of disposition 123 1,200 (1,077 1901
Additions to property and equipment,
net of proceeds 25,954 22,255 3,701 17

The increase in capital spending was due to the higher number of horizontal wells drilled in 2006 versus 2005 plus the cost
of the deep exploratory discovery well at Tower Creek 02-21.

Financial Instruments

Grand Banks has not entered into any commodity or financial instrument hedges, however, it does carry various forms of
financial instruments, all of which are recognized in the Corporation’s financial statements. Unless otherwise indicated
in the financial statements, it is management's opinion that the Corporation is not exposed to excessive interest, currency
or credit risks arising from these financial instruments. The fair values of these financial instruments approximate
their carrying values, unless atherwise indicated. The Corporation has no unrecognized gains or losses on its financial

instruments.
Obligations
Payments Due By Period
Less Than 1-3 4-5 After 5
Total 1 Year Years Years Years
(Guos] 1$] 13 %) ($) (%)
Oifice lease 1,429 238 608 o83 -
Flow-through shares 3,855 3.855 - - -
Lease rentals land 482 123 196 123 40
Assel retirerent obligations 3,063 262 148 223 2,430
Total contractual obligations 8,829 4,478 952 929 2,470

At December 31, 2004, the Corporation had farm-in obligations that are not included in the preceding table. The most
significant of these obligations is for the 11-26 Tower Creek option well, which is scheduled to be drilled in the summer
of 2007. Grand Banks is the operator and will pay 19.65% to earn a 17.56% working interest in this well. These farm-in
obligations sre expected to meet some of the flow-through share abligations outlined in the preceding table.

Transactions with Related Parties

All related party transactions are in the normal course of operations and have been measured at the agreed to exchange
amounts, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties and which is similar to
those negotiated with third parties.
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[a] Consulting fees of $328,000 (2005 - $194,000) to companies controlied by officers of the Corporatien for the year ended
December 31, 2006.

(6] The Corporation conducts ail and gas exploration and development activities and related transactions with
organizations managed or controlled by directors. These transactions are negotiated and conducted using standard
industry agreements and terms.

{c) The Corporation incurred legal fees of $55.000 (2005 - $Nil) to a firm in which one of the Corporation’s officers was a
partner.

[d] Included in general and administrative expenses is $53,000 (2005 - $48,000) relating to directors’ fees paid to
independent directors.

le) Included in otherincomeis $2,400 (2005 - $8,000] of interest charged on the share purchase leans, as reflected in Note
8 to the financial statements.

Summary of Quarterly Results
]
Eight-Quarter Comparison

The quarierly results are prepared without audit or review by the Corporation’s independent auditors. The following
table summarizes the Corporation’s financial and eperating highlights for the past eight quarters. Sates volumes are the
average for the periods shown, nel to the Carporation, before the deduction of royalties.

Three Months Ended Mar.31, Jun.30, Sep.30, Dec.31, Mar.31, Jun.30, Sep.30, Dec.31,
2005 2005 2005 2005 2006 2006 2006 2006
Sales Volumes
Crude oil and liquids [bbls/d) 98 180 227 522 643 527 549 431
Natural gas Imet/d) 2,224 5.653 4,755 2,690 1,844 1,561 1,464 1,363
Royalty income boe/d) 4 1 1 - - - - 2
Average boe/d (6:1) 473 1,123 1,021 970 951 787 813 840
(%) (5] (%) ($) %) (%1 (%) 1)
Product Prices
Crude oil and liquids 4/sbl] 52.7% 51.82 60.38 57.34 57.21 67.10 70.17 59.28
Natural gas {$/me) 7.02 7.37 8.74 11.60 7.80 6.02 5.89 5.88
Qil equivalent 13/boel 41.97 45.48 54.23 63.01 53.84 56.86 59.48 54.51
[D0Ds. except per share amounts| (sl (%) 18] (%) (%) 1%l 1% (%]
Financial Results
Gross revenues 1,921 4,685 5,117 5,653 4,632 4,088 4,469 4,315
Net income [loss) (282) 1.018 [1,113) 1,307 (425] 1439) 226 1,245
Per share - basic (0.01] 0.04 (0.04) 0.04 (0.01) (0.01} (0.01) 0.04
Per share - diluted {0.01) 0.04 (0.04] 0.04 (0.01) (0.01} (0.01) 0.04
Funds flow from operations 854 2,681 2,532 2,997 2,803 2,209 2,475 2,219
Additions to property and
equipment, net of proceeds 4,673 2,020 5,291 8,270 7,196 5,426 5,097 7.237
Total assets 30,934 31,492 34,713 42,336 43,511 42,31 44,526 52,251
Working capital 3.805 4,499 3,725 1777 12,576) (6,011) [9,571) [10,562)
Flow-through share
obligation 7.350 6,350 5,350 6,740 3,500 1,800 740 3,855

Assel retirement obligation 817 827 832 894 964 753 837 61
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Sales Volumes

The 137% increase in 2005 second quarter sales volumes over the first quarter of 2005 was primarily due to the full
quarter effect of the Virginia Hills well, During the third quarter of 2005, naturat gas sales volume declines from Virginia
Hills were largely offset by increased crude oil and liquids sates volumes from new wells in Saskatchewan and Maniioba.
During the fourth quarter of 2005, total sales volumes dropped modestly as natural gas volume declines at Virginia Hills
exceeded new oil sales valumes for Kingsford and Sinclair.

Natural gas votumes continued to decline in 2006 as the Corporation concentrated on drilling for oil in southeastern
Saskatchewan and Manitoba. The Tower Creek discovery well drilted in mid-2006 will not be tied-in and preducing until
the second quarter of 2007.

Gross Revenues

The increases in gross sales revenues weare directly related to the sales volumes from the wells previously discussed
combined with product price changes shown on the quarterly table. All of the Caorparation’s natural gas, crude oil and
liquids were sold at spot prices, which are subject to world and North America supply and demand fundamentals.

Net Income [Loss)

In the first quarter of 2005, the Corporation recorded a net loss of $282,000 as increased revenues from higher sales
volumes were more than offset by increased depletion expense and stock-based compensation costs. The increase in
deptetion expense was due to higher sales volumes and an increased depletion rate. The Corporation recorded a net
income of $1,018,000 in the second quarter of 2005 as higher sales volumes and revenues combined with recording a
future tax benefit of $1,947,000 more than offset increased depletion expense. In the third quarter of 2005, the Corporation
recorded a net loss of $1,113,000 as increased revenues fram higher product prices were more than offset by a continuation
of the high depletion costs. During the 2005 fourth quarter, net income improved to $1,307,000 due to recording a future
tax recovery of $1.123,000 relating to the issue of flow-through shares and a lower depletion rate.

The Corporationincurred a modestlossinthe firstand second quarters of 2006. In the third quarter of 2006, the Corporation
recorded net income of $226,000 as the increased proved reserves from the Tower Creek well reduced the depletion rate.
The fourth guarter of 2006 also showed a net income of $1,265,000 as a result of a lower depletion rate combined with a
future tax recovery of $1,306,000.

Additions to Property and Equipment

Grand Banks' capital program ranged between $5.0 million and $8.0 million per quarter, except in the second quarter of
2005 when wet weather delayed drilling projects.

Working Capital
During the first and fourth quarters of 2005, the Corporation raised additional equity capiial for gross proceeds of
$5,850,000 and $3,340,000, respectively.

During 2005, working capital declined from $3,805,000 to $1,777,000 as capital spending exceeded funds from operations
and the proceeds from two flow-through share issues totaling $9,190,000. In 2004, working capital declined from $1,777,000
at December 31, 2005 to a working capital deficit of $10,562,000 as capital spending exceeded funds from operations.
During the fourth guarter of 2004, the Corporation raised gross proceeds of $4,200,000 from a flow-through share issue.
The Corporation also increased its available lines of credit from $10,500,000 at December 31, 2004 by a $1,200,000 fixed
term loan in early 2007.
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Flow-Through Obligations

The remaining flow-through obligation represented the amount of flow-through shares issued in excess of gualifying
capital expendrtures. During 2005, the Corporation issued flow-through shares totaling $9.190,000. At December 31, 2005,
$6.740,000 of these obligations remained.

In 2006, the Corporation issued $4,200,000 of flow-through shares. The remaining flow-through obligations at December
31, 2006 totaled $3,855,000, which Grand Banks expects to spend hefore December 31, 2007 as required.
Asset Retirement Obligations

The asset retirement obligations grew from $817,000 in the first quarter of 2005 to $961,000 in the fourth quarter of
2006 as the Corporation continued to drill wells that are required to be abandoned and reclaimed at some point in the
future. The asset retirement obligation represents the present value of future abandonment and reclamation cost for the
Corparation’s interest in the wells. These amounts do not include the current portion of asset retirement obligations,
which are included in working capital.

[ |
Other Items
| ]

Outstanding Shares, Options and Warrants

The following table is a surnmary of the Corporation’s share capital structure:

As at December 31, April 10,

2006 2007

{000s) |#) [#]

Common shares outstanding 31,915 32,406

Options outstanding 2,854 3,091

Futily diluted 34,749 35,497
Weighted

Average Weighted

Exercise Average

Shares Prige Term

{#000s] 13l [Years]

Options outstanding at Decernber 31, 2005 2,310 1.10 4.6

Options outstanding at December 31, 2006 2,854 1.24 4.1

Options vested at December 31, 2006 2,138 1.15 3.6

Accounting Policy Changes

There were no accounting policy changes in 2006.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Management is required to make judgements, assumptions and estimates in the application of generally accepted
accounting principles that have a significant impact on the financial results of the Corporation.

Reserve estimates have a significant impact on income or loss, as they are a key component in the calcutation of depletion
and depreciation and site restoration costs. A change in the reserve quantity estimates will result in a corresponding
change in depletion, depreciation and site restoration costs. In addition, if capitalized costs are determined to be in excess
of the calculated ceiling, which is based on reserve quantities and values, the excess must be written off as an expense,
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The reserves and estirmated future net cash flow from the assets of Grand Banks have been independently evaluated.

Future site restoration costs are estimated and amortized over the life of reserves. These costs were estimated by
management using industry standard guidelines. A change in estimated future site resteration costs will change the
amortization of site restoration costs included in depletion and depreciation expense.

Mon-GAAP Measures

Funds generated from operations is not a recognized measure under Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
("GAAP"). Management believes that funds flow from operations is a useful measure of financial performance. For the
purposes of funds flow from operations calculations, the following table reconciles the non-GAARP financial measures
“funds flow from operations” to "net income,” the most comparzble measure calculated in accordance with GAAP:

Three Months Ended Years Ended

December 31, December 31,
2006 2005 2006 2005
(000s) (%l 1$) (%) %)
Net income 1,265 1,307 627 230

Adjustments for:

Accretion of asset retirement obligation 24 18 85 67
Depletion and amortization 2,125 2,629 9,493 10.652
Loss on settiement of asset retirement obligation - 22 - 98
Stock-based compensation 137 167 836 683
Future income tax [recaveryl (1,308) (1,123) (1,308) {3,090)
Assets retirement costs (28] (23] (29) (274)
Funds flow from operations 2,219 2.997 9,706 9,066

Netback is the average per unit of volume for cil and gas revenues less royalties and production costs incurred. Netback
is expressed in terms of dollars per boe and is catcutated in accordance with National instrument 51-101 Standards of
Disclasure for Qil and Gas Activities.

Disclosure Controls

As of December 31, 2004, the Corporation’'s management evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its
disclosure conirols and procedures ["Disclosure Controls”], as defined under rules adopted by the Canadian Securities
Administrators. This evaluation was performed under the supervision of, and with the participation of, the Chief Executive
Qfficer and Chief Financial Officer.

Disclosure Controls are procedures designed te ensure that information reguired to te disclosed in documents fited with
securities regulatory autharities is recorded, processed, summarized and reported on a timely basis, and is accumulated
and communicated to the Corporation’'s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to
atlow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

The Corparation’'s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Ofiicer, does not expect that the
Corporation's Disclosure Conirols will prevent or detect all errors and all fraud. Because of the inherent limitations in all
controi systems, an evaluation of controls can provide only reasonable, not absclute, assurance that all controlissues and
instances of fraud or error, if any, within the Corporation have been detected.

Based on the evaluation of Disclosure Controls, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded
that, subject to the inherent limitations noted above, the Corporation’s Disclosure Controls are effective in ensuring that
material information relating to the Corporation is made known to the Corporation’s management on a timely basis by
others and is included as appropriate in this MD&A.
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Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

During the fourth quarter of 2004, the Corporation designed and implemented internal controls over financial reporting.
These internal controls are designed to provide reascnable assurance regarding the reliability of the Corporation’s
financial reporting and preparation of the Corporation’s financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

Due to inherent limitations, the Corporation’'s system o¢f internal control over financial reporting does not guarantee
that a material misstatement in the financial statements or occurrence of fraud would be prevented or detected in a
timely manner. Management considers the size and the nature of the Corporation’s operations, and exercises judgerment
in designing appropriate and cost effective controls for the detection and prevention of material error in the financial
statements or occurrence of fraud with a potential material impact on the reliability of the financial statements.

The Corporation has a lack of segregation of duties over the financial close and reporting functions due to limited staff.
Managemeni has concluded and the Board has agreed that, taking into account the present stage of the Corporation’s
development and the best interest of its sharehclders, the Corparation does not have sufficient size and scale to warrant
the hiring of additional staif to correct this weakness at this time, Subsequent to year-end, the Corporation had a lack of
continuity of the CFO, as the CFO retired. A replacerment CFO was hired, however this candidate was unable to continue
in this position for personal reasons. The Corporation has subsequently appointed Shawn McDonald, B.Comm., LL.B., as
CFO. The Corporation relies primarily on the CFO for financial reporting. The Corporation has implemented compensating
canirols in the form of additional review of the financial close procedure by qualified Audit Committee members. The
Corporation’s officers and Audit Cornmittee review the quarterly financial reports, and annual audits are conducted by
the Corporation’s independent auditors. Tha Corporation seeks third party expertise to review more complex financial
reporting items.

The Corporaticn is continuing with its efforts in formalizing and documenting various elements of its system of internal

conirol over financial reporting in preparation for the evaluation of the operating effectiveness of its internal control
systern within the timelines to be prescribed by the Canadian Securities Administrators.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report contains forward-looking or outlook information with respect to Grand Banks. The use of any of the words “anticipate,”
“continue,” “estimate,” “expect,” "'may.” "will.” "projecl,” "should,” "believe,” "outlook,” and similar expressicns are intended to identify
forward-looking statements. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual
resulls or events to differ materially from those anticipated in the Corporation’s forward-looking statements. Consequently, all of the
forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report are qualified by these cautionary statements and there can be no assurance
that actual results or developments anticipated by the Corporation will be realized, or that they will have the expected consequences or
effects on the Corporation orits business or operations. The Corporation assumes no obligation to update publicly any such forward-
looking statements, whether as a resutt of new information, future events or otherwise.

The Corporation’'s actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of the
risk factors set forth below and elsewhere in this MD&A.

@ Volatility in market prices for oil and natural gas.

@ Risks inherent in the Corpaoration’s operations.

® Geological, technical, drilling and processing preblems.

® Generat economic conditions.

@ Industry conditions, including fluctuation in the price of oil and natural gas.

® Governmental regulations.

@ Fluctuation in foreign exchange and interest rates.

® Unanticipated events that can reduce production or cause production to be shut-in or delayed.

@ Failure to obtain industry partners and other third party consents and approvals, when required.
® The need to obtain reguired approvals from regulatory authorities.

@ The cther factors discussed in the "Operational and Other Business Risks” section of this MD&A.
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Operational and Other Business Risks

“eed to Rer.aze ard Groo Reser.es

The future oil and natural gas preduction of Grand Banks, and therefore future cash flows, are highly dependent upon angoing success
in exploring its current and fuiure undeveloped land base, exploiting the current producing properties and acguiring or discovering
additional reserves. Withgut reserve additions through exploration, acquisition or development activities, reserves and production will
decline over time as reserves are depleted.

The business of discovering, developing oracquiring reservesis capitalintensive, To the extent cash flows from operations areinsufficient
and external sources of capital become limited or unavailable, the ability of Grand Banks to make the necessary capital investments to
maintain and expand is oil and natural gas reserves may be impaired.

There can be no assurance that the Corporation will be able to find and develop or acquire additional reserves io replace and grow
preduction at acceptable costs.,

~
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Oiland natural gas explaration involves a high degree of risk, which even a combination of experience, knowledge and careful evaluation
may not be able to avercame. There is no assurance that expenditures made on future exploration by Grand Banks will result in new
discoveries of oil and natural gas in commercial quantities. It is difficult to project the costs of implementing an exploratory drilling
program due ta the inherent uncertainties of drilling in unknown formations, the costs associated with encountering various drilling
conditions such as over pressured zones, tools lost in the hole and changes in drilling plans and lecations as a result of prior exploratory
wells or additional seismic data and interpretations thereof,

The long-term commercial success of Grand Banks depends on its ability to find, acquire, develop and coemmercially produce oil and
natural gas reserves. No assurance can be given that the Corporation will be able to continue to locate satisfactory properties for
acquisition or participation. Moreover, if such acquisitions or participation are tdenttfied, Grand Banks may determine that current
markets, terms of acquisition and participation or pricing conditions make such acquisitions cr participations uneconomic.

Future oil and gas exploration may involve unprofitable efforts, not only from dry wells, but from wells that are productive but do not
produce sufficient net revenues to return a profit after drilling, operating and other cests. Completion of a well dees not assure a prefit
on the investment or recovery of drilling, completion and operating costs. In addition, drilling hazards or environmental damage coutd
greatly increase the cost of operations, and various field operating conditions may adversely affect the oroduction from successful
wells. These conditions include delays in obtaining governmental approvals or consents, shut-ins of connected wells resulting from
extreme weather conditions, insufficient storage or transportation capacity or other geolegical and mechanical conditions. While
diligent well supervision and effective maintenance operations can contribute to maximizing production rate over time, production
delays and declines from normal field operating conditions cannot be eliminated and can be expecied to adversely affect revenue and
cash flow levels to varying degrees.

In addition, oil and gas operations are subject {o the risks of expleration, development and production of oil and natural gas properties,
including encountering unexpected formations or pressures, premature declines of reservoirs, blowouts, sour gas releases, fires and
spills. Losses resulting from the occurrence of any of these risks could have a materially adverse effect on future results of operations,
liquidity and financial condition,

Reserve Evt ~ates

The production forecast and recoverable estimates contained in the Corperation’s engineering report are only estimates, and the actual
production and ultimate receverable reserves from the properties may be greater or less than the independent estimates of Paddock
Lindstrom & Assaciates Ltd. ["Paddock Lindstrom”} and McDaniel & Associates Consultants Ltd. ["McDaniel"].

There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of reserves and cash {lows to be derived therefrom, including many
factors that are beyond the control of Grand Banks. The reserve and cash flow information set forth herein represent estimates only. The
reserves and estimated future net cash flow irom the assets of Grand Banks have been independently evatuated by Paddock Lindstrom
and McDaniel. These evaluations include a number of assumptions relating to factors such as initiat production rates, production decline
rates, ultimate recovery of reserves, timing and amount of capital expenditure, marketability of production, future prices of oil and
natural gas, operating costs and royalties and other government levies that may be imposed over the producing life of the reserves.

These assumptions were based on price forecasts in use at the date the relevant evaluations were prepared and many of these
assumptions are subject to change and are beyond the control of the Corporation. Actual production and cash flows derived therefrom
will vary from these evaluations, and such variaticns could be material. The foregoing evaluations are based in part on the assumed
success of expleitation activities intended {0 be undertaken in future years. The reserves and estimaled cash flows to be derived
therefrom contained in such evaluations will be reduced to the extent that such expleitation activities do not achieve the level of success
assumed in the evaluations.

Veiat/lity of Cil and Natural Gas Prices,

The operational resulis and financial condition of Grand Banks will be dependent on the prices received for oiland natural gas production.
Qil and natural gas prices have fluctuated widely during recent years and are determined by supply and demand factors, including
weather and general economic conditions as well as conditions in other oil and natural gas regions. Any decline in ail and natural gas
prices could have an adverse effect of the operatiens, proved reserves and financial conditions of Grand Banks and could resutt in a
reduction of the net production revenue of the Corporation causing a reduction in its oil and gas acquisition and developmant activities,
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In addition, bank barrowings that might be made available to the Corporation are typically determined in part by the borrowing base
of the reserves of Grand Banks. A sustained material decline in prices from historical average prices could reduce the borrowing base
of the Corporation, therefore reducing the bank credit available to Grand Banks and possibly requiring that a portion of such bank debt
be repaid.

Grand Banks uses the full cost method of accounting for oil and natural gas properties. Under this accounting method, capitalized costs
are reviewed on a quarterly basis for irmpairment to ensure that the carrying amount of these costs is recoverable based on expected
future cash flows.

Ty
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il and natural gas exptoration operations are subject to all the risks and hazards typically associated with such operations, including
hazards such as fire, explosion, blowouts and oil spills, each of which could result in substantial damage to cil and natural gas wells,
preduction facilties, other property and the envirenment or in personal injury.

In accordance with industry practice, Grand Banks is not fully insured against all of these risks, nor are all such risks insurable.
Although Grand Banks maintains liability insurance, where available, in an amount that it considers adequate and consistent with
industry practice, the nature of these risks is such that liabilities could exceed policy limits, in which event Grand Banks could incur
significant costs that could have a material adverse affect upon its financial condition. Business interruption insurance may also be
purchased for selected facilities, to the extent that such insurance is available. Qil and natural gas preduction operations are also
subject to all the risks typically associated with such operations, including premature decline of reservoirs and the invasion of water
into producing fermations.

Oil and natural gas exploration and development activities are dependent on the availability of drilling and related equipment in the
particular areas where such activities will be conducted. Demand for such equipment or access restrictions may affect the availability
and/or cost of such equipment to Grand Banks and may delay exploration and development activities. To the extent Grand Banks is not
the operator of its il and gas properties, the Corporation will be dependent on other operators for timing of activities related to non-
operating properties and will be largely unable to direct or control the activities of the operators.

Although property title reviews are completed according toindustry standards prior to the purchase of most oil and natural gas producing
properties or the cernmencement of drilling wells, such reviews do not guarantee or certify that an unforeseen defect in the chain of title
will not arise o defeat the claim of Grand Banks, which could result in the reduction of the revenue received by the Corporation.

Competiton

There is strong competition relating to all aspects of the oil and natural gas industry. Grand Banks actively competes for capital, skilled
personnel, undeveloped land. reserve acquisitions, access to drilling rigs, service rigs and other equipment, access to processing
facilities and pipeline and refining capacity, and in all other aspecis of its operations with a substantial number of other arganizations,
many of which may have greater technical and financial resources than Grand Banks.

Key Persaere,

The success of Grand Banks depends in large measure on cartain key personnel. The loss of the services of such key personnel could
have a material adverse affect on the Corporation. Grand Banks does not have key person insurance in effect for management. The
contributions of these individuals to the immediate operations of Grand Banks are likely to be of central impertance. In addition, the
competiticn for qualified persennel in the oil and natural gas industry is intense and there can be no assurance that the Corparation will
be able to continue to attract and retain all persennel necessary for the development and cperation of its business.

Ervrgrmenta R auxs

The oil and natural gas industry is subject to environmental regulations pursuant to a variety of international conventions and Canadian
federal. provincial and municipat laws, regulations and guidelines. A breach of such regulations may result in the imposition of fines
or issuances of clean-up orders in respect of Grand Banks or its assets. Such regulalions may be changed to impose higher standards
and potentially more costly cbligations on the Corporation. There can be no assurance that future environmental costs will npt have a
material adverse affect on Grand Banks.

Other Information

® Additional information regarding Grand Banks Energy Corporation’s reserves and other data is available
on the Corporation's website at www.grandbanksenergy.com and on the Canadian Securities Administrators’ System for
Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval ['SEDAR”) at www.sedar.com.
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MANAGEMENT'S
RESPONSIBILITY
STATEMENT

To the Shareholders of Grand Banks Energy Corporation

The accompanying financial statements and all information contained in the Annual
Report are the responsibility of management. The financial statements of the
Corporation have been prepared by management in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in the accompanying notes to the financial statements. In the opinion
of management, the financial statements have been prepared with acceptable limits
of materiality and are in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles ["GAAP") appropriate in the circumstances.

Management maintains systems of control appropriate for the Corporation’s size
and aperations. Policies and procedures are designed to give reasonable assurance
that transactions are properly authorized, assets are safeguarded and financial
records properly maintained to provide reliable and timely financiat information for
the preparation of financial statements.

The Audit Committee of the Corporation’s Board of Directors, comprised of non-
management Directors, recommends the nomination of the independent auditors
and meets with management and the independent auditors to satisfy themselves
that management fulfitls its responsibilities for financial reporting and control. The
Committee reviews the financial statements with the external auditors, considers
auditors’ independence and approves the auditors’ fees.

The financial staternents have been audited by Delgitte & Touche LLP, independent
auditors, and have been approved by the Board of Directors on the recommendation
of the Audit Committee.

A

Shawn D. McDonald, B Comm., LL.B.
Chief Financial Officer

Edward C. McFeely
President & Chief Executive Officer

Calgary, Alberta
April 16, 2007
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AUDITORS’
REPORT

To the Shareholders of Grand Banks Energy Corporation

We have audited the balance sheets of Grand Banks Energy Corporation as at December 31, 2006
and 2005 and the statements of operations and retained earnings and cash flows for the years
then ended. These financial siatements are the responsibitity of the Corporation’'s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material missiatement. An audit includes
examining. on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Corparation as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles,

(G bvicte 3 jhyé L

Chartered Accountants
Calgary, Alberta
March 23, 2007
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1 BALANCE “
‘ SHEETS As at December 31, 2006 2005 ’I
h___._ e oo ] (sl !
Assets '
Current .‘;
Cash and cash equivalents - 5,443 “
Accounts receivabte 6,044 5.698 ’
Prepaid expenses and advances 160 100 !i
6,204 11,241 ll
Property and equipment INote 3) 44,741 28,005 s
Future tax asset [Note 9) 1,304 3,090 I
52,251 42,334 |
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current
Bank indebtedness (Note 41 4,328 - |
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 10,176 9.464 i
Current portion of asset retirement obligation (Note 5) 262 - i'
16,766 9,464
Asset retirement obligation [Nate 5) 961 894
17,727 10,358
Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital (Note 8] 30,489 29,228
Share purchase loans iNote 8 (48) {48]
Contributed surplus [Note 7] 2,448 1,790
Retained earnings 1,635 1008 |
34,524 31,978 !
52,251 42,336

See accompanying notes to the financial stalements.

On behalf of the Board of Directors:
/49}7/%;/1/%/{%- g

W.J. McNaughton Thomas Bamferd
Chairman of the Audit Committee Director

"] o == —]
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. STATEMENTS OF

L OPERATIONS For the Years Ended December 3t, 2005
' AND RETAINED [000s, except per share amounts) (%l
EARNINGS Revenue
e Crude oil and liquids 5327
Natural gas 11,895
Royalty and process income 29
Interest income 126
17.377
Less: royalties {4,706]
12,671
Expenses
Accretion of asset retirement abligation iNote 5l 67
Depletion and ameortization 10,652
General and administrative 1.254
Interest 50
Loss on settlement of asset retirement
obligation [Note 51 78
Production 2,027
Stock-based compensation (Note 101 483
14,831
Net [loss] before taxes (2,140)
Future income tax recovery [Note 9) 3,090
Net income for the year 930
Retained earnings, beginning of year 78
Retained earnings, end of year 1,008
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted [Note &} 0.03

See accompanying noles 1o the financial statements.
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‘ STATEMENTS
I OF CASH
FLOWS

Po— e -

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005
(000s) (] £3]
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income for the year 627 930
Adjustments for:
Accretion of asset retirement obligation (Note 5) a5 &7
Degletion and amortization 9,493 10,652
Loss on settlement of asset
retirement obligation [Note 5) - 98
Stock-based compensation 836 683
Future income tax recavery (1,308) {3,090}
Asset retirement costs incurred (Note 5| (2%) (274)
Funds flow from operations 9,706 9,066
Changes in non-cash operating working
capital balances (Note 14 (320) {637)
9,386 8,429
Cash ftows from financing activities
Bank indebtedness [Note 4) 6,328 -
Share purchase loans - 95
Issue of shares, net 4,173 11.069
Change in non-cash working capital - 214
10,501 11.378
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds on disposal of property and equipment 123 1,200
Additions to property and equipment [26,079) {23,455]
Change in non-cash investing working
capital iNote 14] 626 1,039
(25,330) (21.216)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (5.443) (1,409
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 5,443 6,852
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Supplemental disclosures (Note 14] - 5,443

See accempanying notes to the financral statements.
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| NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2006 and 2005
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NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Grand Banks Energy Corporation's {"Grand Banks” or “the Corporation’] principal business is the exploration,
devetopment and production of ¢crude oil and natural gas properties. The Corporation was originally incorporated
on June 25, 1969 under the British Columbia Companies Act and changed iis name from Pacific Amber Resources
Ltd. to Grand Banks Energy Corperation in 2003. The Corporation has been continued under the Alberta Business
Corporations Act. The Corporation’s common voting shares are listed on the TSX Venture Exchange.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIF!CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Corporaticn have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles. The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. The financial statemenis have, in management's opinion, been properly prepared using carefui
judgement within reasonable timits of materiality and within the framework of the significant accounting policies
summarized below.

(a] Property and Equipment

The Corperation accounts for crude oil and natural gas properties using the full cost method of acceunting.
Under this method, al! costs associated with the acquisition of, exploration for and the development of natural
gas and crude oil reserves, including asset retirement costs, are capitalized.

Costs accumulated within each cost centre are depleted and amortized using the unit-of-production method
based on estimated gross [before deduction of royalties) proved reserves. For purposes of this calculation, gas
is converted to oil on an energy equivaleni basis [six thousand cubic feet of naiural gas to one barrel of oill,
Capitalized costs subject to depletion are net of equipment salvage values and include estimated future costs to
be incurred in developing proved reserves. Proceeds from the disposal of properties are normally deducted from
the full cost pool without recognition of gain or loss unless that deduction would result in a change to the rate of
depreciation, depletion and amortization of 20% or greater, in which case a gain or loss (s recorded,

Costs of acquiring and evaluating unproved properties are initially excluded from depletion. These unevaluated
properties are assessed periodically to ascertain whether impairment has occurred. When proved reserves are
assigned or the property is considered to be impaired, the cost of the property or the amount of the impairment
is added to costs subject to depletion.

The Corporation applies an impairment test ["ceiling test”] to determine if capitalized costs are not recoverable
and exceed their fair value. The carrying amount of the cost centre is not recoverable if the carrying amaount
exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows from proved reserves. If the sum of cash flows is less than the
carrying amount, the impairment loss is limited to the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the sum of
the fair value of proved and probable reserves and the costs of unproved properties that have been subject to a
separate impairment test and contain no probable reserves.

Expenditures that improve the productive capacity or extend the life of an asset are capitalized. Maintenance and
repairs are charged against income,

Office equipment is recorded at cost. Amortization is provided on a declining balance basis at rates ranging from
20% to 30% over the estimated useful life of the equipment .
(b) Joint Venture Operations

Substantially all of the Corporation’s petroleum and natural gas exploration activities are conducied jointly with
others. These financial statements reflect only the Corporation’s proportionate interest in such activities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED]

lc] Asset Retirement Gbligations

The Corporation recegnizes the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in which it
is incurred and records a corresponding increase in the carrying value of the related long-lived asset. The fair
value is determined through a review of engineering studies, industry guidelines and management's estimates
on a site-by-site basis. The liability is subsequently adjusted for the passage of time and is recognized as an
accretion expense inthe statement of operations. The liability is also adjusted due te revisions in either the timing
or the amount of the original estimated cash flows associated with the liability. The increase in the carrying
value of the asset is amortized using the unit-of-production method based on estimated gross preved reserves
as determined by independent engineers. Actual expenditures incurred are charged against the accumulated
abligation. Any difference between the actual costs incurred upon settlement of the asset retirement obligation
and the recorded liability is recognized as a gain or lass in the period in which settlement occurs.

(d) Flow-Through Shares

Expenditure deductions for income tax purposes related to exploratory and development activities funded by
flow-through share arrangements are te be renounced to investors in accordance with income tax legislation.
Share capitat is reduced by the estimated cost of the renounced tax deductions for expenditures renounced.

(e} Future Income Taxes

The Corporation uses the liability method of tax allocation in accounting for incorme taxes. Under this method,
future tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between the financial reporting and tax
bases of assels and liabitities and measured using substantively enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect
when the differences are expected to reverse.

(f] Measurement Uncertainty

The amounts recorded for depletion and amortization of petroleum and natural gas properties and equipment, the
provision for asset retirement obligation and stock-based compensation are based on estimates. A number of the
Company's financial statement calculations are based on estimates of proved and probable reserves, production
rates, oil and gas prices, future costs and cther relevant assumptions. By their nature, these estimates are
subject to measurement uncertainty and the effect on the financial statements of changes tn estimates in future
periods could be significant.

The Black-Scholes option valuation method was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options
that were fully tradable with no vesting restrictions. This option valuation model requires the input of highly
subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. Because the Corporation’s stock options
and performance incentive warrants have characteristics significanily differeni from those of traded options and
because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the calculated fair value, such value
is subject to measurement uncertainty. Once recorded, no adjustments are made to the fair value recorded for
the options.

The financial statements include accruals based on the terms of existing joint veniure agreements. Due tovarying
interpretations of the definition of terms in these agreements, the accruals made by management in this regard
may be significantly different from those determined by the Corporation’s joint venture partners. The effect on
the financial statements resulting from such adjustments, if any, will be reflected prospectively.

The Corporation is subject to various regulatory and statutory requirements relating to the protection of the
environment. These requiraments, in addition tc contractual agreements and management decisions, result
in the accrual of estimated asset retirement obligation costs. Any changes in these estimates will affect future
earnings.

Costs aitributable to commitments and contingencies are expected to be incurred over an extended period of
time and are to be funded primarily from the Corporation’s cash provided by operating activities. Although the
ultimate impact of these matters on net earnings cannot be determined at this time, it could be material for any
one quarter or year.

[g) Cashand Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand, bank balances [including temporary bank averdrafts], term
depesits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED}
(h} Stock-Based Benefit Plan

The Corporation records compensation expense in the financial statements for stock options granted to
employees, directors and consultants using the fair value method. Fair values are determined using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model. Compensation costs are recognized over the vesting period.

(il PerShare Amounts

Basic earnings per common share are computed by dividing earnings by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding for the period. Diluted per share amounts reflect the potential dilution that could occur if
securities or other contracts to issue common shares were exercised or converted to common shares. The
treasury stock method is used to determine the dilutive effect of stock options and other ditutive instruments.

[j) Revenue Recognition

Revenues associated with the sale of crude oil and natural gas are recorded when the title passes to the customer.
Revenues from crude oil and natural gas production from properties in which the Corporation has an interest
with other producers are recognized on the basis of the Corporation’s net working interest. Alberta Royalty Tax
Credits are netted against oil and gas royalties.
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3. PROPERTYAND EBUIPMENT

Accumulated
Depletion and Net Boak
Cost Arrortization Vatue
(000s) (3l i3l (%l
December 31, 2006
Furniture and equipment 120 50 &0
Petroleum and natural gas properties 67,027 22,346 44,681
67,147 22,406 44,761
December 31, 2005
Furniture and equipment 97 44 53
Petreleum and natural gas properties 40,823 12,871 27,952
40,920 12,915 28,005

Future development costs relating to proved reserves of $10,568,000 (2005 - $2,885,000) have been included in the
depletion calculation. The Corporation capitalized $Nil {2005 - $178,000] of genera! and administrative costs during the
year. The Corporation excluded $1,785,000 (2005 - $1,931,000] of undevetoped praperties from the depletion calculation

as follows:
December 31, 2006 2005
{060s] 1$) [
Unproven costs
Land 1,056 1,430
Geological and geophysical 278 278
Drilling in progress 451 223

1,785 1,931

The Corporation periormed a ceiling test calculation at December 31, 2006 to assess the recoverable value of its ail
and gas properties. The oil and gas future prices are based on the cormmodity price forecast of the Corporation’s
independent reserve evaluators. These prices have been adjusted for heating content, quality and transportation
parameters specific to the Corporation. The foltowing table summarizes the benchmark prices used in the ceiling
test calculation:
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3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT [CONTINUEDI

Natural Gas

CON/US Alberta

Year WT! il Exchange Rate Spot Prices
($US/bhl] {3l [$CDN/mmbtu]

2007 61.00 0.87 7.15
2008 60.00 0.87 7.72
2009 60.00 0.87 7.70
2010 58.00 0.87 7.68
201 56.00 0.87 7.83
2012 57.12 0.87 7.99

| Escalate thereafter 2.0% per year.

| The undiscounted value of future net revenues from the Corporation’s proved reserves exceeded the carrying value
aof the oil and gas properties at December 31, 2006.
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4. BANK INDEBTEONESS

At December 31, 2006, the Corperation had a $10,500,000 (2005 - $5,400.000] revolving line of credit agreement with
a Canadian financial institution. The Corperation has a covenant to ensure that its working capital deficiency is not
in excess of its lines of credit. The financial institution has agreed the Corporation was not in breach of this financial
covenant. At December 31, 2006, bank indebtedness related to tha revolving line of credit was $4,328,000. The line of
credit bears interest at prime plus 0.25% per annum, secured by the assets of the Corporation, and is due on demand.
The effective rate under the increased line was 6.25% (2005 - 5.75%]. Subsequent to year-end, a $1,200,000 non-
revolving reducing term facility was appraved by a Canadian financial institution. This Line bears interest at 7.5% and is
repayable on demand. The Corporation is required to make blended repayments on the non-revolving reducing term
facility of $37,327 per month commencing in February 2007 totaling $411,000 in 2007, $448,000 in 2008, $448.000 in
2009 and $75,000 in 2010.

5. ASSETRETIREMENT OBLIGATION ' o o - 7

The following table presents the reconciliation of the beginning and ending aggregate carrying amount of the obligation
associated with the retirement of oil and gas properties:

December 31, 2006 2005
(000s} (% (%)
Balance, beginning of year 894 341
Liabilities incurred in year 273 6562
Asset retirement costs incurred (29) (274}
Loss on settlement of asset retirement obligation - 98
Accretion expense 85 &7
1,223 894
lLess current portion 262 -
961 894

The undiscounted ameunt of cash flows, required over the estimated reserve life of the underlying assets, to settle
the ohligation, adjusted far inflation is estimated at $3,063,000 (2005 - $1,354,000]. The obligation was catculated
using a credit adjusted risk-free discount rate of 8% and an inflation rate of 2%. It is expected that this obligation
wilt be funded from the Corporation’s general resources at the time the costs are incurred with the majority of costs
expected to occur after 2011, No funds have been set aside to settle this obtigation.
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6. -SHAﬁE CAPITAL

(a] Authorized
The authorized share capital consists of an unlimited number of common shares without nominal or par value.

(b) Issued and Outstanding

Shares Amount
1000s] (#] (3l
Balance, December 31, 2004 23,272 18.159
Issued on exercise of warrants [Note 4[] 1,808 2,259
Flow-through shares issued (Note 6(d)} 4,670 2,190
Share issue costs - (380)
Balance at December 31, 2005 29,750 29,228
Issued on exercise of options (Note élel) 1565 170
Transfer from contributed surplus - 178
Flow-through shares issued [Note sldl 2,000 4,200
Tax effect of flow-through shares " - (3,090]
Share issue costs - (197
Balance at December 31, 2006 31,915 30,489

{11 Calculated at an effeclive rate of 33.62% on renounced expendrtures.

{e] Per S$hare Amounts

The following table summarizes the calculation of basic net income and diluted net income per share for the
years ended December 31, 2606 snd 2005:

Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005
(000s, except per share amounts} 1$) (%)
Net income avaitable to comman shareholders 427 930
Weighted average number of commaon shares outstanding - basic 30,173 26,821
Ditutive effect of stock options 80é 449
Dilutive effect of warrants - 1,219
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - diluted 30,979 28,489
Net income per share

Basic 0.02 0.03

Diluted 0.02 0.03

The following securities were excluded frem the calculation of diluted net income per share: 2,044,000 options in
2006 and 1,543,000 options and no warrants in 2005.
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6. SHARE CAPITAL [CONTINUED)
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(d) Flow-Through Share Information

Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005
[000s} 13l %]
Carried farward from prior year 6,740 5,000
Amount of flow-through shares issued 4,200 2.190
Expenditures incurred (7,085) (7.450]
Remaining obligation, end of year 3,855 6,740

During October and November 2006, the Corporation issued 2,000,000 flow-through shares at $2.10 per share
for gross proceeds of $4,200.000.

tn February 2005, the Corporation issued 3,000,000 flow-through shares at $1.95 per share for gross proceeds
of $5.850.000. In December 2005, the Corporation issued 1.670.000 flow-through shares at $2.00 per share for
gross proceeds of $3,340,000.

All flow-through obligations must be fulfilled by December 31, 2007.
lel Stock Options

The Option Plan altows directors, employees and consultants to be granted incentive based compensation under
the Option Plan. while allowing a rolling maxirmum of 10% of the number of issued and outstanding shares from
time-to-time to be granted under the Option Plan. Options may be granted under the Option Plan at an exercise
price and vesting provisions as set by the Baard of Directors of the Corporation from time-to-time, subject to the
limitations of any stock exchange on which the common shares are listad.

As at December 31, 2004, the Corporation had the following stock options outstanding:

Option Weighted

Price Average

Shars Per Share Exercise

Options Range Price

(#000s] (3] ($)

Outstanding at December 31, 2004 1.730 1.00-1.15 1.05
Granted 580 1.25 1.25
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 2310 1.00 - 1.25 1.10
Granted 709 1.65-1.80 1.65
Exercised (165) 1.00-1.05 1.04

Outstanding at December 31, 2004 2,854 1.00 - 1.80 1.24
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6. SHARE CAPITAL [CONTINUED)

le) Stock Options [continued]

The foilowing table summarizes information abeut the stock options outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005:

Options Outstanding Options Currently Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Average Weighted Average Weighted
Remaining Average Remaining Average
Share Contractual Exercise Shares Contractual Exercise
Gption Price Options Life Price Options Life Price
1$) [#000s) [Years) (%! (#000s1 [Years] (%)
2006
1.00 130 2.4 1.00 130 2.4 1.00
1.05 1,285 3.5 1.05 1,285 35 1.05
1.15 150 3.8 1.15 100 33 1.15
1.25 580 4.6 1.25 387 4.1 1.25
1.65 595 5.1 1.65 232 4.1 1.65
1.80 10 5.4 1.80 3 L. 1.80
1.68 4 5.7 1.68 1 4.7 1.468
2,854 4.1 1.24 2,138 3.6 1.15
2005
1.00 195 3.2 1.00 155 2.6 1.60
1.05 1,385 4.4 1.05 923 39 1.05
1.19 150 4.8 1.15 100 4.3 1.15
1.25 580 2.6 1.25 194 4.6 1.25
2,310 4.6 1.10 1,372 3.9 1.08

(fl Warrants

As at December 31, 2006, the Corporation had the following share purchase warrants outstanding:

Warrant Average

Issued Expiry Options Price

(#000s] (%1

Qutstanging at December 31, 2004 Aug. & Sep. 2005 2344 1.25

Exercised {1,808 1.25

Expired Aug. & Sep. 2005 (534 1.25
Outstanding at December 31,

2005 and 2006 - -

The fair value of each warrant was determined at the grant date using the Black-Scholes model assuming a risk-
free interest rate of 4.5% and an expected volatitity rate of 103%.

— = —T .

7. CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS

December 31,
1000s)

Balance - beginning of year
Stock compensation costs
Transferred to equity instruments

Balance - end of year
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8. SHARE PURCHASE LOANS

At December 31, 2004, the Carperation had $48,000{2005 - $48,000) in share purchase loans recorded as a reduction
of shareholders equity.

9. INCOM‘EV'ITAixiEVSW S

[al The effective tax rate of income tax varies from the statutory rate as follows:

2004 2005
1000s] (5 %)
Comtbined federal and provincial tax rates 36.15% 34.2%
Expected income tax recovery at statutory rate (245) {739
Alberta Royalty Tax Credit (80) (59)
Crown charges 242 757
Tax rate changes (278) 229
Rescurce allowance , (373) (7511
Stock-hased compensation 302 234
Other 354 36
Change valuation allowance (1,230) {2,797]
Actual income tax recovery (1,306) (2,0%01

[b] At December 31, 2006, subject to confirmation by income tax autherities, the Corporation had the following tax
pools available to reduce future taxable income:

December 31, 2006 2005
{000s] (3l (%l
Cumulative Canadian development expenses 20,320 8.182
Cumulative Canadian exploratien expenses 10,743 2,918
Cumulative Canadian oil and gas property expenses 2,781 1,532
Foreign exploration and development expenses 8,053 8,948
Earned depletion - 368
Undepreciated capital cost 8,318 4,773
Non-capital losses carried ferward for tax purposes expiring in 2014 1,863 8,745
Undeducted share issue costs carried forward 746 958

52,824 43,444

The tax benefit of these tax pools in excess of carrying values has only been recognized to the extent of the future
tax to be renounced for the flow-through shares issued in 2006. A vatuation allowance has been recorded for the
remainder as the excess daes not meet the test of more likely than not realization.

[c) At December 31, 2006, the Corporation had approximately $1,497,000 (2005 - $1.497,000] of capital losses available
that have no expiry date and can be used to reduce future capital gains. The tax benefit of these losses has not been
recognized as a {uture asset as the ultimate realization of the asset value is uncertain.
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9.

10.

.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

INCOME TAXES [CONTINUED|

{d] Future income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounis of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts for income tax purposes. The components of the
Corporation’s future income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 3%, 2006 2005
(000s] (%) £
Nature of temporary differences
Property and equipment 2,473 3.032
Unused non-capital tax losses carried forward 583 2,955
Share issue costs 231 305
Unused capital losses carried forward 117 126
3,404 6,418
Valuation allowance {2,098) {3.328]
Future income tax asset 1,306 3.090

STOCK COMPENSATION.

The Corporation records stock-based compensation expense for alt common share options granted to employees,
consultants, officers and directors. The total fasr value of stock options granted during the year was estimated at
$795,000 or $1.12 per option issued (2005 - $502,000 or $0.87 per option issued). During the year, the Corporation
expensed $836,000 (2005 - $673.000). The Black-Scholes option pricing model used the following assumptions:

December 31, 2004 2005
Dividend yield Nil Nil
Expected volatility (%) £1-74 76
Risk free rate of return (%] 4.5 45
Weighted average life {years) 5 5

The Corporation carries a number of financial instruments as detailed on the balance sheet. It is management's
opinion that the Corporation is not exposed to significant commodity, interest, currency or credit risks arising fram
these financial instruments. The fair values of these financial instruments approximate their carrying values, unless
otherwise noted.

The Corporation holds various forms of financiat instruments. The nature of these instruments and the Corporation’s
operations expose the Corporation to {air value, interest rate and industry credit risks, The Corporation manages its
exposure to these risks by operating in a manner that minimizes its exposure to the extent practical.

The Corporation will be subject to commodity and currency price risk for the delivery of natural gas and crude oil.
The Corporation is also subject to interest rate risk with respect to its bank indebtedness as this indebtedness is at
floating rate (Note 4).

A significant portion of the Cerporation’s cash is currently held with the same financial institution and, as such,
the Corporation is exposed to concentration of credit risk. Substantially all the Corporation’s accounts receivable
are with customers and joint venture partners in the oil and gas industry and are subject to normal industry
credit risks.
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12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All related party transactions are in tha normal course of operations and have been measured at the agreed to

exchange amounts, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties and which
is similar to those negotiated with third parties. The Corporation had the following related party transactions:

[al The Corpcration incurred consulting fees of $328.000 (2005 - $194,000} to companies controlled by officers of the
Corporatien for the year ended December 31, 2006.

{6l The Corporation conducts oil and gas expleration and development activities and related transactions with
| organizations managed or controlled by directors. These iransactions are negotiated and conducted using standard
industry agreements and terms.

[c] The Carporation incurred legal fees of $55,00G (2005 - $Nil) to a firm in which one of the Cerparations’ officers was
a partner.

(d) Included in general and administrative expenses is $53.000 (2005 - $48.000! paid for directors’ fees to independent
directors.

le) Included in other income is $2,400 (2005 - $8,000] of interest charged on the share purchase loans [Note 8].

13. COMMITMENTS

[a) The Corporation has a commitmant for an offica lease that expires in Navermnber 2011 as follows:

{3l
2007 238,000
2008 304,000
2009 204,000
2010 304,000
2011 279,000

(b} The Corporation has entered inio employment agreements with its executive officers. In addition to defining the
terms of employment, the agreements entitle these executives to compensation on a change of management or
control, or for termination without cause. The Carporation has agreed to indemnify certain individuals, who have
acted at the Corporation’s request to be officers or directors of the Corporation. Payment, if any, as a resuit of these
indemnifications will be recorded in the period that the related payment is made,

fc] The Corporation has an obligation 10 commence drilling an option well at Tower Creek 11-24 by July 2007. The
Corporation’s estimated share of this well is $3.8 million. As the well is an exploration well, the expenditures on this
well will contribute towards meeting the Corporation’s unexpended flow-through obligation.
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14. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(al Changes in non-cash working capitai balances are comprised of the following:

December 31, 2006 2005
1000s} %] (%)
Accounts receivable (346) (3,920]
Prepaid expenses and advances (60) (37)
Share purchase loans - 214
Accounts payabte and accrued liahilities 712 4,359

306 816
Less amounts related to investing activities 626 1,039
Less amounts related to financing activities - 214

(320) (637)

{b] 1n 2006. the cash interest paid was $139,600 (2005 - $188,0001.

[c] AsatDecember 31, 2006, the Corporation has $Nil of cash and cash equivalents compared to $1,943,000 of cash
ptus $2,000,000 in a 21-day term deposit and $1,500,000 in a daily term deposit as at December 31, 2005,

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Subsequent to December 31, 2004, the Corporation issued 838,000 stock options to certain officers, an employee

and consultant.
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BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Edward C. McFeely 2 - Chairman

Mr. McFeely joined Pacific Amber Resources Ltd. in 2001 as
a director and President, and after the company changed its
name to Grand Banks Energy Corporation, he was appointed
Chairman. In January 2004, Mr. McFeely assumed the role of
President and Chief Executive Officer of Grand Banks. Prior
thereto, he served as director. Executive Vice-President
and Chief Operating Officer of Westlinks Resources Ltd,,
was co-founder, Chairman, President and Chief Executive
Officer of Prize Energy Inc. [now Canadian Superior Energy
Inc.) and served in numerous capacities with Saskatchewan
Oit and Gas Corporation, ICG Resources Ltd., Peregrine
Petroleum Ltd. and Union Qil. Mr. McFeely has over 24 years
of experience in the oil and gas business. Mr. McFeely is a
Petroleum Engineer and holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in Engineering from the University of Alberta.

Thomas S. Bamforg MG

Mr. Bamiord has been a member of the Professional
Engineering Association of Saskatchewan [APEGS] for more
than 30 years after having graduated from the University of
Saskatchewan in 1971 with a Bachelor of Science degree in
Geotogical Engineering. After obtaining a Master of Science
deqgree, he joined Saskatchewan Qil and Gas Corporatian
in 1975, where he held a number of managerial positions.
During his tenure with Saskoil, he obtained a Master of
Business Administration degree in 1978, After leaving
Saskoilin 1995, Mr. Bamford acted as a director of Rockbound
Resgurces Inc. He then jcined Westlinks Resaurces Lid,
where he served as a director, CFO and COO until 2000. Mr.
Bamford subsequently joined First Merchants Corporation
as an Associate and also served on the beard of Industrial
Minerals Inc.
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Brian H. Gore @

Mr. Brian Gore is an independent businessman involved in Pecos
Capital Corp., a private investment company, and has over 32 years
of experience with public resource companies. Previously, he was
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Pivotal Energy Lid. as well as
held various executive pasitions with Cigar Oil & Gas Ltd., Barringten
Petroleum Ltd. and Renaissance Energy Ltd. Mr. Gere is & professional
Landman, holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
the University of Oklahoma and is a member of CAPL.

Kenneth H. Hayes 1zit3)

Mr. Hayes has approximately 35 years of diverse experience in the oil
and gas sector. Mr. Hayes is the founder and Chief Executive Officer
of Wilderness Energy Corp., a private company engaged in oil and
gas explaration in Western Canada and internationally. Prior thereto,
he was a founder, President and Chief Executive Officer of Cometra
Energy {Canada) Limited and Canrock Pipelines Ltd. Mr. Hayes is 2
Professicnal Geologist, holds an M.Sc. {Geology] and iz a member of
APEGGA.

W.J. [Bill} McNaughton

Mr. McNaughton is an independent businessman involved in financial
and investor relations advisement assignments. Previously, he was an
Associate with Sayer Securities Limited, President of Sterling Energy
Limited and acied as Vice-President, Finance for Pancana Resources
Limited and Tricentrol Qils Limited. Mr. McNaughton is a chartered
accountant with 30 years experience in the oil and gas industry.
He holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of
Saskatchewan and is a member of the Canadian Institute of Chartered

Accounts.

[11 Audit Committee Member
(2] Compensation Committee Member
[3] Reserves Commiliee Member
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GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT an Annual General Meeting of the holders of Common Shares of Grand
Banks Energy Corporation (the "Corporatien”) will be held at the Petroleum Club, in the Cardium Room, at 319
- 5th Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta on Tuesday June 5, 2007 commencing at 10:30 a.m. (Calgary time) for the
following purposes:

1. to receive the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006 and the auditors’ report thereon;
2, to elect directors for the ensuing year;

3. to appoint auditors for the ensuing year and to authorize the directors to fix the auditor’s remuneration;
4. to pass an ordinary resolution reaffirming the Corporation’s stock option plan attached hereto as

Schedule “A”; and

3. to transact such other business as may be properly brought before the Meeting, or any adjournment or
postponement thereof,

Specific details of the matters proposed to be put before the Meeting are set forth in the accompanying
Management Information Circular which is deemed to form part of this Notice. Copies of any documents to be
considered, approved, ratified and adopted or authorized will be available at the Meeting and will be available for
inspection prior to June 5, 2007 at the registered and records office of the Corporation at 1600, 444 — 5th Avenue
5.W., Calgary, Alberta T2P 2T8 during normal business hours.

Shareholders are invited to attend the Meeting. Only sharcholders of record at the close of business on May 1,
2007 are entitled to vote at the Meeting, except to the extent that a person has transferred any Common Shares
after that date and the new holder of such shares establishes proper ownership and requests, not later than ten days
before the Meeting, to be included in the list of shareholders eligible to vote at the Meeting.

Shareholders who are unable to attend the Meeting in person may appoint a proxy to attend and vote on their
behalf. If you arc unable to attend the Meeting in person, you are requested to date, sign and return the
accompanying form of proxy for use at the Meeting or any adjournment thereof. To be effective, forms of proxy
must be received not later than forty-eight (48) hours, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, prior to the
Meeting or any adjournment thereof by Global Corporate Compliance, 850 505 — 3 Street S.W., Calgary, Alberta
T2P 3E6.

Dated at the City of Calgary, in the Province of Alberta this 26™ day of April, 2007.
By Order of the Board
_(signed) "E. C. (Ted) McFeely"”

E. C. (Ted) McFeely, Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer
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GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION CIRCULAR

THIS MANAGEMENT INFORMATION CIRCULAR (THE “CIRCULAR”) IS FURNISHED IN
CONNECTION WITH THE SOLICITATION OF PROXIES BY THE MANAGEMENT OF GRAND
BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION (the “Corporation”) for use at an Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders of the Corporation (the “Meeting”) to be held on June 5, 2007 at 10:30 a.m. (Calgary time) at the
Petroleumn Club, in the Cardium Room, at 319 - 5th Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta for the purposes set out in the
accompanying Notice of Meeting. As a shareholder, you are invited to be present at the Meeting . In the event
that you are unable to attend personally, to ensure that you will be represented at the Meeting, you are requested
to date, complete and sign the accompanying instrument of proxy and return the same to Global Corporate
Compliance, 850 505 — 3™ Street SW, Calgary, Alberta T2P 3ES.

Date

Information contained herein is given as of April 26, 2007 unless otherwise specifically stated.

GENERAL
Solicitation of Proxies

The proxy selicitation is made on behalf of the management of the Corporation. The individuals named in the
accompanying form of proxy are directors or officers of the Corporation. The solicitation of proxies is intended to
be primarily by mail, but may also be made by telephone, facsimile transmission or other electronic means of
communication or in person by the directors and officers of the Corporation. The cost associated with the
solicitation will be borne by the Corporation,

Revocability of Proxies

In addition to revocation in any other manner permitted by 1aw, a shareholder who has given a proxy may revoke
it, by instrument in writing executed by the shareholder or by his attorney authorized in writing and deposited
either at the registered office of the Corporation at 1600, 444 — 5 Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta, T2P 2T8 at any
time up to and including the last business day preceding the day of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof, or
with the Chairman of the Meeting on the day of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Proxy Instructions

A SHAREHOLDER WISHING TO APPOINT SOME OTHER PERSON (WHO NEED NOT BE A
SHAREHOLDER) TO REPRESENT HIM AT THE MEETING HAS THE RIGHT TO DO SO,EITHER
BY INSERTING SUCH PERSON’S NAME IN THE BLANK SPACE PROVIDED IN THE FORM QOF
PROXY AND CROSSING OUT THE NAMES OF THE PERSONS DESIGNATED BY MANAGEMENT
OF THE CORPORATION OR BY COMPLETING ANOTHER FORM OF PROXY. Such a shareholder
should notify the nomince of his appointment, obtain his consent to act as proxy and instruct him on how the
shareholder’s shares are to be voted. In any case, the form of proxy should be dated and executed by the
shareholder or his attorney authorized in writing, or if the shareholder is a corporation, under its corporate seal or
by an officer or attorney thereof duly authorized.




A proxy will not be valid for the Meeting or any adjournment thereof unless the completed form of proxy is
delivered to Global Corporate Compliance, 850 505 ~ 3" Street SW, Calgary, Alberta T2P 3E6, not later than
forty-eight (48) hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) before the Meeting, or any adjournment
thereof.

VYoting of Proxies

The persons named in the enclosed form of proxy have indicated their willingness to represent, as proxyholders,
the shareholders who appoint them. Each shareholder may instruct his proxyholder how to vote his shares by
completing the blanks in the form of proxy.

The securities represented by the proxy will be voted or withheld from voting in accordance with the instructions
of the securityholder on any ballot that may be called for and if the securityholder specifies a choice with respect
to any matter to be acted upon, the securities will be voted accordingly. IN THE ABSENCE OF SUCH
INSTRUCTIONS, SUCH SHARES WILL BE VOTED IN FAVOUR OF ALL MATTERS IDENTIFIED
IN THE NOTICE OF MEETING ACCOMPANYING THIS CIRCULAR.

The enclosed form of proxy confers discretionary authority upon the persons named therein with respect to
amendments and variations to matters identified in the Notice of Meeting and with respect to any other matters
which may properly come before the Meeting. At the date hereof, management of the Corporation knows of no
such amendments, variations or other matters to come before the Meeting.

Advice to Beneficial Holders of Common Shares

The information set forth in this section is of significant importance to many shareholders as a substantial number
do not hold Common Shares in their own name as Registered Shareholders. Beneficial Shareholders should note
that only proxies deposited by Registered Shareholders whose names appear on the records of the Corporation as
the registered hoiders of the Common Shares can be recognized and acted upon at the Meeting, [f Common
Shares are held in an account through a sharcholder’s broker, then in almost all cases those Common Shares will
not be registered in the shareholder’s name on the records of the Corporation.

Such Common Shares will more likely be registered under the name of the shareholders” broker or an agent of that
broker. In Canada, the vast majority of such Common Shares are registered under the name of the shareholders’
broker or an agent of that broker. CDS & Co. is the registration name for The Canadian Depositary for Securities
Limited, which acts as nominees for many Canadian brokerage firms. Common Shares held by brokers or their
nominees can generally only be voted for or against resolutions upon the instructions of the Beneficial
Shareholder. Without specific instructions, the broker/nominees may be prohibited from voting Common Shares
for their clients. The Corporation docs not know for whose benefit the Common Shares are held.

Applicable regulatory policy requires intermediaries/brokers to seek voting instructions from Beneficial
Shareholders in advance of shareholders” meetings. Every intermediary/broker has its own mailing procedures
and provides its own return instructions, which should be carefully followed by Beneficial Shareholders in order
to ensure that their Common Shares are voted at the Meeting. The majority of brokers now delegate responsibility
for obtaining instructions from clients to Broadridge Investor Communications Solutions (“Breadridge”).
Broadridge will mail a Voting Information Form (“VIF”) to the Beneficial Sharcholders and request the
shareholder to complete and return the VIF to Broadridge. Broadridge then tabulates the results of all instructions
received and provides appropriate instructions respecting the voting of the Common Shares to be represented at
the Meeting. A Beneficial Shareholder receiving a VIF from Broadridge cannot use that VIF to vote
Common Shares directly at the Meeting as the VIF must be returned as directed by Broadridge well in
advance of the Meeting in order to have the Common Shares voted. Accordingly, it is strongly suggested
that Beneficial Shareholders return their completed VIF as directed by Breadridge well in advance of the
Meeting.




The Corporation has set the close of business on May 1, 2007 as the record date for the Meeting. The Corporation
will prepare a list of shareholders of record at such time. Holders of common shares of the Corporation
(“Commen Shares”) named on that list will be entitled to vote the shares then registered in their name at the
Meeting except to the extent that the holder has transferred its Common Shares after that date, and the transferce
of those shares produces properly endorsed share certificates, or otherwise establishes that he owns the shares, and
demands not later than 10 days before the Meeting that his name be included in the list of persons entitled to vote
at the Meeting, in which case the transferee will be entitled to vote his shares at the Meeting or any adjournment
thereof.

Interest of Certain Persons and Companies in Matters to be Acted on Upon

No director or officer or associate thercof has any interest, direct or indirect, by way of beneficial ownership of
securities or otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon other than the election of directors.

Voting Shares and Principal Holders Thereof

The Corporation’s issued and outstanding shares consist of 32,406,184 Common Shares. Holders of Common
Shares as of the date hereof are entitled to one vote for each Common Share held on all matters to be considered
and acted upon at the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

As of the date hercof, to the knowledge of the directors and officers of the Corporation, no person, firm or
corporation beneficially owned, directty or indirectly, or exercised control or direction over voting securities
carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to any class of voting securities of the Corporation other
than:

Name of Holder Number of Common Shares % of OQutstanding Common Shares
Edward C. McFeely 5,213,9607 16.1%
Calgary, Alberta
Note:
(1) Includes Common Shares owned directly and indirectly.

Executive Compensation
Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth the compensation of the President and Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial
Officer and other employees earning greater than $150,000 in the most recently completed financial reporting
period, for the last three financial years (collectively the “Named Executive Officers™). There were no other
Named Executive Officers during the financial year ending December 31, 2006. Compensation is shown, where
applicable, for services rendered during the financial year ended December 31, 2006.




Annual Compensation Long-Term Compensation Awards

Securities
Under
Other Annual Options All Other
NEO Name and Principal Salary Bonus  Compensation Granted Compensation
Position Year (%) (%) (%) #) (%)

Edward C. McFeely 2006 143,000 39,000 Nil Nii Nil

Chairman, President & Chief 2005 126,666 25,000 Nil 100,000 Nil

Executive Officer 2004 60,0007 10,000 Nil 290,000 Nil

David E. Blain 2006 Nil 23,000 98,078 80,000 Nil

Chief Financial Officer'” 2005 Nil 10,000 87,461 80,000 Nil

2004 Nil Nil 52,936 20,000 Nil

Shawn D. McDonald 2006 126,500 Nil 34,5001 100,000 Nil

Vice President, Land™ 2005 110,000 15,000 Nil 50,000 Nil

2004 66,667 10,000 42,1759 90,000 Nil
Keith Wilford 2006 Nil Nil 172,495® 100,060 Nil
Vice President, Operations "’ 2005 Nil Nil 136,725® 50,000 Nil
2004 Nil Nil 19,663““ 150,000 Nil
George Hassler 2006 126,500 34,500 Nil 100,000 Nil
Vice President, Exploration® 2005 110,000 25,000 Nil 50,000 Nil
2004 83,333 60,000 Nil 150,000 Nil

Notes:

n Mr. McFeely was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer of the corporation on January 23, 2004, Prior to that Mr.
McFeely was the Senior Vice President Oil & Gas.

2) Mr, McFeely worked on a full time basis from January 1, 2004 until July 1, 2004 without any cash compensation. His 2004
salary represents salary eamed from July 1, 2004 to December 31, 2004,

3) David E. Blain was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation on July 19, 2005 and retired March 25, 2007,

4) Represents fees paid pursuant to a consulting agreement with a company controlled by Mr. Blain.

5 On May 1, 2004, Shawn McDonald became an employee of the Corporation. Prior to May 1, 2004 Mr. McDonald was retained
as a consultant and performed the duties normally vested in the office of Corporate Secretary and Chief Financial Officer,
including the certification of financial statements. He was appointed Vice President, Land on May 25, 2005, ceased to be the
Chief Financial Officer on July 19, 2005 and resigned as Corporate Secretary on February 15, 2006. Mr. McDonald resigned as
Vice President, Land on March 16, 2007 and was appointed Chief Financial Officer on April 5, 2007.

6) Represents fees paid to a company controlled by Mr. McDonald.

(N Mr. Wilford was appointed Vice President, Operations October 31, 2004,

(8) Represents fees paid to a company controlled by Mr. Wilford.

(%) Mr. Hassler was appointed Exploration Manager March 1, 2004 and Vice President, Exploration on May 25, 2005,

Stock Option Plan

The Corporation has adopted a stock option pian (the “Stock Option Plan”) for directors, officers, employees and
consultants and other eligible service providers of the Corporation and of its subsidiaries and affiliates. The
purpose of the Stock Option Plan is to advance the intercsts of the Corporation by encouraging the directors,
officers, employees and consultants, and other eligible service providers of the Corporation, and its subsidiaries
and affiliates, to acquire Common Shares of the Corporation, thereby increasing their proprietary interest in the
Corporation, encouraging them to remain associated with the Corporation and furnishing them with additional
incentive in their efforts on behalf of the Corporation in the conduct of its affairs.
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The aggregate number of Common Shares to be delivered upon the exercise of all stock options granted
thereunder is limited to 10% of the Corporation’s issued and outstanding Common Shares at the date of grant.
Options granted are non-assignable and non-transferable and, if not exercised, will expire on the earlier of: (i) the
expiry date of the options which shall not exceed 10 years; (ii) 6 months from the date that the optionee ceases to
be a director, officer or service provider to the Carporation by reason of death, disability, retirement, or in other
discretionary circumstances such that an adjustment of the option exercise period is approved by the Directors;
(iii) immediately on the date the opticnee ceases to be a director, officer or service provider by reason of
termination for cause; and (iv) 30 days from the date the optionee ceases to be a director, officer or service
provider to the Corporation for any other reason.

Options may be granted under the Stock Option Plan with no vesting provisions at an exercise price as sct by the
directors of the Corporation, from time to time, subject to the limitations of any stock exchange on which the
Common Shares are listed. In no event shall such exercise price be lower than the exercise price permitted by the
TSX Venture Exchange (the “Exchange™).

The Stock Option Plan has been approved by the holders of Common Shares and complies with the rules of the
Exchange relating to the exercise price of stock options. Other than the Stock Option Plan the Corporation has no
other long term incentive, benefit or actuarial plans in place. The Corporation also does not currently have a stock
appreciation rights plan for its employees.

As of the date of this Circular, the Corporation has cutstanding options to purchase 3,090,701 Common Shares
Corporation and there remain 149,917 Common Shares eligible for stock options under the Stock Option Plan. A
copy of the full text of the Corporation’s Stock Option Plan has been attached as Schedule “A”.

Stock Options Granted and Exercised

The following table sets forth information concerning options granted to the Named Executive Officers during the
financial year ended December 31, 2006.

Option Grants During 2006

Percent of Market Value
Total of Securities
Securities, Options Undertying
Under Granted to Exercise Options on
Options Employees in or the Date of
Granted Financial Base Price Grant Expiration
NEQO Name # Year ($/Security) ($/Security) Date
Edward C. McFecely Nil 0% n/a /a n/a
Chairman, President & Chief
Executive Officer
David E. Blain 80,000 11.28% 1.65 1.65 May 2, 2007
Chief Financial Officer
Shawn D. McDonald 33,334 4.7% 1.65 1.65  Feb. 16, 2011
Vice President Land 33,333 4.7% 1.65 1.65  Feb. 16,2012
33,333 4.7% 1.65 1.65  Feb. 16, 2013
Keith Wilford 33,334 4.7% 1.65 1.65  Feb. 16,2011
Vice President, Operations 33,333 4.7% 1.65 1.65 Feb. 16, 2012
33,333 4.7% 1.65 1.65  Feb. 16, 2013




Percent of Market Value

Total of Securities
Securities, Options Underlying
Under Granted to Exercise Options on
Options Employees in or the Date of
Granted Financial Base Price Grant Expiration
NEQ Name # Year (8/Security) {$/Security) Date
George Hassler 33,334 4.7% 1.65 1.65  Feb. 16,2011
Vice President, Exploration 33,333 4.7% 1.65 1.65 Feb. 16, 2012
33,333 4.7% 1.65 1.65  Feb. 16,2013

Option Exercises During 2006 and December 31, 2006 Option Values

The following table sets forth information concemning the numbers and values of options exercised during the year
ended December 31, 2006 and the numbers and accrued values of unexercised options as at December 31, 2006.

Securities Aggregate Unexercised Yalue of Unexercised
Acquired Value Options at In-the-Money Options at
On Exercise Realized December 31, 2006 December 31, 2006
NEO Name #) (O # $®
Exercisable Unexercisable [Exercisable Unexercisable

Edward C. McFeely 40,000 20,000 376,667 33,333 157,167 8,333

David E. Blain 20,000 10,000 100,002 79,998 22,334 6,667

Shawn McDonald Nil Nil 216,668 83,332 78,834 4,167

Keith Wilford Nil Nil 216,668 83,332 60,834 4,167

George Hassler Nil Nil 216,668 83,332 75,334 4167

Note:

(1) The aggregate value realized has been determined by subtracting the exercise price of the options from the closing price of the
Common Shares on December 29, 2006 of $1.50, as reported by the Exchange, and multiplying the number of Common Shares
that were acquired upon the exercise of the options.

(2) The value of the unexercised “in-the-money” options has been determined by subtracting the exercise price of the options from

the closing price of the Common Shares on December 29, 2006 of $1.50, as reported by the Exchange, and multiplying the
number of Common Shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of the options.

Executive Employment Contracts and Change in Control Arrangements

Mr. Edward McFeely, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer has entered into an employment
agreement with the Corporation. Pursuant to the terms of the employment agreement, Mr. McFeely is entitled to:
(i) an annual base salary, (ii) receive or participate in all employee group benefit plans, (iii) receive a parking stall
and (iv) the granting from time to time of stock options. In the event of termination of employment by the
Corporation without just cause, Mr. McFeely is entitled to a sum of money equal to the amount of the executive’s
then current annualized base salary, and all outstanding stock options held by the executive as at the date of
termination which have vested, may be exercised within 30 days from termination. In the event of termination of
employment by the Corporation on a change of control of the Corporation, Mr. McFeely is entitled to a sum of
meney equal to the amount of the executive’s then current annualized base salary, and all outstanding stock
options held by the executive as at the date of termination will vest and may be exercised within 30 days from a
change in control. See “Executive Compensation” and the notes thereto.




Mr. David Blain, Chief Financial Officer, cntered into a consulting agreement effective July 19, 2005 and
performed the functions associated with his office of Chief Financial Officer for the Corporation, through a
company controlled by Mr. Blain. This agreement was amended on February 16, 2006 and again effective July 1,
2006. Inthe event of termination of employment by the Corporation without just cause, Mr. Blain was entitted to
$77,500 and all outstanding stock options held by the executive as at the date of termination which have vested,
may be exercised within 30 days from termination. In the event of termination of employment by the Corporation
on a change of control of the Corporation, Mr. Blain was entitled to a sum of money equal to the amount of
$77,500, and all outstanding stock options held by the executive as at the date of termination will vest and may be
exercised within 30 days from a change in control. This agreement was terminated upon Mr. Blain’s retirement
on March 25, 2007. See “Executive Compensation™ and the notes thereto.

Mr. Shawn D. McDonald, Vice President, Land, was a full time ecmployee during 2006 and resigned effective
March 16, 2007. Mr. McDonald provided additional land consulting services to the Corporation through a
company controlled by Mr. McDonald from March 17, 2007 to April 4, 2007. On April 5, 2007, the Corporation
entered into a consulting agreement with this company through which Mr. McDonald performs the functions
associated with his office of Chief Financial Officer. This contract may be terminated without just cause or on a
change of control with two weeks notice and Mr. McDonald is not entitled to any further payments. In the event
of termination without just cause, all cutstanding stock options held by the executive as at the date of termination
which have vested, may be exercised within 30 days from termination. In the event of termination on a change of
control of the Corporation, all outstanding stock options held by the executive as at the date of termination will
vest and may be exercised within 30 days from termination. See “Execcutive Compensation” and the notes thereto.

Mr. Keith Wilford, Vice President, Operations entered into consulting agreement effective November 1, 2004, and
is performing the functions associated with his office of a Vice President, Operations through a company
controlled by Mr. Wilford. This agreement was amended on February 16, 2006 and again effective July 1, 2006.
In the event of termination of this contract by the Corporation without just cause, Mr. Wilford is entitled to a
termination payment of $115,000, and all outstanding stock options held by the executive as at the date of
termination which have vested, may be exercised within 30 days from termination. In the event of termination of
this contract by the Corporation on a change of control of the Corporation, Mr. Wilford is entitled to a termination
payment of $115,000, and all outstanding stock options held by the executive as at the date of termination will
vest and may be exercised within 30 days from a change in control. See “Executive Compensation™ and the notes
thereto.

Mr. George Hassler, Vice President, Exploration has entered into an employment agreement with the Corporation
effective March 1, 2004 and became Vice President, Exploration on May 25, 2005. Pursuant to the terms of the
cmployment agreement, Mr. Hassler is entitled to; (i) an annual base salary, (ii) receive or participate in all
employee proup benefit plans, (iii) receive a parking stall and (iv) the granting from time to time of stock options.
In the event of termination of employment by the Corporation without just cause, Mr. Hassler is entitled to a sum
of money equal to the amount of the executive’s then current annualized base salary, and all outstanding stock
options held by the executive as at the date of termination which have vested, may be exercised within 30 days
from termination. In the event of termination of employment by the Corporation on a change of control of the
Corporation, Mr. Hassler is entitled to a sum of money equal to the amount of the executive’s then current
annualized base salary, and all outstanding stock options held by the executive as at the date of termination will
vest and may be exercised within 30 days from a change in control. See “Executive Compensation” and the notes
thereto.

Compensation of Directors

Mr. McFeely was the only director that was an officer of the Corporation during 2006 and received no
compensation in his capacity as director. Sec “Executive Compensation”. Each non-employee director received a
fee of one thousand dollars ($1,000) per month from January 1, 2006 to June 30, 2006 and twelve hundred dollars
($1,200) per month from July 1,2006 to December 31, 2006 for each month they were a director in 2006 and were




also eligible to be granted options. The following table sets out the cash compensation and stock option grants to
the non-employee directors of the Corporation:

Director Cash Compensation Options Exercise Price
Thomas S. Bamford $13.200 50,000 $1.65
Kenneth H. Hayes $13,200 50,000 $1.65
Brian H. Gore $13,200 50,000 $1.65
W.J. McNaughton $13,200 50,000 $1.65

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

Under the Corporation’s current Stock Option Plan, the Board may from time to time designate directors, officers,
employees of, or providers of services to the Corporation to whom options to purchase Common Shares may be
granted. The Stock Option Plan the security holders are being asked to approve does not change the information
set out below.,

Number of securities
to be issued upon
exercise of
outstanding options,

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issuance
under equity

Plan Category warrants and rights  warrants and rights  compensation plans
Equity compensation ptans approved by 3,090,701 $1.31 149,917
security holders
Equity compensation plans not approved by Nil Nil Nil
security holders
Total 3,090,701 $1.31 149,917

Indebtedness of Directors and Executive Officers

No officer, director, employee or consultant of the Corporation is indebted to the Corporation at the datc hereof
nor is any indebtedness of any of the foregoing the subject of a guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or
other similar arrangement or understanding provided by the Corporation except in respect of the following share
purchase loan outstanding to one non-officer employee.

Purpose

To the Corporation To Another Entity

Share Purchase Loan $47.,500 Nil

The loan described above totalling $47,500 has been amended as of March 1, 2007 to increase the term by one
year to nine years, bear interest payable at the Corporation’s borrowing rate at 5%, requires interest only payments
for an additional year to February 28, 2008 and remains limited recourse to the shares of the Corporation held as
security,




Indebtedness of Directors and Executive Officers Under Securities Purchase Programs

As of the date hereof, no director, officer or any associate of any director or officer of the Corporation was
indebted to the Corporation, nor is any indebtedness of any of the foregoing the subject of a guarantee, support
agreement, letter of credit or other similar arrangement or understanding provided by the Corporation.

Management Contracts

No management functions of the Corporation are to any substantial degree performed other than by the directors
or executive officers of the company. See “Executive Contracts and Change of Control Arrangements”

Interest Of Informed Persons In Material Transactions

No informed person, director, officer or insider of the Corporation or member of management had an interest in
any material transaction with the Corporation during the period ended December 31, 2006 or in any proposed
transaction which has materially affected or which could materially affect the Corporation.

BUSINESS OF THE MEETING

Receipt of Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report

The audited financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2006 of the Corporation have been
forwarded to Shareholders and are available on the System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval
(“SEDAR™) which can be accessed at www.sedar.com, With the delivery requirements of the Business
Corporations Act (Alberta) being met with the advance circulation of such financial statements, no formal action
will be taken at the Meeting to approve the financial statements, If any Sharcholders have questions respecting
the December 31, 2006 financial statements, the questions may be brought forward at the Meeting.

Appointment of Auditor

Shareholders will be asked to vote for the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP, (“Deloitte”)Chartered
Accountants of Calgary, Alberta as auditors until the close of the next annual meeting, and remuneration to be
fixed by the Board of Directors. Deloitte have been the auditor for the Corporation since January 27, 2006 for the
ycars ended December 31, 2005 and 2006. During the last two years, Deloitte received the following fees from
the Corporation:

Financial Year Ended Audit Fees Audit Related Fees Tax Fees All Other Fees
December 31, 2006 $39,000" $10,000 $1,000 $14,480%
December 31, 2005 $33,500" Nil Nil §3,975%

Notes:

(1} The Audit Fees plus a 2% administrative fee plus expenses.

2) The 2006 All Other Fees were paid for reading quarterly financials and Internal Centrol formulation and implementation matters.
3) The 2005 All Other Fees were paid to BDO Dunwoody LLP, Charter Accountants for reading the quarterly financials and other

related services.

The resolution appointing auditors must be passed by a simple majority of the votes cast with respect to the
resolution by Sharcholders present in person or by proxy at the Meeting. It is the intention of the persons
named in the enclosed Instrument of Proxy, if not expressly directed otherwise in such Instrument of




Proxy, to vote such proxies FOR the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as auditors of the
Corporation.

Election of Directors

Pursuant to the Corporation’s articles of incorporation, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) may consist of a
minimum of threc and a maximum of seven directors. There are currently five directors and management
proposes to maintain the number of directors at five,

The following table sets forth all of the persons proposed by management to be nominated for election as
directors, together with all positions and offices with the Corporation now held by them, their principal
occupations for the previous five years, the periods during which they have served as directors of the Corporation,
and the number of Common Shares of the Corporation beneficiaily owned, directly or indirectly, by each of them,
or over which they exercise control or direction.

Present Principal Occupation
and Positions Held During the
Last Five Years

Number of Securities of the
Corporation

Name, Position with the

Corporation Director Since

Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer of the
Corporation

Edward C. McFeely %2 June, 2001
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Calgary, Alberta, Canada

5,213,960 Common Shares

Thomas S. Bamford*3%* Independent Businessman since  August 24, 2004 335,000 Commen Shares
Director 1995
Calgary, Alberta, Canada
Brian H. Gore” Independent Businessman since  January 29, 2004 225,000 Common Shares
Director 2003; Chairman & CEOQ. Pivotal
Calgary, Alberta, Canada Energy Ltd. 2002 to 2003,
President, CEQ., & Chairman
Cigar Oil & Gas Ltd. 1998 to
2002
Kenneth H. Hayes {"¥** CEQ, Wilderness Energy Corp.  January 29, 2004 132,700 Common Shares
Director since 2001,
Calgary, Alberta, Canada
W.J. McNaughton™ Director  Independent Businessman since  May 10, 2004 15,000 Common Shares
Calgary, Alberta, Canada 1999
Notes:
() Member of the Reserves Committee, Thomas Bamford is Chairman.
(2) Member of the Compensation Committee, Brian Gore is Chairman,
3 Member of Audit Committee, W.J. McNaughton is Chairman.
4) The information as to the number of Common Shares beneficially owned and controlled has been fumished by the directors.
(5) In 1997, Mr. Bamford joined the board as a director of Ablevest Holdings Ltd. (“Ablevest”). Ablevest had been suspended from

trading since September 16, 1996. During the course of its suspension, Ablevest was advised by the Alberta Stock Exchange
(“ASE") that a reactivation plan would have 1o be implemented and its minimum listing requirements achieved or Ablevest
would be delisted. As part of this reactivation plan a series of asset sales and financing transactions were attempted during 1597
and 1998. Some of these transactions were completed but others were not. By March 1998, it became apparent that new
financing alternatives to finalize a reactivation plan would not be forthcoming given the overall downturn in the oil and gas
industry that had commenced in December 1997, In light of these circumstances, Ablevest entered into an amalgamation
agreement with Temba Resources Ltd., which, subsequent to shareholder approval of both corporations, resulted in an
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amalgamated publicly traded corporation under the name “Westlinks Resources Ltd.” in June 1998. Westlinks Resources Ltd.
went on to become Enterta Energy Corp.

It is the intention of the persons named in the enclosed Instrument of Proxy, if not expressly directed
otherwise in such Instrument of Proxy, to vote such proxies FOR the nominees for directors as set out
above. Each director elected will hold office until the close of the next annual meeting or until his successor is
duly elected or appointed, unless his office is earlier vacated.

Stock Option Plan

The Exchange requires all listed companies with a 10% rolling stock option plan to obtain annual shargholder
approval of such plan. Shareholders will be asked at the Meeting to vote on a resolution to reaffirm for the
ensuing year, the Corporation’s Stock Option Plan as attached hereto as Schedule “A” and which has been
approved by the Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors. See “Compensation of Executive Officers
-Stock Option Plan” for a full description of the Stock Option Plan.

As at the date hereof, the Corporation has outstanding options to purchase 3,090,701 Common Shares of the
Corporation. At the Meeting, shareholders will be asked to approve the following resolution:

“BE IT RESOLVED THAT thc 10% rolling incentive Stock Option Plan, attached to
the Information Circular as Schedule “A” as approved by the Compensation Committee
and the Board of Directors be and is hereby approved for the ensuing year; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT any officer or director of the Corporation be
and each of them is hereby authorized, for and on behalf of the Corporation, to execute
and deliver such other documents and instruments and take such other actions as such
officer or director may determine to be necessary or advisable to implement this
resolution and the matters authorized hereby, such determination to be conclusively
evidenced by the execution and delivery of any such documents or instruments and the
taking of any such action.”

It is the intention of the persons named in the enclosed Instrument of Proxy, if not expressly directed
otherwise in such Instrument of Proxy, to vote such proxies FOR the approval of the Option Plan.

OTHER MATTERS

Management knows of no amendment, variation or other matter to come before the Meeting other than the matters
referred to in the Notice of Annual General Meeting accompanying this Circular. However, if any other matter
propetly comes before the Meeting, the accompanying proxy will be voted on such matter in accordance with the
best judgment of the person or persons voting the proxy.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURE

Corporate governance relates to the activities of the Board of Directors, the members of which are elected by and
arc accountable to the sharcholders, and takes into account the role of the individual members of management
who are appointed by the Board of Directors and who are charged with the day to day management of the
Corporation. The Board of Directors are committed to sound corporate governance practices which are both in
the interest of its sharcholders and contribute to cffective and efficient decision making. The Board of Directors
expects management to operate the business of the Corporation in a manner that enhances sharcholder value and is
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consistent with the highest level of integrity. Management is expected to execute the Corporation’s business plan
and to meet performance goals and objectives.

The Board of Directors is of the view that the Corporation’s general approach to corporate governance,
summarized below, is appropriate and in the circumstances substantially consistent with objectives reflected in the
guidelines for improved corporate governance in Canada.

Set forth below is a description of the Corporation’s current corporate governance practices, as prescribed by
National Instrument 58-101-Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices. Exchange Policy 3.1-Directors,
Officers and Corporate Governance requires Tier | issuers to comply with the requirements of Form NI 58-
101F1. The requirements of Form NI 58-101F1 are set out below in italics.

Board of Directors
Disclose the directors who are independent

The Board of Directors’ determination as to cach director’s independence is made with reference to
definitions under applicable securities laws and stock exchange regulations. The Board of Directors is
currently composed of five directors, four of which are not members of management. The Board of
Directors considers Thomas S. Bamford, Kenneth H. Hayes, Brian H. Gore and W.J. McNaughton to be
independent directors.

Disclose the identity of directors who are nat independent, and describe the basis for that determination.

The Board of Directors does not consider Edward C. McFeely to be an independent director. The Board
of Dircctors considers Mr, McFeely not to be independent by virtue of his being the President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Corporation. Currently, the majority of directors of the Corporation are
considered independent.

Directorships

If a director is presently a director of any other issuer that is a reporting issuer (or the equivalent) in a
Jurisdiction or a foreign jurisdiction, identify both the director and the other issuer.

The following directors of the Corporation are presently directors of other reporting issuers.

Name of Director Name of Reporting Issuer

W.J. McNaughton International Frontier Resources Corp. ‘"
Notes:
H Listed on the TSX Venture Exchange

Disclose whether or not the independent directors hold regularly scheduled meetings at which non-independent
directors and members of management are not in attendance. If the independent directors hold such meetings,
disclose the number of meetings held since the beginning of the issuer’s most recently completed financial year. If
the independent directors do not hold such meetings, describe what the board does 1o facilitate open and candid
discussion among its independent directors.

The independent directors do not hold meetings at which non-independent directors and members of
management are not in attendance. The Board of Directors facilitates open and candid discussion among
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its independent directors by inviting management and non-independent directors to leave meetings as
required.

Disclose whether or not the chair of the board is an independent director. If the Board has a chair or lead
director who is an independent director, disclose the identity of the independent chair or lead director, and
describe his or her role and responsibilities. If the board has neither a chair that is independent nor a lead
director that is independent, describe what the board does to provide leadership for its independent directors.

Edward C. McFeely is the chair of the Board of Directors and is not considered an independent director.
The Board provides leadership for its independent directors by ensuring that each committee is chaired by
an independent director.

Disclose the attendance record of each director for all board meetings held since the beginning of the issuer’s
most recently completed financial year.

Name of Director Meetings Attended/Meetings Held
Thomas S. Bamford 4/5
Kenneth H. Hayes 5/5
Brian H. Gore 5/5
W.J. McNaughton 5/5
Edward C. McFeely 5/5
Board Mandate

Disclose the text of the board's written mandare. If the board does not have a written mandate, describe how the
board delineates its role and responsibilities.

The Board has a broad responsibility for supervising the management of the business and affairs of the
Corporation. Formal position descriptions for the Board have not been implemented. The Board
delineates its role and responsibility by exercising it’s collective experienced judgment while considering
the statutory requirements, the nature of the business conducted by the Corporation and the education and
business experience of each particular member of the Board.

Position Descriptions

Disclose whether or not the board has developed written position descriptions for the chair and the chair of each
board committee. If the board has not developed wrinen position descriptions for the chair and/or the chair of
each board committee, briefly describe how the board delineates the role and responsibilities of each such
position.

The Board has not developed formal written descriptions for the Chair and the chair of each of the Audit,
Reserves and Compensation Committee. The primary role of the chair of each committee is managing
the affairs of the committee, including ensuring the committee is organized properly, functions effectively
and meets its obligations and responsibilities in a timely fashion. The Chair of both the Audit and the
Reserves Committee also maintain on-going communication with the Corporation’s external auditors in
order to lead the commiitee in performing its oversight and other audit-related functions.
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Disclose whether or not the board and CEQ have developed a written position description for the CEQ. If the
board and CEQ have not developed such a position description, briefly describe how the board delineates the role
and responsibilities of the CEQ.

A formmal position description for the CEO has not been implemented. The CEO is responsible for the
overall management of the Corporation including directly supervising the senior management team. The
Board provides the CEO with direction at regularly scheduled directors meetings.

Orientation and Continuing Education

Describe what steps the board takes to orient new board members, and describe any measures the board takes to
provide continuing education for directors.

The Board is composed of experienced corporate directors. Orientation is carried out through an initial
meeting with management including a disclosure of material contracts, current financial position,
insurance coverage, personnel and compensation. This is followed up with the delivery of relevant
information relating to the Corporation and its governance, compiled by the Corporate Secretary.

Due to the size of the Corporation's Board of Directors, no formal program currently exists for the
orientation of new directors, other existing directors provide orientation and education to new members
on an informal and ad hoc basis. No formal continuing education program currently exists for the
directors of the Corporation; however, the Corporation encourages directors to attend, enrol or participate
in courses and/or seminars dealing with financial literacy, corporate governance and related matters and
has agreed to pay the cost of such courses and seminars. Each director of the Corporation has the
responsibility for ensuring that he maintains the skill and knowledge necessary to meet his obligations as
a director,

Ethical Business Conduct
Describe what steps the Board of Directors takes to encourage and promote a culture of ethical business conduct.

The Board of Directors has also adopted a “Whistleblower Policy” wherein employees and consultants of
the Corporation are provided with a mechanism by which they can raise concerns in a confidential,
anonymous process.

In addition the Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.
Nomination of Directors

Describe what steps, if any, are taken to identify new candidates for board nomination, including (i) who
identifies new candidates and; (ii) the process of identifying new candidates.

Pursuant to the mandate of the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors has responsibility for selecting
nominees for election to the Board of Directors. At present, the Board of Directors does not have a
process by which the Board of Directors identifies new candidates for Board nomination but rather the
identification of new candidates is done on an informal and ad hoc basis. The nominees are generally the
result of recruitment efforts by Board members, including both formal and informal discussions among
Board members and the President and Chief Executive Officer.

Compensation

Disclose what steps, if any, are taken to determine compensation for the directors and CEQ, including (i} who
determines compensation; and (ii) the process of determining compensation.
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The Corporation’s compensation policies ar¢ founded on the principle that executive and employee
compensation should be consistent with Shareholders' interests and therefore, the compensation strategy
is significantly weighted towards a stock ownership compensation strategy. The objectives of the
program are to attract and retain a high quality management and employee team and to motivate
performance by tying a significant portion of the compensation to enhancement in share value. The Board
of Director’s as a whole considered the compensation of the Board through cash compensation and
incentive stock options. The directors considered and approved cash compensation payable to unrelated
directors only, based upon the required time commitments, the changing regulatory regime, and the
responsibilities and risks undertaken by unrelated directors.

Compensation Comniittee

The Compensation Committee is responsible for reviewing overall compensation strategy, objectives and
policies; annually reviewing and assessing the performance of senior officers; recommending to the
Board of Directors the compensation of senior officers; reviewing executive appointments; and
recommending the adequacy and form of directors’ compensation. This Committee meets at least once
annually. Currently, the members of the Compensation Committee include Brian H. Gore (Chair),
Kenneth H. Hayes and Edward C. McFeely.

Other Board Committees

If the board has stunding committees other than the audit, compensation and nominating committees, identify the
committees and describe their function.

Given the size and nature of the Corporation, most matters are dealt with by the complete Board of
Directors, with the exception of the Audit Committee. Committees are established to devote the
necessary expertise and resources to particular areas, and to enhance the quality of discussion at Board of
Directors meetings. The Committees facilitate effective Board decision making by providing
recommendations to the Board on matters within their respective responsibilities. The Board believes
that the Committees assist in the effective functioning of the Board and that the composition of the
Committces should ensure that the views of unrelated and independent directors are effectively
represented, A summary of the responsibilitics and activities and the membership of each of the Audit
and Reserves Committees is set out below, while information concerning the Compensation Committee is
set out above.

Audit Commitiee

The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities relating to the Corporation’s
accounting and reporting practices. The Audit Committee is responsible for ensuring that management
has established appropriate processes for monitaring the Corporation’s systems and procedures for
financial reporting and controls, reviewing all financial information in disclosure documents; monitoring
the performance and fees and expenses of the Corporation’s external auditors and recommending external
auditors for appointment by shareholders. The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
Corporation’s quarterly and annual financial statements prior to approval by the full Board of Directors
and release to the public. Currently, the members of the Audit Committee include W.J. McNaughton
(Chair), Thomas S. Bamford and Kenneth H. Hayes. The Audit Committee has adopted a prior approval
policy for the engagement of non-audit services with the Auditors.

Reserves Commitiee

The Reserves Committee has responsibility for carrying out an independent review of the annual reserve
data of the Corporation, including the appointment of the Corporation’s independent engineers.  This
Committee meets at least quarterly. The Reserves Committee monitors the process management uses to
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provide the independent evaluators with the Corporation’s well production data, the principal risks
associated with the evaluation of the Corporation’s petroleurn and natural gas reserves and reviews the
assumptions used and information provided o the independent engineering consultants, Currently, the
members of the Reserves Committee includes Thomas S. Bamford (Chair), Kenneth H. Hayes and
Edward C. McFeely.

Assessment

Disclose whether or not the board, its committees and individual directors are regularly assessed with respect to
their effectiveness and contribution. If assessments are regularly conducted, describe the process used for the
assessmenis. If assessments are not regularly conducted, describe how the board satisfies itself that the board, its
committees, and its individual directors are performing effectively.

The Board of Directors monitors, but does not yet formally assess the performance of individual Board
members or committee members or their contributions.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information relating to the Corporation may be obtained from SEDAR (the System for Electronic
Document Analysis and Retrieval) at www.sedar.com. Financial information is provided in the Corporation’s
comparative audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006 and the related
management’s discussion and analysis.

Copies of those financial statements and management's discussion and analysis may be requested from Shawn
McDonald, the Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation, at 1600, 444 - 5 Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta,
T2P 2T8, telephone (403) 262-8666 or by e-mail at smcdonald@grandbanksenergy.com. They are also
available on SEDAR or from the Corporation’s website at http://www.grandbanksenergy.com.
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CERTIFICATE

The foregoing contains no untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a material fact that is
required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misteading in light of the circumstances in which
it was made.
The contents of this Circular have been approved by the Board of Directors.
DATED April 26, 2007
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(signed) “F. C. (Ted) McFeely”

E. C. (Ted) McFeely, Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer

17




SCHEDULE "A" to the Information Circular
Of Grand Banks Energy Corporation

STOCK OPTION PLAN
1. Definitions

Unless otherwise defined herein or the context otherwise requires, capitalized terms used have the
meaning ascribed to them in the TSX Venture Exchange (“TSX-V™) Policy 4 4.

2, Purpose of Plan

The purpose of the Stock Option Plan (the “Plan™) is to assist Grand Banks Energy Corporation (“Grand
Banks”) in attracting, retaining and motivating directors, key officers, employees, consultants and advisors of
Grand Banks and its subsidiaries, (in this Plan the term “Grand Banks” will be deemed to include subsidiaries
except where the context does not permit) and to closely align the personal interest of the directors, officers and
employees with those of the sharcholders by providing them with the opportunity, through options, to acquire
Common Shares (“Common Shares”) of Grand Banks.

3. Implementation

All aspects of the Plan are subject to compliance with the requirements of each stock exchange on which
the shares of Grand Banks are listed (a “Stock Exchange”) and of any governmental authority or other regulatory
body, to which Grand Banks is subject.

4, Administration

The Plan will be administered by the board of directors of Grand Banks (the “Directors”) which has final
authority and discretion, subject to the express provisions of the Plan, to interpret the Plan, to prescribe, amend
and rescind rules and regulations relating to it and to make all other determinations deemed necessary or advisable
for the administration of the Plan including the imposition of vesting provisions.

5. Eligibility

Options may be granted under the Plan to such directors, officers, employees, consultants and advisors of
Grand Banks as the Directors may designate as participants (the “Participants”), subject to the limitations set
forth in sections 6 and 7. The total number of Common Shares made available under the Plan (the “Optioned
Shares™), the time or times and price or prices at which options may be granted, the time or times at which
options are exercisable and any conditions or restrictions on the exercise of options shall be in the full and final
discretion of the Directors, subject to any limitations contained herein,

6. Number of Shares Under Plan

The number of authorized but unissued Common Shares that may be issued upon the exercise of options
granted under the Plan at any time, plus the number of Common Shares reserved for issuance under outstanding
incentive stock options otherwise granted by Grand Banks shall not exceed 10% of the issued and outstanding
Common Shares on a non-diluted basis at any time, and such aggregate number of Common Shares shall increase
or decrease as the number of issued and outstanding Common Shares changes.

However, the following additional restrictions apply:

(a) the maximum number of Common Shares that may be reserved for issuance to any one eligible
person pursuant to options granted under the Plan is five percent of the number of Common




Shares outstanding at the time of reservation, unless disinterested shareholder approval is
obtained;

(b) no more than two percent of the issued Common Shares of Grand Banks may be granted to any
one Consultant in a 12 month period and if the Consultant is conducting Investor Relations
Activities, no more than % of such cpttons may vest in any three month period;

() no more than an aggregate of two percent of the issued Common Shares of Grand Banks may be
granted to an Employee conducting Investor Relations Activities, in any 12 month period; and

(d) if option rights granted to an individual under the Plan in respect of certain Optioned Shares
expirc or terminate for any reason without having becn exercised, such Optioned Shares may be
made available for other options to be granted under the Plan.

Any Common Shares subject to an option that expire or terminate without having been fully exercised
may be made subject to a further option. No fractional Common Shares may be issued under the Plan.

7. Limits with Respect to Insiders

For the purposes of this Section 7, an Insider means:

(a) an insider as defined by the Securities Act (Alberta), other than a person who falls within that
definition solely by virtue of being a director or senior officer of any corporation that is a
subsidiary of Grand Banks as defined in the Securities Act (Alberta); and

(b) an associate, as defined in the Securities Act (Alberta), of any person who is an insider by virtue
of (a) above.

For the purposes of this Section 7, a share compensation arrangement (“Share Compensation
Arrangement”) means any stock option, stock plan, employee stock purchase plan or any other compensation or
incentive mechanism involving the issuance or potential issuance of Common Shares, including a share purchase
from treasury which is financially assisted by Grand Banks by way of a loan, guarantee or otherwise.

For the purposes of this Section 7, holders of non-voting and subordinate voting shares, must be entitled
to vote with the holders of any class of shares of Grand Banks which otherwise carry greater voting rights, on a
basis proportionate to their respective residual equity interests in Grand Banks.

For the purposes of this Section 7, any entitlement to acquire Common Shares granted pursuant to the
Plan or any other Share Compensation Arrangement prior to the grantec becoming an Insider is to be excluded.
For the purposes of this section 7, the number of Common Shares outstanding is to be determined on the basis of
the number of Common Shares outstanding at the time of the reservation or issuance, as the case may be,
excluding Common Shares issued under the Plan or under any other Share Compensation Arrangement over the
preceding one-year period.

Subject to this Section 7, the maximum number of Common Shares that may be reserved for issuance to
Insiders pursuant to the Plan and any other previously established or proposed Share Compensation Arrangement
is 10% of the number of Common Shares outstanding.

Subject to this Section 7, the maximum number of Common Shares that may be issued to any Participant

under the Plan and any other previously established or proposed Share Compensation Arrangement within a
one-year period is 10% of the number of Common Shares outstanding.

A-2




Subject to this Section 7, the maximum number of Common Shares that may be issued to any one Insider
under the Plan and any other previously established or proposed Share Compensation Arrangement within a
one-year period is 5% of the number of Common Shares outstanding.

If a proposed Share Compensation Arrangement, together with all of Grand Banks’ other previously
established or proposed Share Compensation Arrangements, could result, at any time, in the number of shares
reserved for issuance pursuant to stock options granted to Insiders exceeding 10% of the outstanding issue or if
Grand Banks seeks to reduce the exercise price or term of an option granted, which benefits an Insider, such Share
Compensation Arrangement, reduction in exercise price or amendment to an option term must be approved by a
majority of the votes cast at the shareholders’ meeting other than votes attaching to securities beneficially owned
by Insiders to whom options may be granted under the Plan or associates of such persons.

8. Terms and Conditions
All options shall be granted upon and subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.
8.1 Exercise Price

The exercise price for each Optioned Share will be determined by the Directors, but will in no event be
less than the Discounted Market Price of the Common Shares on a Stock Exchange on the trading day
immediately prior to the grant of the option (or, if no trades occurred on such day, then on the next previous day
on which trading took place) less the maximum discount, if any, permitted by the Stock Exchange or such other
price as may be set by the Directors and approved by the Stock Exchange.

Where the exercise price of the stock option is based on the Discounted Market Price, all stock options
and any Listed Shares issucd on the exercise of stock options must be legended with a four month Exchange hold
period commencing on the date the stock options were granted.

In addition, if options are granted within 90 days of a distribution by prospectus, the minimum exercise
price will be the greater of the Discounted Market Price and the price per Common Share paid by the public
investors for the Common Shares under the distribution.

8.2 Option Agreement

All options will be evidenced by means of an agreement (the “Option Agreement™) between Grand
Banks and the Participant, which agreement will define the following terms, vesting period, price and number of
Optioned Shares. Grand Banks shall represent in each Option Agreement that the Participant is a bona fide
director, officer, employee of, consultant or advisor to, Grand Banks.

3.3 Length of Grant and Vesting

The Directors will determine when options granted under the Plan expire, as long as the expiry date
determined by the Directors does not excecd ten years from the grant date, and the period during which the
options may be exercised (vesting) by the Participant.

84 Non-Assignability of Options

An option is not transferable or assignable (whether absolutely or by way of mortgage, pledge or other
charge) by a Participant and may be exercised during the lifetime of the Participant only by such Participant,
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8.5 Right to Postpone Exercise

A Participant shall be entitled to exercise the option at any time during the peried from vesting to expiry
or termination of the options granted.

8.6 Exercise and Payment

An option may be exercised by a Participant or his estate by giving written notice to the Chief Executive
Officer, Transfer Agent, Treasurer, or the Corporate Secretary of Grand Banks specifying the number of Common
Shares in respect of which such option is being exercised, and accompanicd by full payment (by cash or certified
cheque payable to Grand Banks) for the entire exercise price (determined in accordance with the Option
Agreement} multiplied by the number of Optioned Shares specified in the notice. Upon exercise of an option,
Grand Banks shall authorize its transfer agent and registrar to promptly deliver a share certificate in the name of
such Participant.

8.7 Rights of Participants

A Participant shall have no rights whatsocver as a shareholder (including, without limitation, any right to
receive dividends or other distributions therefrom, voting rights, warrants or rights under any rights offering) in
respect of any of the Optioned Shares until the Participant has exercised his option to purchase and the Common
Shares have been duly issued by Grand Banks.

8.8 Amalgamation

In the event of an amalgamation, arrangement or other form of business combination of Grand Banks with
another corporation or other entity which results in the holders of voting securities of that other corporation or
entity holding, in the aggregate, voting securities having attached thereto a number of votes which constitutes, in
the aggregate, more than 50% of the aggregate votes attaching to all outstanding voting securities of Grand Banks
or entity resulting from the business combination (a “Change of Control™) all issued options become exercisable
immediately. In the cvent of a Change of Control transaction which results in Grand Banks being acquired
outright by another entity, Grand Banks may, at its option, require the acceleration of the time for the exercise of
the option rights granted under the Plan and the time for fulfilment of any conditions or restrictions on such
exercise.

8.9 Take over Bid

If, at any time during the period when an option has been granted to a Participant but remains
unexercised, a take over bid as defined in any applicable securities legislation (including an exempt take over bid
other than an exempt take over bid which permits purchases of up to 5% of issued capital per year through the
facilities of a recognized stock exchange) Grand Banks shall provide each Participant with any information that is
in the public domain that it has in its posscssion on a timely basis. The provisions of the Option Agreement
notwithstanding, the vesting time for the exercise of the options will be accelerated to allow the Participam to
excrcise all outstanding options to facilitate the tendering of Common Shares to the take over bid.

8.10  Alteration in Common Shares

If a dilution of value or a reorganization of the Common Shares of Grand Banks occurs by way of a share
dividend, share split, issuance of shares or instruments convertible into Common Shares (other than pursuant to
the Plan) for less than market value, share consolidation, share reclassification, exchange of Common Shares,
recapitalization, amalgamation, merger, consolidation, corporate arrangement, reorganization, liquidation or the
like, the Participant shall be entitled to a pro rata adjustment to the number of Optioned Shares, or to the exercise
price, or both, as shall be appropriate to give proper effect to such event, including to prevent, to the extent
possible, substantial dilution or enlargement of rights granted to Participants under the Plan. In any such event,
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the maximum number of Common Shares available under the Plan shall be appropriately adjusted. 1f because ofa
proposed merger, amalgamation or other corporate arrangement or reorganization, the exchange or replacement of
shares for those in another corporation is imminent, the Directors shall, in a fair and equitable manner, determine
the manner in which all unexercised options shall be treated including, adjustment to the time period for the
exercise of such rights by the Participants. All determinations of the Directors under this paragraph 8.10 shall be
full and final.

8.11 Fermination

(a) If a Participant is dismissed as a director, officer, employee, consultant or advisor by Grand
Banks or by one of its subsidiaries for cause, all unexercised option rights of that Participant
under the Plan shall immediately become terminated and shall lapse notwithstanding the original
term of the option granted to such Participant.

{b) If a Participant resigns or is dismissed as a director, officer, employee, consultant or advisor of
Grand Banks for any reason other than one cnumerated in clause 8.11(a) or 8.12, all uncxercised
option rights of that Participant under the Plan will terminate and lapse thirty (30) days after such
date notwithstanding the original term of the option granted to such Participant,

8.12  Disability or Retirement

If a Participant ceases to be a director, officer, employee, consultant or advisor of Grand Banks as a result
of:

(a) disability or illness preventing the Participant from performing the duties routinely performed by
such Participant;

(b) retirement;
(c) death; or

(d) in other discretionary circumstances such that an adjustment of the option exercise period is
approved by the Directors;

such Participant or his estate shali have the right for a period of six months (or uniil the normal expiry
date of the option rights of such Participant if earlier) from the date of ceasing to be a director, officer, employee,
consultant or advisor to exercise all Optioned Shares of such Participant to the extent they were exercisable on the
date of ceasing to be a director, officer, employee, consultant or advisor. Upon the expiration of such period all
unexercised options of that Participant shall immediately become terminated and shall lapse notwithstanding the
original term of the option granted to such Participant.

9, Amendment and Discontinuance of Plan

The Directors in their sele discretion, but subject to law and regulatory authorities may amend or revise
the terms of the Plan or may discontinue the Plan at any time, provided that no such action may in any manner
adversely affect the rights of a Participant under any options garlier granted to a Participant without the consent of
that Participant. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, disinterested Shareholder approval will be
obtained for any reduction in the exercise price if the Optionee is an Insider of the Issuer at the time of the
proposed amendment.

10. No Further Rights

Nothing contained in the Plan nor in any option gives any Participant any interest or title in or to any
Grand Banks shares or any rights as a sharcholder or any other legal or equitable right against Grand Banks other
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than as set forth in the Plan and pursuant to the exercise of any option, nor shall it confer upon the Participants any
right to continue as a director, officer or employee of Grand Banks.

11. Compliance with Laws

The obligations of Grand Banks to sell Common Shares and deliver share certificates are subject to
compliance by Grand Banks and the Participants with all applicable corporate and securities law, rules and
regulations.
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SCHEDULE "B" to the Information Circular
Of Grand Banks Energy Corporation

Audit Committee Charter

PURPOSE OF THE COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Audit Committee (the “Committee”) of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company
is to provide an open avenue of communication between management, the Company’s independent auditor and
the Board and to assist the Board in its oversight of:

. the integrity, adequacy and timeliness of the company’s financial reporting and disclosure
practices;

. the Company’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements related to financial reporting;
and

. the independence and performance of the Company’s independent auditor.

The Committee shall also perform any other activities consistent with this Charter, the Company’s articles and
governing laws as the Committee or Board deems necessary or appropriate.

The committee shall consist of at lcast three directors. Mcmbers of the Committee shall be appointed by the
Board and may be removed by the Board in its discretion, The members of the Committee shall elect a Chairman
from among their number. A majority of the members of the Committee must not be officers or employees of the
Company or of an affiliate of the Company. The quorum for a meeting of the Committee is a majority of the
members who are not officers or employees of the Company or of an affiliate of the Company. With the
exception of the foregoing quorum requirement, the Committee may determine its own procedures.

The Committee’s role is one of oversight. Management is responsible for preparing the Company’s financial
statements and other financial information and for the fair presentation of the information set forth in the financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). Management is also
responsible for establishing internal controls and procedures and for maintaining the appropriate accounting and
financial reporting principles and policies designed to assure compliance with accounting standards and all
applicable [aws and regulations.

The independent auditor’s responsibility is to audit the Company’s financial statements and provide its opinion,
based on its audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, that the financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with GAAP,

The Cornmittee is responsible for recommending to the Board the independent auditor to be nominated for the
purpose of auditing the company’s financial statements, preparing or issuing an auditor’s report or performing
other audit, review or attest services for the Company, and for reviewing and recommending the compensation of
the independent auditor. The Committee is also directly responsible for the evaluation of and oversight of the
work of the independent auditor. The independent auditor shall report directly to the Committee.

AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITIES
In addition to the foregoing, in performing its oversight responsibilities the Committee shall:
1. Monitor the adequacy of this Charter and recommend any proposed changes to the Board.

2. Review the appointments of the Company’s Chief Financial Officer and any other key financial
executives involved in the financial reporting process.




10.

1.

12.

13.

Review with management and the independent auditor the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
accounting and financial controls and the adequacy and timeliness of its financial reporting processes.

Review with management and the independent auditor the annual financial statements and related
documents and review with management the unaudited quarterly financial statements and related
documents, prior to filing or distribution, including matters required to be reviewed under applicable legal
or regulatory requirements,

Where appropriate and prior to release, review with management any news releases that disclose annual
or interim financial results or contain other significant financial information that has not previously been
released to the public.

Review the Company’s financial reporting and accounting standards and principles and significant
changes in such standards or principals or in their application, including key accounting decisions
affecting the financial statements, alternatives thereto and the rationale for decisions made.

Review the quality and appropriateness of the accounting policies and the clarity of financial information
and disclosure practices adopted by the Company, including consideration of the independent auditor’s
judgment about the quality and appropriateness of the Company’s accounting policies, This review may
include discussions with the independent auditor without the presence of management.

Review with management and the independent auditor significant related party transactions and potential
conflicts of interest.

Pre-approve all non-audit services to be provided to the Company by the independent auditor.

Monitor the independence of the independent auditor by reviewing all relationships between the
independent auditor and the Company and all non-audit work performed for the Company by the
independent auditor.

Establish and review the Company’s procedures for the:

) receipt, retention and treatment of complaints regarding accounting, financial disclosure, internal
controls or auditing matters; and
v confidential, anonymous submission by employees regarding questionable accounting, auditing

and financial reporting and disclosure matters.

Conduct or authorize investigations into any matters that the Committee believes is within the scope of its
responsibilities. The Committee has the authority to retain independent counsel, accountants or other
advisors to assist it, as it considers necessary, 10 carry out its duties, and to set and pay the compensation
of such advisors at the expense of the Company.

Perform such other functions and exercise such other powers as are prescribed from time to time for the
audit committee of a reporting company in Parts 2 and 4 of National Instrument 52-110 of the Canadian
Securities Administrators, the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia) and the articles of the
Company.
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File No. 82-34896

GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT an Annual General Meeting of the holders of Common Shares of Grand
Banks Energy Corporation (the "Corporation”™) will be held at the Petroleum Club, in the Cardium Room, at 319
- 5th Avenue S.W., Calgdry, Alberta on Tuesday June 5, 2007 commencing at 10:30 a.m. (Calgary time) for the
following purposes:

1. to receive the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006 and the auditors® report thereon;
2. to elect directors for the ensuing year;

3. to appoint auditors for the ensuing year and to authorize the directors to fix the auditor’s remuneration;
4. to pass an ordinary resolution reaffirming the Corporation’s stock option plan attached hereto as

Schedule “A”; and

5. to transact such other busingss as may be properly brought before the Meeting, or any adjournment or
postponement thercof.

Specific details of the matters proposed to be put before the Meeting are set forth in the accompanying
Management Information Circular which is deemed to form part of this Notice. Copies of any documents to be
considered, approved, ratified and adopted or authorized will be available at the Meeting and will be available for
inspection prior to June 5, 2007 at the registered and records office of the Corporation at 1600, 444 — 5th Avenue
S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2P 2T8 during normal business hours.

Shareholders are invited to attend the Meeting. Only sharcholders of record at the close of business on May 1,
2007 are entitled to vote at the Meeting, except to the extent that a person has transferred any Common Shares
after that date and the new holder of such shares establishes proper ownership and requests, not later than ten days
before the Meeting, to be included in the list of sharcholders eligible to vote at the Meeting.

Shareholders who are unable to attend the Meeting in person may appoint a proxy to attend and vote on their
behalf. If you are unable to attend the Mceting in person, you are requested to date, sign and return the
accompanying form of proxy for use at the Mceting or any adjournment thereof. To be effective, forms of proxy
must be received not later than forty-eight (48) hours, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and hotidays, prior to the
Meeting orany adjournment thereof by Global Corporate Compliance, 850 505 — 3" Street S.W., Calgary, Alberta
T2P 3Eé.

Dated at the City of Calgary, in the Province of Alberta this 26" day of April, 2007.
By Order of the Board
{signed) “E. C. {Ted) McFeely"

E. C. (Ted) McFeely, Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer




File No. 82-34896

Grand Banks Energy Corporation
(the “Corporation”)

Financial Statement Request Form
To the Shareholders:

In accordance with NI 51-102, Continuous Disclosure Obligations, an issuer is no longer
required to send annual or interim financial statements to its shareholders. This form is to be
used by the shareholder to request a copy of the Issuer’s financial statemenis and Management
Discussion and Analysis.

The Canadian Securities Administration recognizes that developments in information technology
allow companies to disseminate documents to security holders and investors in a more timely
and cost efficient manner than by traditional paper methods. In cases where the method of
delivery is not mandated by legislation, documents may be delivered by electronic means if the
recipient provides consent to receive the documents by that method.

If you wish to receive financial statements, and/or you wish to receive corporate information via
electronic mail, please complete and return this form to:

Grand Banks Energy Corporation
1600 - 444 - 5 Avenue SW
Calgary, Alberta, T2P 2T8

E | would like to receive financial statements by regular mail.

[ 11 consent to receive financial statements via electronic mail.

Name of Shareholder (Please Print)

Address

City Province Postal Code

E-mail Address

The undersigned hereby certifies to be a shareholder of Grand Banks Energy Corporation.

Signature of Sharehclder

Dated , 2007
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FORM 51-102F3
MATERIAL CHANGE REPORT

Item 1. Name and Address of Company

Grand Banks Energy Corporation {(“Grand Banks™)
1600, 444 — 5™ Avenue SW
Calgary, Alberta T2P 2T8

Item 2. Date of Material Change
May 1, 2007
Item 3. News Release

A press release reporting the material change was issued on May 1, 2007 through the
services of CCNMatthews.

Item 4. Summary of Material Change

Grand Banks announced that it has closed the sale of its producing oil property in the
Stoughton/Viewfield area of south east Saskatchewan and the price received for the property
was $8.5 million.

Item 5.1. Full Description of Material Change

Grand Banks announced that it has closed the sale of its producing oil property in the
Stoughton/Viewfield area of south east Saskatchewan. The price received for the property
was $8.5 million. The sale process was conducted with the assistance of Rundle Energy
Partners, who acted as exclusive agent.

The Stoughton/Viewfield property involved a large farm-in agreement with a major
producer. The farm-in deal was operated by Grand Banks with a 50% working interest, and
to date 4 horizontal Bakken oil wells (2 net) had been successfully drilled on the lands,
earning 10 (5 net) sections from a total potential land base of about 34 (17 net) sections.
The 4 o1l wells were producing a total of about 80 bopd (40 net to Grand Banks) at the time
of the sale.

Grand Banks currently has a revolving bank line of $10.5 million and after giving effect to
the sale, expects to have net debt (including working capital deficiency) of less than $3
million. In addition, Grand Banks has a term facility of $1.13 million that is being used to
fund its share of a dehydration plant that is being built to process gas from the Grand Banks
et al Tower Creek 2-21-55-27 W5M Leduc sour gas discovery. The construction of a 12
mile tie-in to the well and the $12 million dehy are now over 90% completed, and Grand
Banks expects to have the well on production by the end of June. With an anticipated gross
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raw production rate of 20 to 25 MMcf/d, Grand Banks 16.67% share of the well is expected
to net over 400 boe/d sales, bringing total corporate production to about 1,100 boe/d.

This material change report may contain forward-looking statements including
management's assessment of future plans and operations and expectations of future
production, cash flow and earnings. These statements are based on current expectations
that involve a number of risks and uncertainties, which could cause actual resulls to differ
materially from those anticipated. These risks include, but are not limited to: the risks
associated with the oil and gas industry (e.g. operational risks in development, exploration
and production; delays or changes in plans with respect to exploration or development
projects or capital expenditures, the uncertainty of reserve estimates, the uncertainty of
estimates and projections relating to production, costs and expenses and health, safety and
environmental risks). commodity price and exchange rate fluctuation and uncertainties
resulting from potential delays or changes in plans with respect to exploration or
development projects or capital expenditures. The forward-looking statements contained in
this material change report are made as of the date hereof and Grand Banks undertakes no
obligations to update publicly or revise any forward-looking statements or information,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, unless so required by
applicable securities laws.

Item 5.2. Disclosure for Restructuring Transactions
Not applicable.
Item 6. Reliance on subsection 7.1(2) or (3) of National Instrument 51-102
Not applicable. This is not being filed on a confidential basis.
Item 7. Omitted Information
No information has been omitted on the basis that it is confidential information.
Item 8. Executive Officer

For further information, please contact E. C. (Ted) McFeely, Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer at (403) 262-8666.

Item 9. Date of Report

May 8, 2007
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INSTRUMENT OF PROXY oF

For the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of
GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION

To be held on June 5, 2007

THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED BY MANAGEMENT OF THE CORPORATION

The undersigned, being a shareholder of Grand Banks Energy Corporation, (the “Corporation”) hereby appoints
(with full power of appointment and substitution), E.C, (Ted) McFeely, President and Chief Executive Officer, or
failing him, Shawn D. McDonald, Chief Financial Officer, or in place or stead of the foregoing,
as Proxy of the undersigned to attend the Annual
General Meeting of shareholders of the Corporation to be held at the Cardium Room, Petroleum Club, 319 - 5 Ave
SW., Calgary, Alberta on Tuesday, June 5, 2007 at 10:00 am (local time) and at any adjournment thereof. The
undersigned hereby revokes any instrument of proxy heretofore given to attend and vote at the said Annual General
Meeting. Without limiting the general power hereby conferred, the person above named is directed to vote as
follows:

1. VOTE FOR ___ or WITHHOLD ___ electing as directors the nominees of management named in the
information circular dated April 26, 2007 (the “Information Circular): (if no selection is made, to vote
FOR the nominees of management)

2. VOTE FOR ___ or WITHHOLD ____ appointing Deloitte & Touche LLP, Chartered Accountants, as the
auditors of the Corporation: (if no selectien is made, to vote FOR the appointment of Deloitte &
Touche LLP as auditor):

3. VOTE FOR _ or TO VOTE AGAINST ___ approving a relling stock option plan authorizing the grant
of options for common shares to a maximum of 10%; (if no selection is made, to vote FOR the Option
Plan):

4. At the discretion of the said Proxyholder, te vote upon any amendments or variation of the above

matter or any other matter that may be brought properly before the said Annual General Meeting or
any adjournment thereof.

This Proxy is solicited on behalf of the management of the Corporation and will be voted as directed in the
space provided above or, if no direction is given, it will be voted FOR each resolution.




The persons named in this Proxy are directors and officers of the Corporation. Each shareholder has the
right to appoint a person, who need not be as shareholder, to attend and to act for him on his behalf at the
Annual General Meeting, other than the persons designated above. To exercise such rights, the names of the
persons designated by management to act should be crossed out and the name of the shareholder’s appointee
should be legibly printed in the blank space provided.

Dated this day of , 2007.

Signature of Shareholder

Sharcholder’s Name (Please Print)
Notes:

1. In the event that the date is not completed, this Proxy will be
deemed to be dated upon the day that it is mailed by the
Corporation.

2. This Proxy will not be valid and will not be acted upon or
voted unless it is signed and delivered to the attention of the
Global Corporate Compliance Inc., 850, 505 — 3rd Street
S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2P 3E6, not later than 48 hours
(excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays) prior to the
Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

3. Inaddition to any revocation in any other manner permitted by
law, a proxy may be revoked by instrument in writing
executed by the security holder or his attorney duly authorized
in writing or, if the security holder is a corporation, under its
corporate seal by an officer or attorney thereof duly authorized
and deposited either at the registered office of the Corporation,
1600, 444 — 5™ Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2P 2T8, at
any time up to and including 4:30 p.m. on the last Business
Day preceding the day of the Meeting, or any adjournment
thereof, at which the proxy is to be used, or with the Chairman
at the Meeting on the day of the Meeting, or any adjournment
thereof and upon such deposit, the proxy is revoked.

4. The signature on this Form of Proxy should be exactly the
same as the name in which the shares are registered. If the
appointer is a corporation, the Form of Proxy must be
executed under its corporate seal and signed by an officer or
attorney duly authorized. Persons signing as executors,
administrators, trustees etc. should so indicate.
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PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT s o

VIEWFIELD/STOUGHTON AREA, SASKATCHEWAN

THIS AGREEMENT made this 5th day of April, 2007.

BETWEEN:

GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION | a body
corporate having an office in the City of Caigary, in the
Province of Alberia

(hereinafier called the "Vendor")

-and -

registered to carry on business in the
Province ot Saskatchewan and having an office in the
City of Calgary , in the Province of Alperta

(hereinafter called the "Purchaser")

WHEREAS the Vendor has agreed io sell the Assets to the Furchaser and the Purchaser
has agreed to purchase the Assets from the Vendor on the terms and conditions set forth

herein, the Parties agree as follows:

1.0 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.01 Definitions
In this Purchase and Sale Agreement:

“Abandonment and Reclamation Obligations" means all obligations

A
under the Title and Operating Documents and Regulations:

(@)  ioc abandon the Wells;

b to decommission and remove the Tangibles, including associated
j g g
fcundations and structures; and

) {o resiore, remediate and reclaim the lands to which the Surface
Righis relate.

Sxmi A Fage !
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Exnion A

“AFE" means an authority for expenditure, mail ballot or any other
authorization of expenditure under the Title and Cperating Documents for
the conduct of an operation or the accrual of a financial obligation as set

out and identified in Schedule “A”",

"Agreement” means this Agreement and the Schedules attached to it.

“Assets” means, subject to Clauses 1.02 and 1.04, the Peiroleum and
Naturai Gas Rights, the Tangibles, the Miscellaneous Interests and ihe

Walls.

“‘Business Day” means any day of the week cther than a Saturday,
Sunday or statutory holiday in Alberta.

“Closing” means the exchange of Conveyance Documents at the Closing
Date, the delivery by the Purchaser to the Vendor of the Purchase Price,
and the transfer of the Assets by the Vendor to the Purchaser as more

particularly described in Clause 3.03.
“Closing Date"” means the 3“ day of May, 2007.

“Deposit” means the payment by the Purchaser to the Vendor of
5850,000.00 on the execution of this Agreement as security for payment
of the Purchase Price and, if applicable, as a estimate of liquidated
damages for the purposes of Paragraph 12.01(b).

"Effective Date” means the 1* day of May, 2007.

‘Environmental Liabilities” means all liabilities periaining to the Assets
in respect of the environment, whether or not caused by a breach of the
applicable Regulations and whetiher or not resulting from operations
conducted with respect {o the Assets, including, without limitation,
iiabilities reiated to:

(a) the transporiation, storage, use or disposal of toxic or hazardous
substances or hazardous, dangerous or non-dangerous oilfield

substances or waste;

(b)  the release, spill, escape cr emission of toxic or hazardous
substances;

(c)  any other pollution or contamination cf the surface, subsirate, soil,
air, ground water, surface water or marine environments;

{d)  damages and losses suffered by third parties as a resuli of the
occurrences in Paragraphs (a)-(c) of this Subclause; and

Fage 2
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Exhibit A

(e)  any obligations impesed by the Regulations to protect the
envirenment or to rectify environmental problems.

“Facilities” means all unit facilities under any unit agreement that applies
to the Petroleum and Naturai Gas Rights and all oiher field facilities that
are not sofely located on or under the surface of the Lands (or lands with
which the Lands are pooled) and that are used for production, gathering,
treaiment, compression, transportation, injection, water disposal,
measurement, processing, storage or other operations respecting the
Petroleum and Natural Gas Rights or the Petrcleum Substances produced
therefrom, including, without limitation, any applicable battery, separator,
compressor station, gathering system, pipeline, production storage facility
or warahouse, which other field facilities are in each case specifically

identified in a Schedule.

“General Conveyance” means a document delivered ai Closing,
substantiaily in the form of Schedule “B" to this Agreement, through which

the Vendor conveys the Assts to the Purchaser.

“GST" means the goods and services tax provided for under the Excise
Tax Act (Canada), as amended, and the reguiations thereunder, or any
successor or paralle] federal or provincial legisiation that imposes a tax on

the recipient of goods and services.

“Interim Period” means the period from the Effective Date to, but not
including, the Closing Date.

“Lands” means the lands, formalions and associated Petroleum
Substances described in Schedule "A", inscfar as righis relating thereto
are granied under the Leases,

"Leases” means, collectively, the various leases, licences, permits,
reservations, certificates of titie and other documents of title set forth in
the Schedule "A" through which the hclder may explore for, drill for,
recover, remove or dispose of Petroleum Substances within, upon or
under the Lands (or lands with which the Lands are pooled or unitized),
and includes, if applicable, all renewals and exiensions of those
documents and all documents issued in substitution therefor.

"Losses and Liabilities” means all claims, liabilities, actions,
proceedings, demands, losses, costs, penalties, fines, damages and
expenses which may be sustained or incurred by any Party, its direciors,
officers, agents and employees, including, without limitation, reasonable
legal fees and disbursements on a solicitor and client basis.

Page 3
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r. "Miscelianeous Interests” means, subject to the fimitations and
exclusions in this definition, the Vendor's entire interest in all property and
rights, cther than the Petroleum and Natural Gas Rights and Tangibles, to
the extent they pertain directly to the Petroleum and Natural Gas Rights of

the Tangibles, including, withoui limitation:

(a)  the Titte and Operating Documents;

{b)  the Surface Rights;

(c}  the wellbores and downhole casing respecting the Wells; and

{d}  copies of geclogical, engineering, Facility and other records, files,
reports, data, correspondence and documents that, relate directly

to the Assets.

Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Paries, the Miscellaneous
Interests exclude the Vendor's tax and financial records, as well as files,
decuments, reports, data, intelleciual property and computer hardware or
software insofar as they: (i) pertain {o the Vendor's geophysical data and
interpretations thereof, (i) pertain to the Vendor's proprietary technology,
evaluations or interpretations (whether geological, engineering, economic
or otherwise); (iii) are legal opinions; (iv) are documents prepared on
behali of the Vendor in contemplation of litigation; (v) are owned or
licenced by third parties with restrictions that prohibit their deliverability or
disclosure to the Purchaser; (vi) are referred to specifically as exclusions
in a Schedule; or (vii) pertain to records required to be maintained under
the Regulations if the retention period for {hose records thereunder has

expired.

S. “Party” means a person, parinership or corporation that is bound by this
Agreement,

T. “Permitted Encumbrances” means:

(a) the terms and conditions of the Title and Operating Documents,
including, without limitation, any offset well obligation, genuine pre-
estimate of damages as if relates to the remaining test and option
well obligations as set out in Schedule “A", penalty or forfeiture that
applies to the Assets subsequeni to the Effective Date resulting
from the Purchaser’s election under Subclause 5.02B not to
participate in a pariicular operation, provided that the following
items must be ideniified in @ Schedule to qualify as Permitted
Encumbrances: (i) any overriding royalties, net profits interests or
other encumbrances applicable to the Peiroleum and Natural Gas
Rights for which the Purchaser will assume the obligation for

Page 4
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payment; (it} any existing potential alteration of the Vendor's
interest in the Asseis because of a payout conversion or farmin,
farmout or other such agreement; (i} any Right of First Refusal; (iv)
any penalty or forigiture that applies to the Assets af the Effeclive
Date because of the Vendor's election not to participate in a
particular operaticn; and (v) any agreements described in
Paragraphs 1.01HE(d), (f) and (g) and (vi) all capifal obligations as
set out in Schedule "A” respecting the Title and Operating

Documents;

(b)  easements, rights of way, servitudes or other similar rights,
including, without limitation, rights of way for highways, railways,
sewers, drains, gas or oil pipelines, gas or water mains, electric
light, power, telephone or cable television towers, poles and wires;

{c)  the Regulations and any rights reserved to or vested in any
municipality or governmental, statutory or public authority to levy
taxes or to contro! or regulate any of the Assels in any manner,
including, without limitation, the right to control or regulate
production rates and the conduct of operations;

(d)  statutory exceptions to title and the reservations, limitations and
conditions in any grants or transfers from the Crown of any of the

Petroleum and Natural Gas Rights or inierests therein;

{e)  undetermined or inchoate liens incurred or created in the ordinary
course of business as security for the Vendor’s share of the costs
and expenses of the development or operation of any of the
Assets, which costs and expenses are not delingtient as of the

Closing Date;

{f) undeiermined or inchoate mechanics’ liens and similar liens for
which payment for services rendered or good supplied is not

delinquent as of the Closing Date;

(@) liens granied in the ordinary course of business to a public utility,
municipality or governmental authority respecting operations
pertaining to any of the Assets; and

(i) any defects or deficiencies in title to the Assets disclosed in this ;
Agreement and any other defecis or deficiencies in title to the :
Assets that are waived or deemed to be waived under Ariicle 8.00.

u. ‘Petroleum and Natural Gas Rights” means the interests of the Vendor
described in the Schedule "A” in respect of the Leases io the exient they

Exnbit A Page $
U \Grand BanksWPurchase and Salei doc



apply to the Lands, including, without limitation, any existing contractual
right of the Vendor to earn an interest under a farmin or similar
arrangement and any overriding royaity, net profits interest or other
enciumbrance accruing to the Vendor,

V. "Petroleum Substances” means crude oil, natural gas and every other
mineral or substance, the right to explore for which, or an interest in
which, is granted under the Leases.

W.  “Prime Rate” m=ans the per annum rate designated as the prime rate for
Canadian dollar commercial [oans by the main Calgary branch of The
Alberia Treasury Branches used by the Vendor, with any change to that
rate being effective under this Agreement on the same day as it is made

effective by that bank.

X. “Purchase Price” means the amount payable by the Purchaser to the
Vendor for the Assets pursuant to Clause 2.02 with such modifications as

are provided under the Agreement.

Y. “Regulations” means all statutes, laws, rules, orders, directives and
regulations in effect {rem time to time and made by governments or
governmental agencies having jurisdiction over the Assets or the Parties.

Z “Representations and Warranties Certificate” means a certificate to be
execuied by an oificer of a Party under Clause 10.01 respecting the truth
and coireciness of the reprasentations and warranties made by that Party
under Article 8.00, if the form of that ceriificaie has been included as a

Schedule.

AA. “Right of First Refusal” means a right ¢f first refusal, pre-empiive right
of purchase or simitar contraciual right uncer i Title and Operating
Cocuments or otherwise whereby a third party has the right to purchase or
acquire any of the Assets because of the Vendor's agreement to dispose

of the Assets fo the Purchaser.
BB. “Schedule” means a schedule to this Agreement.

CC. “Security Interests” means security interests in the Assets {or
regisirations evidencing same) expressly granted by the Vendor or its
predecessors in title under the provisions of, without limitation, a
morigage, deed of trust, Bank Act (Canada) assignment, debenture,
general security agreement or a land charge under personal property

security legislation.

DD. "Specific Conveyances” means all conveyances, assignments,
transfers, novations and other documents, other than the General
Page 6
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Conveyance, that are required {o effect the transfer of the Assets 10 the
Purchaser and {o novate the Purchaser intc the Title and Opearating
Documents with respect {o the Asseis.

EE.  “"Surface Rights” means all rights to use the surface of land in connection
with the Assets, including, without limitation, rights to enter upon and
occupy the surface of land on which the Tangibles and the Wells are
tocated and rights {o cross or ctherwise use the surface of land for access

to the Assets.

FF.  "Tangibles” means the Vendor's eniire interesi in and to:

(a) the Facilities; and

(b)  all tangible depreciable property and assets, cther than the
Facilities, that are located on or under the surface of the Lands {or
lands with which the Lands are pooled) and are used or useful
solely for production, gathering, treatment, compression,
transportation, injeclion, water disposal, measurement, processing,
siorage or other operations respecting the Petroleum and Natural
Gas Rights, including, without limitation, the tangible eguipment, if
any, relating to the Wells and located at the Well site..

GG. ‘"Thirteenth Month Adjustment” means the accounting procedure
performed annually by an operator of particular Tangible for the purpose
of redistributing certain revenues and expenses, including, without
limitation, operating expenses, processing fee revenue, excess capacity
utilization fees and recoveries, royzlties and gas cost allowances (or
similar cost allowances).

HH.  "Title and Operating Documents” means, ic the exient directly related to
the Petroleum and Naiural Gas Righis and the Tangibles, or either of

them:

(a) the Leases;

(b)  executed agreements afiecting the Vendor's interesis in the
Petroleum anc Natural Gas Rights, including, without limitation,
operating agreements, royalty agreemenits, farmout or farmin
agreements, option agreements, participation agreemenis, poaling
agreements, sale and purchase agreements and asset exchange

Agreements;

{cy  agreemaents for the sale of Pefroleum Substances that are
terminable on thirty-one (31) days’ notice or less (without an early
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iermination panaliy or other cast) or that are identiied in Schedule

WA,

FE

agreements respecting the unitization of any of the Peircleum and

{c)
Naiural Gas Rights;

{e)  agreemsnis pertaining to the Suriace Rights;

agreements for the construcion, ownership and cperation of gas
olants, gas gathering sysiems and other Tangibles;

()

service agreamants for the irealing, gathering, storage,
transperiation or processing of Petroleum Substances or other thir
party petroleumn subsiances, the injection or subsurface disposal of
subsiances, the use of wellbores or the operaticn of any Wells or

Tangibles by a third party,

-

o

any approvals, authorizations or licences required under the
Regulaiions for the conduct of operations with respect to the
Assets, including, without limitations, Well and pipeline licences;

{h)
and

all other agreements that relaie to the ownership, operation cr
exploiiation of the Feiroleum and Natural Gas Righis or the

Tangibles.

"Title Defect” means a deficiency or discrepancy in or affecting the title of
the Vendor in and io any of ihe Assets, and for purposes of this
Agreement, includes Lnvironmental Liahililies, identified by Purchaser
through the course of cenducting iis assessmeni under Aricle 8.00,
sufficient to cause a reasonable buyer of the affecied Assets to refuse o
purchase them for fair marxet value (computed as if that defect did not
exist), bui specifically excludes, without resiricting the gensrality of the
foregoing, the Permitied Encumbrances.

JJ. “Purchaser” means

KK.  “Vendor”means GRAND NKS ENERGY CORPORATION.

“Wells” means the Vendor's entire interest in all wells described in
Schedule A" locaied on ithe Lands ¢r lands peoled or unitized therewith,
including, without limitation, any preducing, shut-in, abandened,
suspended, capped, injection and dispesal wells sei forth in a Schedule,
and includes the associaied weilbores and casing, provided thai an

LL.

Pege s
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abandoned, injection or disposal well not subject to a unit agreement must
be identified in a Schedule to be included in the Assets.

1.02 Exclusion of Assets

1.03

Exmibit A

If a portion of the Assets is excluded from Closing bacause of uncured Title
Defects, the axercise of any Right of First Refusal by third pariies, other
provisions of this Agreement or the wiilten agreement of the Parties:

(a)

the terms "Assets”, “Facilities”, "Lands”, "Leases”, "Miscellaneous
Interests”, "Petroleum and Natural Gas Rights" and “Tangibles” will be

deemed to be amended o reflect the exclusion of that portion of the
Assets, and the Agreement and the Schedules will be deemed to be

amended accordingly; and

the Purchase Price will be reduced by the value atiribuied {o the Assetls
for which Closing doeas not occur under Article 7.00 or 8.00, as applicable,
the term "Purchase Price" will be construed to be that reduced amount,
the allocations of value among the classes of Asseis under the
Agreement will be modified accordingly and adjustments under Article
4.00 and any interest accruing under Clause 2.05 will be calculated

accordingly.

References and Interpretation

Uniess otherwise staied:

(a)

the references "hereunder”, "herein” and “hereoi” refer to the provisions of

this Agreement, and references to an Article, Clause, Subclause,
Paragraph or Subparagraph herein refer to ihe specified Article, Clause,
Subclause, Paragraph or Subparagraph of this Agreement;

the singular, masculine cr neuter will be construad as the plural or
feminine or corporate and vice versa, as ihe context requires;

the neadings of Aricles and Clauses and any other headings or indices
are for reference only, and will not be used in inferpreting any provision

herein;

a capitalized derivative of defined term will have a corresponding
Meaning.

zll references io "dollars” or “3" will mean lawiul currency of Canada, and
all billings, payments and recaipts will be made and recorded in Canadian

cusrency:;

Page 9
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any references made to a calculation to be made in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principies shall be deemed {0 be the
generally accepted accounting principles from time fo time approved by
the Canadian Institute of Chariered Accouniants, or any successor
institute, applicable as at the date on which such calcuiation is made or

required to be made.

any reference to time means Mountain Siandard Time or Mountain
Daylight Time during the respective infervals in which each is in force
under the Davilight Savings Titne Act {Alberta);

any reference (o days refers to calendar days unless the reference is {o
Business Days, and if the phrase “within", “at least” or “not later than” is
used with reference to a specific number of days or Business Days, the
day of receipt of the relevant notice will be excluded and the day of the
relevant response or event will be included in determining the relevant
time period. However, if the time for doing any aci expires on a day that is
nct a Business Day, the time for doing that act will be extendad to the next

Business Day. and

any reference to the "Vendor's entire assigned interest” pertains to that
interest of the Vendor, as identified in Scheduie “A”, if applicable, that is
being disposed of hereunder in the applicable Asseis, and does not
include any portion of the interast held by the Vendor that is not being

disposed of hereunder.

1.04 Interpretation if Types of Assets Limited

I the Assets to which the Agreement pertains do not include both Petroleum and
Matural Gas Righis and Tangibles, the provisions of this Agreement wili be
interpreted in the context of eithar the Pelroleum and Naiural Gas Rights or
Tanginles, as the case may be, and the applicable Miscellaneous Inierests.

1.05 Interpretation if Closing Does Not Occur

Each provision of this Agreement that presumes that the Purchaser has acquired
the Assets hereunder will be construed as having been contingent upon Closing

having occurred.

1.06 Conflicts and Enforceability

A,

Expebit A

If there is any conilict or inconsistency between a provision of this
Agreement and that of a Schedule, the General Conveyance or a Specific
Conveyance, the provision of this Agreement will prevail. i any term or
condition of this Agreement, the General Conveyance or a Specific
Conveyance conflicts with a term or conditicn of a Leass or the

Page 10
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Regulaiions, the term or condition of that Lease or the Regulations wili
prevail, and the Agreament, the General Conveyance or that Specific
Canveyance will be deemed o be amendead to the exient required to
eltminate any such conflict, provided that: (i) the Parties recognize that the
regisiered interests in the Leases may not correspond to the Vendor's
interesis in the lands; and (it} the aflocation of responsibility for Losses
and Liabilities wiil continue {0 apply between the Parties in the event of

any such conflict.

B. Insofar as any of the provisions of the Agreemeni are judicially determined
to be unenforceanle, the applicable provisions (or pertions thereof) will be
deemed {0 be severed from the Agreement and of no force and effect
beiween the Parties. The reminder of the Agreement will remain in full
force and effect between the Parties in such event.

1.07 Vendor's Knowledge

The knowledge or awareness of the Vendor herein consists of the actual
knowledge or awareness of any officers and employees who are or were
primariiy responsibie for the matier in question in the course of their normal
duties (other than those empioyees employed in the field who do not have
management responsibilities), after reascnable inquiry of the Vendor's applicable
files and records. For these purpeses, knowledge and awareness do not include
the knowledge of any third party or constructive knowledge. The Vendor does
not have any obligation to make inquiry of third parties or the files and records of
any third parly or public autherity in connection with representations and
warranties that are made to its knowledge or awareness.

2.00 ACQUISITION AND DISPOSITION

2.01  Application of this Agreement

Each Paity confirms that the Purchaser's assumption of respansibility for
Abandonment and Reclamation Obligations and Environmental Liabifities,
subject to Article 8.00 and the Vendor's release of responsibility therefore have
been used in the determination of the Purchase Price for those Wells comprising

part of the Asseis.
2.02 Purchase Price, Deposit and Aliocation

The Vendor hereby sells, assigns, iransfers, conveys and sets over unto the

Purchaser, and the Purchaser hereby purchases and acgepts irom the Vendor,

the Vendor's entire right, title, estate and interest in and o the Assets in

consideration of payment of the Purchase Price by the Purchaser o the Vendor.

The Purchase Price shali be eight million five hundrad thousand dotlars

{$8,500,000.00) (Canadian) and shall be paid by the Purchaser io the Vendor
Page 1!
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f ihis Agreemen:
Purchaser shall
ceni goods and
Excise Tax

by the pavment of a Deposit of $850,600.00 on the exacuiion
and the remaining $7,550,000.00, on the C‘r}sing Dawe. The
also remit to the Vendcr at the Ciosing Date, the six (6%) per
services fax applicable {0 the sale of the Tangibles pursuani o the

Act {Canadal, being & total of $102,000.0C.

The Purchase Price shall be allocated among the Assels as follows:
{a) To Peuvoleum and Natural Gas Righis 56,800,000.00
(b) To Tangibles $1,598,998.00
(¢} To Miscellaneous Interesis $  1.0¢
Purchase Price $8,500,000.00
Pfus 8% Goods & Services Tax $102,000.00
TOTAL AMOUNT PAYABLE $8,602,000.00
2.03 General Payment Obligations
A The Purchaser will pay all amounts payable under this Agreement by

cerlified cheaus or bank drait payatle to the Vendor in immediately
available funds,

B. The Vendor will hold the Deposit in trusi on hehalf of the Purchaser. if
Closing oceurs, the Vendor will appiy the Deposit {fogether with accrued
interest thereon) to the Purchase Price. If Closing does nat occour, the
Vendoer will prompily return the Deposit to the Purchaser (jogether with
any adjustment for accrued interest thereon), subject 16 the respeciive
righis of the Parlies under Arlicie 12.00 in the eveni of defauli.

204 GST and QOther Sales Taxes
A. The GST Business Numbers of the Parties are:

Yendor GST #

Purchaser GST #
Subject to any application of the reverse collection mechanism, which
applies to ceriain real property convayances, the Purchaser wiil remit the
applicable GST to the Vendor ai Clesing. The Vendor will remit such GST
to the applicable governmentat authority in the manner and within the time
constrainis stipulated in Part I1X of the Excise Tax Aci ("ETA"), or as
stipulaied in successor or paraliel legislation that might arise from time to
iime. if the reverse colfection mechanism applies, the Purchaser will
comply with all of iis obligations and entiitements under the ETA.

B.

At Closing, the Purchaser will remit any provincial sales taxes periaining

to its acguisiiion of ing Assets {o the applicable governmenial authorily in

@)
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2.05

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

Exhibit A

the required manner, or will provide aperopriate purchase exemption
certificates, if applicable. The Purchaser will indemnify the Vendor for the
Vendor's Losses and Liatilities pertaining to any failure of the Purchaser
to remit those taxes as required,

D. if the amount of the GST or any provincial sales tax payable hereunder is
adjusted as a resuit of any reassessment by the applicable governmental
authority, any adjusiment and any asscciated interest and penalties will
be for the Purchaser's account. However, the Parties will co-operaie to
ensure that all reasonable sieps are taken to minimize the net impact of

any such taxes and the corresponding penatties and interest.

interest Accrual

interest at Prime Rate will accrue on the Purchase Price during the Interim
Period, plus or minus the net amount of the adjustments made at Closing under
Paragraph 4.02A(a), with any interest accrual resulting in a corresponding
increase to the Purchase Price and, subject to Clause 1.04, the amount

allocated to the Petroleum and Natural Gas Righis.
Interest at Prime Rate will accrue to the Vendor on the adjusted Purchase Price

during the Interim Period, except insofar as Closing is delayed for reasons solely
atiributable to the Vendor or it waives that interest accrual.

CLOSING

Place of Closing

Unless othenvise agreed by the Parties, Closing will occur at the coffice of the
Vendor ¢n the Closing Date.

Effective Date of Transfer

The transfer of the Assets from the Vendor to the Purchaser and the assumption
of the benefits, obligations and risks associated with the Assets by the Purchaser
will be effeciive as of the Efieclive Date, provided Closing cccurs. As beitween
the Parties, possession of the Assets, however, will not pass to the Purchaser

untd Closing.
Deliveries at Closing

A. Subject to Clause 3.05, the Vendor will deliver o the Purchaser on the
Closing Date:

{(a)  aGeneral Conveyance, which has been prepared and executed by
the Vendor,

Pzge i}
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{b)

{d)

(e)

all required Specific Conveyances, prepared and executed by the
Vendor, except o the exiens that this Agreement or the Purchaser
permits the Vendor to deliver ihe Specific Conveyances at a later
date:

copies of all waivers and exercises of Rights of First Refusai
received by the Vendor respecting the disposition of the Assets to
the Purchaser;

the Vendor's Representations and Warranties Ceriificate
substantiaily in the form of Schedule “C” to this Agreement; and

those other documents as may be specifically required under this
Agreement or as may be reasonably requested by the Purchaser
upon reascnable notice io the Vendor, including, without limitation,
any additional Agreements required under Subclause 1.01EE for
surface access o the Assets because of the Vendor's retention of

surface access for its other operztions.

Subject to Clause 3.05, the Purchaser will deliver to the Vendor on the
Closing Date:

(i)
(i)

{iii}

(iv)
(v}

payment of any amount owing at Closing under the Agreement;

a duly executed General Conveyance;

the Purchaser's Representaiions and Warranties Certificate
substantially in the form of Schedule *C" to this Agreement:

copies of Specific Conveyances that have been executed by i, and

those other documents as may be speciiically required under the
Agreement,

3.04 Delivery of Files

Eanbi A

A

Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, the Vendor will deliver to the
g

Purchaser, in an organized form, the Vendor's original records, files,

reports, data and decumenis constituting the Miscellaneous Interests
wiinin 10 Business Days following Closing. Insofar as they relate directly
to other assets in which the Vender retains an interest, the Vendor may
retain the original of those materials and provide a photocopy of them to
the Purchaser. The Vendor may retain a phoiocopy of any original
matierials delivered to the Purchaser under this Subclause.

Fage 14

USeand Banks\WPirchase and Sale i .doe



8. The Vendor may, at its sole expense, chtain from the Purchaser, ior a
period oi eighteen monihs folicwing the Closing Date, copies or
photocopies of the materials delivered o the Purchaser under the
preceding Subclause if those maierials are requirad by the Vendcr for
audits or claims by third parties and those materials are still in the
possession of the Purchaser. [f the Purchaser disposes of any of the
Assets during that peried to a third party, the Purchaser will iake
reasonable sieps to enable the Vendor to have continued reascnable
access o those materials for the remainder of that pericd, provided that
the Purchaser will not be required to retain copies of those materials

following any such disposition.

3.05 Distribution of Specific Conveyances

Except as otherwise agreed by the Parties, the Vendor will retain the required
number of original copies of the Specific Conveyancas and other documents delivered
under Subclause 3.03A, and will promgily distribute them ic third parties or register
them on behalf of the Purchaser after Closing, insofar as they are normaily distributed
or registered. The Vendor will deliver to the Purchaser proof of registration of the
applicable Specific Cenveyances in a timely manner. The Purchaser will raimburse the
Vendor for alt iransfer and registration fees incurred by the Vendoer in regisiering those

Specific Conveyances and other documents.

400 ADJUSTMENTS
4.01 Benefits and Obligations to Be Apportioned

Except as otherwise provided herein, the Pariies will apportion ali benefits and
obligations of every kind and nature relaiing {c the Asseis, including capital
expenditures (as sei out in Schedule "A™), maintenance cosis, deveicpment
cosis (as sel out in Schedule "A), operating costs, royaliies, properiy taxes,
proceeds from the sale of production, gas cosi allowances {or similar cost
allowances) and incentives accruing to operations under the Regulations. The
Parties will maxe that apportionment on an accrual basis as cf the Eifective Date
using generally accepied accounting principles. Notwithsianding the generality
of the foregoing, the following principles will apply to adjusiments made under
this Ariicle:

(@)  all costs incurred in connection with work performed or goods and
services provided in respect of the Assets will be deemed to have accrued
as of the date the work was performed or the goods or services provided,
regardless of the time those costs became payable;

{b)  any genuine pre-estimate of damages as it relates to the remaining test
and opticn well obligations as set out in Schedule "A", pursuant o the Title

Exnibit A Page 3
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and Operaiing Documents will be deemed (o have accrued ailer the
Effective Daie;

surface and mineral lease rentals and any similar payments made by the
Vendor to preserve any of the Leases or any Surface Rights will be
appertioned on a per diem basis as of the Effective Date;

all taxes, oiher than income taxes and any taxes based on the volume of
produced Petroleum Substances, wiil be apporiioned on a per diem basis

as of the Effeciive Dae;

all Petroleurn Substances produced as of the Efiective Date, but not
delivered to the purchaser of those Petroleum Substances, but excluding
Petroleum Substances in storage, will not comprise part of the Assets,
provided that sulphur comprising part of a base pad or storage block, if
any, will form pan of the Assets, unless cthervise agreed in this
Agreement. Petroleum Substances not comprising part of the Assets will
remain the property of the Vendor, and the proceeds from the sale thereoi
will accrue to the Vendor, with sales of those Petroleumn Substances

deemed to occur on a “first in, first out” basis;

there will be no adjusiments for royalty tax credits or other similar
incentives that accrus to a Party because of financial or organizational
aitributes specific to it, other than gas cost allowances (or similar cost

allowances);

a Thirteenth Month Adjusimeni that reiaies 10 a period that includes
months prior to and after the Effeclive Date will be anpportioned on a per
diem basis io reflect expenses, revenues and throughput volimes
applicable to the respective periods of the Pariies’ ownership of the
Assels, provided that if there is a material veriance between the
throughput cr unti operating costs during those periods, the methcdology
provided for in the Tille and Cperating Documents ior the applicable
facility to calculaie a Thirteenth Month adiusiment will apply, mudaliis
mutandis, to any such adjusiment between {hose pericds, as if each such
period is an annual period;

there will be no inierest payable on adjustments except io ine exient
provided for in Clause 2.04 and Paragraph 5.03(c;}; and

any dispule respecting adjusiments will be resolved under Article 5.00.

4.02 Adjustments to Accounts

A

[ xhibrit A

Subject to Paragraph 4.01(j) and Subclauses B and C of this Clause,
adjustments between the Vendor and the Purchaser under ihis Purchase

and Sale Agreement will he effected as follows:
Page 16
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Exhiat A

{a)  unless ctherwise agreed by the Parties, tha Vendor will provide the
Purchaser with an interim statement setting forth the adjustmenis
propesed 10 be made at Closing not later than three (3) Business
Days prior to the Closing Date, based on the Vendor's good faith
astimate of the cosis and expenses paid by the Vendor prior (o
Closing and the revenues received by the Vendor prior to Closing.
The Vendor wili provide reascnable assistance to the Purchaser to
assist it to verify the amounis set forih in tha! statement; and

(b}  within the 120 day period following the Closing Date, the Vendor
wili prepare, on the basis of informaticn avaiiable at that time and
with input form the Purchaser, a writien final statement of all
adjustments and payments ic be made under this Agreement, with
the net amount thereof to be remiited by the Party recuired tc make
payment within thirty (30) days of receipt of that statemant, without
prejucice to the cther rights of that Parly under this Agreemant io
verify that amount.

Notwithstanding the preceding Subclause, each Party vill have the right,
within the later of six (8) months following the distribution of the final
statement of adjustments by the Vendor under Paragraph 4.02A(b) or
twelve {12) months following the Closing Date, to examine. copy and audit
the records of ihe other relative {o the Assets for the purposes of effecting
or veitiying adjusiments required under this Article. The auditing Party
will, upon reasonable notice, conduct that audit at its sole expense during
normal business hours at the offices of the audited Party ¢r at such other
premises where those records are mainiained. Any claims of
discrepancies disclosed by that audit will be made in writing to the audited
Party within iws {2) monihs following the completion of that audit. That
Party will respond in wriling tc any such ciaims within six (8) months of the
receipt of nolice of those claims. The Parties will resolve any outstanding
claims of discrepancies under Article 8.00 if they are unresoived within
iwo (2) months of that response.

Notwithstanding Paragraph 4.02A{b), further adjusimenis cn the basis
indicated in this Article will be made as and when those items arise if
notice requesting that adjusiment, including reasonable particulars
thereof, has been given by a Party to the other Party within thirty (30) days
following receipt of a Thirteenth Month Adjustment or a completed and
agreed to audit or other report and the need for that adjusiment arises

from:

(a)  a Thirleenth Month Adjustmeni, cperator error adjustments or
errors established by joint veniure audits within thirty-six {36)
months after the Closing Daie; or
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by A

(b) errors establishad by an audit cr other review of iessor rovaliy
payments thai is conducted under the Reguiations or Leases within
sixty (80) monihs aiter the Closing Daie or such later time as may
be prescribed by the Regulations.

D. Subjeci to Article 9.00 and the timing restrictions in this Article 4.00, the
Parties agree that the period for seeking a remedial order under section
3(1)(a) of the Limitations Act (Alberta} is extended from two (2) years io
four (4) years for ali claims that may arise under this Article 4.00
respecting adjustments and audits.

Adjustment for Income Tax — Treatment of Interim Period income

If Closing Date occurs in the same calendar montit as the Effective Date, the net
production income or loss that accrues in respect of the Assais in the Interim
Period will belong io, or be a loss of, ihe Purchaser. Such net production income
or loss will be reported by the Purchaser for income tax purposes, and the
consequential resource allowance implications will be claimed by the Purchaser.

MAINTENANCE OF BUSINESS
Assets to Be Maintained In Proper Manner

The Vendor will maintain the Assets in a proper and prudent mannar in

ccordance with good oil field practice and the Regulations during the nterim
Period, with such consuliation with the Purchaser as is prescribed by Clause
5.02 or is othenvise reasonably appropriate in the circumsiances. The Vendor
will cemply with ali of its obligations with respeci io the Asseis under the Tille
and Operating Documents, will pay when due all expenses and other amounts
payable in respect of the Assetls during the Interim Period and will maintain any
insurance it holds respecting the Assets until Closing. Unless otherwise
speciiled herein cr in this Agreement, the Vendor will not be reguired to obtain
additional insurance respecting the Assets during the Interim Pericd, except to
the extent such insurance is required io be maintained under the Regulations or
the Title and Operating Documents. The Vendor will remain the beneficiary
under all such pelicies of insurance, and, unless otherwise agreed by the Parties,
the Purchaser will not be entitled to any preceeds of settlement thereunder. The
Vendor will promptly give notice, in reasonable detail, to the Purchaser upon the
Vendor becoming aware of any damage {o the Tangibles of the ivpe

contemplaied in Paragraph 10.02(a).
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5.02 Material Commitments During Interim Period

it A

A.

During the Interim Period, the Vendor wili forthwith provide 1o the
Purchaser copies of all AFEs, nolices and mail ballots the Vendor
receives respecting the Asseis, and will not, without the prior written
consent of the Purchaser, which consent may not be unreasonably
withheld or delayed:

(a)

{f

assume any new obligation or commitment respecting the Assets, if
the Vendor's share of the associated expenditure is estimated to
exceed Twenty-Five Thousand ($25,000.00) Dollars, except: (i) for
amounts that {he Vendor is committed to expend or is deemed to
authorize under the Tille and Operating Documents without its
specific authorization or approval; or {ii) {o the extent that the
Vendor reasonably deiermines that those expenditures or actions
are nacessary for the protection of life and property, provided that
the Vendor will promptly notify the Purchaser of any such
expenditure or actions,;

sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any of the Assels, except for:
(i) sales of production of Petroleum Substances reascnably made
by the Vender in the cordinary course of business under sales
arrangements permifted herein; {ii) or to the exient required to
comply with any Right of First Refusal;

surrender or abandon any of the Assets;

ameand any of the Title and Operailing Documenis (oiher than for
processing of assignments by third pariies in the ordinary course of
business), ierminate any of the Title and Operating Documents,
enter into any new Agreement respecting the Assets or voie on any
mai! ballot or cther similar notice issued under the Tille and
Operating Documents,

subject to Clause 5.01, Paragraph 5.02A(2) and Subclause 5.028,
oropose of initiate the exercise of any cpiion arising as a resuli of
the ownership of the Assets (including, without limitation, rights
under area of mutual interest provisions and any Right of First
Refusal) or propcse or initiate any operations with respect o the
Assets thal have noi been commenced or commitied to by the
Vendor as of the Eifective Date, if that exercise or option would
result in an obligation of the Purchaser after the Effective Date or a
material adverse effect on the value of any of the Assets; or

other than for Permitied Encumbrances, grant a Security Injerest or
any encumbrance with respect to any of the Assets.
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B. If an operation or the exercise of any option respecting the Asseis is
proposed in circumsiances which would require the writter consent of the
Purchaser under Subclause 5.02A (ihe "Proposal”):

{a;  the Vendor will promptly give notice of the Proposal to the
Purchaser, including with that notice supporting information in
/easonable detail;

(b}  the Purchaser will advise the Vendor, by notice, not later than 2
Business Days prior to the time the Vendor is reguired to make its
etection for the Propoesal, if the Purchaser wishes the Vendor to
exercise its rights on behalf of the Purchaser, provided that this
period will be reduced {0 twelve (12) hours if the period within
which the Vendor is required to reply, by notice to the applicable
third parties, is forty-eight (48) hours or less and that failure to
make an efection within the applicable period will he deemed to be
the Purchaser’s eleciion not io participate in the Praposal;

the Vendor will make the election autherized by the Purchaser for
the Proposal within the period during which the Vendor may
respond to the Proposal;

{d)  an election by the Purchaser not o participaie in a Proposal wili not
result in any reduction of the Purchase Price if the Vendor's interest
therein is terminaied or altered 2s a resuit of that election, and that
lermination oy altaration will not censtituie a Title Defect or a
breach of the Vendor's represeniations and warraniies; and

(@)  the Vendor may require the Purchaser to advance or othenwise
sacure any cosis {o be incurrad oy the Vender on behalf of the
Purchaser under this Subclause in such manner as may be
reasonably appiopriate in the circumstances.

C. The Purchaser may not, without the written consent of the Vendor,
reguest the Vendor o propese the conduct of any operation respecting
the Assets during the Interim Period, except to the exient provided in this
Agreement or this Article.

5.03 Post-Closing Transitional Maintenance of Assets

Following Closing and ic the extent that the Purchaser must be recognized by
third parties under the Tille and Operating Documents or ctherwise recognized
as the owner of any of the Assets, the foilowing will apply o those Assets unzil
that recognition has been effsctad:
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(a) ine provisions of Clause 5.02 will centinue fo apply, muialis muiandis,

{b) the Vendor will jorthwith provide o the Purchaser all AFEs, notices, matl
bailols, speciiic information and other documenis the Vendor receives
respecting the Assets, and will respond to such AFEs, notices, mail
ballats, information and other documents pursuant to the written
instruction of the Purchaser, if received on a timely basis, provided that
the Vendor may refuse to follow instructions that it reasonably believes to
be unlawiul, unethical or in conflict with an applicable contract by
providing notice to that effect to the Purchaser in a timely manner;

{¢)  the Vendor will deliver to the Purchaser, on a monthly basis, in a manner
consistent with the Vendor's internal accounting processes, ali revenues,
proceeds and other benefits received by the Vendor respeacting the
Assais, other than those that accrue to the Vendor under Article 4.00, less
the share of the applicahle lessor royalties, operating cosis, treating,
gathering, processing and product transportation expenses and those
other costs and expenses directly relating to the Assets and the
preduction of Petroleum Substances, provided that the Vendor may not
recover any administrative costs and expenses itincurs as a result of that
delivery, that any net amount owing to the Vendor under this Paragraph
will be paid by the Purchaser within thirty {30) days of the Vendor's inveice
therefore and that any amount not paid by a Parly within the prescribed
period may, at the opiion of the cther Party, accrue interest under Clause

12.02; and

{d)  subjeci to Clause 3.08, the Vendoer will, as agent of the Purchaser, deliver
alt such Agreements, notices and other documeanis as the Purchaser may
reascnably reguesi to eifect its cwnership of the Asseais.

B34 Vendor Deemed Agent of Purchaser

[#33

A. Provided Closing occurs and insofar as {he Vendar mainiains the Assets
and iakes actions on behalf of the Purchaser in comoliance with the
obligations under this Arlicle, the Vendor wili be deemed io have been the
agent of the Purchaser hereunder. The Purchaser ratifies all actions
taken, or refrained from being taken, by the Vendor under this Ariicle in
that capacity, with the intention that al! of those actions wili be deemed 0
he those of the Purchaser, except o the exteni that the Vendor's actions
under this Article constituie gross negligence or willful misconduct.

B. The Purchaser will be liable to and, in addition, indemniiy the Vendor and
each of iis direciors, officers, agents and employees against all of their
Losses and Liabilities as a resuit of mainiaining the Assets or exercising
ether rights as the Purchaser's agent under this Article, insofar as those
Losses and tiabilities are not a direct result of the gross negligence or
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williul misconduct of the Vendor or any of its direciers. cificers, agents or
employees. An act or omission will not be regarded as gress negligence
or wiliful misconduct under this Ariicle. however, to ihe exieni that it was
done or omitied io be donea in accordance with the Purchaser's wiitten
instructions or writien concurrence.

6.00 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PARTIES

6.01 Mutual Representations and Warranties

Exhid A

Each of the Vendor and the Purchaser represents and warrants io the other that

(@)

(c)

()

(e)

Standing: It is dufy organized. validiy subsisting. registered and
authorized to carry on business in the jurisdiction(s) where the Assets are

locatad;

Requisite Authority: It has the requisiie capacity, power and authority to
execute the Agreement and all other documents {0 be executed by i, or
on its pehali, hereunder and to perform iis obligations hersunder,

No Conflict; The execution and delivery of the Agreement and the
compietion of the transfer of ihe Assets hersunder are not and wiil not be

in breach of, or in conilict with:

(i)  any provision of the charter. by-laws, partnership Agreement or
other governing documents of that Party;

(i1 the Regulations or any court order or judgment applicable to that
Party or the Assets; cr

{liy  any Agreement, insirument, pennii or auinority {o which itis a party
or by which if is bound;

Execution and Enforceability: It has taken all aciions necessary o
authorize the execution and delivery of the Agreement and all other
documents to be execuied by if hereunder, and, as of the Closing Date,
that Party will have taken all actions necessary o authorize and complete
the iransier of the Assets hereunder. The Agreement has been validiy
executed and delivered by that Party, and the Agreement and all other
documents executed and deliverad on behalf of that Party hereunder
constitute binding ghligaticns of that Party enferceabie in accordance with
ineir respective terms and conditions; and

No Finders' Fees: It has not incurred any obligation or liability, contingent
or otherwise, for brokers' or finder fees for this fransaction for which the
other Party will have any responsibility.
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6.02 Vendor's Representations and Warranties

The Vendor represents and warrants to the Purchaser ihat:

(a)

(o)

<)

{d)

-
)

(9)

Exiubi A

Residency for Tax Purposes; It is not a2 non-resident of Canada within
the meaning oi the /ncome Tax Act (Canada);

Lawsuits and Claims: Except as ideniified in a Schedule, (o the Vendor's
xnowledge, there are no unsatisfied judgments or claims, proceedings,
actions or lawsuits in existence, contemplated or threatensd with respect
to the Assets or its interest therein, and, to the Vendor's knowiedge, no
particular circumstance exists that it reasonably believes will give rise to
such a claim, proceeding, action or lawsuit that would have a material
adverse eifect on the aggregate value of the Assels;

No Default Notices: Except as identifies in 2 Schadule, the Vendor has

not received any noiice of default under the Regulations or the Title and

Operating Documents or any netice alleging its default thereunder, which
default remains cutstanding or unsatisfied;

Compliance with Leases and Agreements: To the Vendor's knowledge,
there has been no act or omission whereby it is. or would be, in default
under the Regulations or any of the Tille and Operating Documenis, which
cefault would reasonabiy be expecied to have a2 material atlverse effect

on the aggregaie value of the Assels;

Payment of Royalties and Taxes: To the Vendor's knowledge, all
royalties and ali ad vaiarem, property, production, severance and similar
iaxes and assessments based on, or measured by, its ownership cf the
Assels, the produciion of Petroleum Subsiances from the Lands or the
receipt of proceeds therefrom that are payabie by it and that accrued prior
to the Eifective Daie and for all pricr years have been properly pzaid in the
manner prescribed by the Leases and the Regulations, or will he so paid

when due:

Encumbrances: The Vendor does not warrant its title to the Asseis, but
does warrant that its interest in the Assets is frea and clear of any and all
liens, mortgages, pledges, claims, options, Rights of First Refusal,
encumirances, overriding royalties, net profits interests or other burdens
for which the Purchaser will be responsinle that were created by, through
or under the Vendor or cf which the Vender has knowledge, excepi for the

Permitied Encumbrances;

No Reduction: The Vendor's inferests in the Assels are noi subject to
reduction, by farmout, reference to payout of a well or oiherwise, through
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any right or interest granted by, through or under it or of whicn it has
knowledge, excepi for the Permitted Encumbrances;

(h)  Sale Agreements: £xcept as identifies in a Schedule, the Petroleum and
Natural Gas Rights are not subject to any Agreement: (i} for the sale of
Petroisum Substances that cannot be terminaied, without penally, on
thirty-one {31) days' notice or less; (ii) that includes "take or pay” or similar
provisions; or (iif} for gas balancing;

(i) Provision of Documents: To the Vendor's knowledge, it will have made
avaiiable to the Purchaser, prior io Closing, all of the Titie and Operating
Documents in the Vendor's possessicn that are relevan: io the Vendor's
title to the Petroleum and Natura! Gas Rights and those additional Title
and Operating Documents anc other files, documents and materials
comprising the Miscellaneous Interests that are reasonably required by
the Purchaser 1o satisfy any conditions that included under Clause 10.02
or have ctherwise been reasonabiy reguested by the Purchaser,

)] Authorized Expenditures: Except as ideniified in a Schedule, as may be
auvthorized under Ariicle 5.00 or as are cperating costs incurred in the
ordinary course of business, there are no outstanding AFEs or other
outstanding financial commitments respeciing the Assets under which
expenditures of greater than Twenty-Five ($25,000.00) Dollars are or may
be required by the Purchaser as a result of the acquisition of the Asseis or
in respect of which any amount is outstanding as of the Effective Date;

k. Environmental Matters: Except as identiified in a2 Schedule, the Vendor
has not received and does not have knowledge of:
(i) any order or direciive under the Regulations that reiates ic
Abandonment and Reclamation Obligaiions, Envircnmental
Liabilities or environmental compliance matters under the
Regulations, if that crder or directive has not been complied with or
cthenvise satisfied in all material respects by the Cicsing Date;

{if) any demand or notice issued under the Regulaticns for the breach
of any environmental, heaith or safely laws applicable to the
Assetls, including, without fimitation, any Regulations respecting the
release, use, storage, treatment, transporniation or disposition of
environmental containments which demand cr notice remains
outstanding on the Clesing Date; or

(i) any panicuiar existing circumstance that it reasonably believes to
be material and a reporiable event under the Regulaiions;

{n Condition of Wells: To the Vendor's knowledge, each Well located on
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(m)

(o)

(p)

o
—
~——

Bt A

the Lands whether producing, shut-in, injection, disposal or cthenvise, has
been drilled and, if completed, completed and operaied in accordance
with generally accepiad oll and gas field practices and the material
requirements of the Regudations as they exist al the relevant time;

Abandonment of Wells: To the Vendor's knowledge, each Well located
on the Lands ihat has been abandoned has been plugged and
abandoned, and the weil site therefore properiy resiored, in accordance
with generally acceptied cil and gas field practices and the material
requirements of the Regulations as they existed at ihe relevant time,
except as set out in Schedule "A”;

Condition of Tangibles: To the Vendor's knowledge, the Tangibles have
been consiructed, installed, maintained and operated in accordance with
generally accepted cil and gas field practices and the material
requirements of the Reguiations as ihey exisied at the relevant time;

Well and Tangibles Licence Transfers: The Vendor is aligible under the
Regulations to transfer the applicable licence or approval for any Well or
Tangibles operated by it for which it is intendad that the Purchaser will
become operator foflowing Closing;

Regulatory Production Penalties: Except as identified in a Schedule, to
the Vendor's knowledge each Well that has been drilled for the purpose of
producing Peftroleum Substances has bzen drilied at a location for which
an ofi-farget production penalty is not applicable under the Regulations;

Regulatory Production Allowables: Except as identified in a Schedule,
to the Vendor's knowledge ne nolice has been received under the
Reguiations that a Well has been produced in excess of regulatory
production zllowables, and there is no pending change in these
production allowabiles, other than as may generaily be applicable under
the Regutations;

Area of Mutual Interest: Excepi as identifiad in ihe Schedule "A”, none
of the Title and Operating Documents includes an area of mutual inierest
that remains in effect as of the Effective Date;

No Offset Obligations: Except as identiiied in the Scheduie "A”, the
Vendor has net received any notice from, or on behalf of, the applicable
lessor that a Lease is subject to an cffset obligation, including an
unsatisiied obligation to drill a well or surrender richis or an obligation o

pay compensatory royalties;

Commitment to Deliver. Except as identified in a2 Schedule, none of the
Title and Operating Documenis described in Paragraphs 1.01HH(f) and
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6.03

5.04

Exhitbon A

{g; includes a commiiment to deliver production from any Lands io
particular Tangibles; and

(v}  Quiet Enjoyment: Subject at &il times o the Vendor's cther
represeniations and warraniies made under this Article, the Permitied
Encumbrances, Title Defects waived by the Purchaser under Paragraph
8.028B(b) and the satisfaction of the obhligations required to maintain the
Leases in good standing by the applicable lessees, the Purchaser may,
for the remainder of the term of the Leases, take possession of and use
the Assats for its own use and benefit without any interrupticn by the
Vendor of any other persen claiming by, through or under the Vendor,

Purchaser’'s Representations and Warranties
The Purchasear represents and warranis o the Vender that:

(a)  Investment Canada Act: The Purchaser is not a2 “non-Canadian” for the
purposes of the fnvesiment Canada Act (Canada) or, if the Purchaseris a
"nen-Canadian”, the Purchaser will comply with the requirements of that
Act to the extent, if any, that this transaction is revievsable or subject to
noiification requirements thereunder: and

{b)  Well And Tangibles Licence Transfers: The Purchaser s eligible under
the Regulations o accept the transfer of the applicable licence or approval
for any Weill of Tangibles for which it is intended to replace the Vendor as

operaior following Closing.

Survival of Representations and Warranties

Each Party acknowledges that the other may rely on the representations and
warranites made by that Pariy under Clauses 6.01, 6.02 and €.03. Those
representations and warranties will be true en the Effective Date and on the
Ciosing Date, and they continue in {ull force and eifect and survive the Closing
Dale for a period of twelve months, for the benefit of the Party for which they
were made. In ihe absence of fraud, however, no claim or action may be
commenced for a breach of any representation or warranty, unless, within that
pericd, written notice specifying the breach in reasonable detail has been
provided to the Pariy that made that representation or warranty, and each Party
waives any 7ighis it may have at law or otherwise {o commence a claim or action
for a breach of a representation or warranty afier that period. Nothing in this
Clause, Ariicle 13.00 or any other provision of this Agreement wiil preclude a
Party that made such a representation or warraniy from offering as a possible
defence that the other Party did not. in fact, rely to ils detriment on ihe
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represeniation or warranty alleged by ii io have been breached hereunder.

6.05 No Additional Representations or Warranties by Vendor

7.00

7.01

anibit A

A,

The Verndor makes no representations or warranties 1o the Purchaser
except as sai forth in Clauses 6.01 and 6.02. Except to the extent
provided in Ciause £.02, the Vendor does nct warrant tiile {o the Assels or
make representations or warranties respecting: (i) the quantity, gualiity or
recoverability of Pelroleurm Substances; (i) any estimates of the value of
the Assets or the revenues applicable to future production from the Lands;
(i) any engineering. geological or other interpretations or evaluations
respecting ihe Assels; {iv) the rates of produciion of Petroleum
Substances; or (v) the quality, condition or serviceability of the Assets or
the suitability of their use for any purpose. Without restricling the
generality of the foregoing, the Purchaser acknowledges that it has made
(and will, prior to Closing, continue to make) its own mdepandent
evaluation and inspection ¢f the Assets and their condition as part of ifs
due diligence process, and that, subject always 1o Clauses 6.01, 56.02 and
6.04, it has relied on that independent review for its assessment of the
condition, quanium and value of the Assets.

Except for the representations and warranties in Clauses £.01 and 6.02,
or in the event of fraud, the Purchaser forever releases and discharges
the Vendor and each of its direciors, officers, servants, agents and
employees from any Losses and Liabilities of the Purchaser and ils
assigns and successors, as a result of the use or reliance upon advice,
iniormation and materials periaining to the Asseis delivered or made
avaitable to the Purchaser by the Vendar ar any of iis direcicrs, officers,
agenis or emplovees prior (o or under the Agreement, including, without
limitation, any evaluations, projections, reporis and inierpreiive or non-
factual maierials prepared by or {or the Vendar, or othenviss in iis

possession.

THIRD PARTY RIGHTS AND CONSENTS

Rights of First Refusal

A,

If any poriion of the Assets is subject fo a Right of First Refusal, or if the
disposttion herein requires the consent or approval of any third party
under ihe Title and Operating Documents, the Vendor will sromptly serve
all requirad notices following execution of this Agreement. Each such
notice will include a request for a waiver of any Right of First Refusal or for
the granting of any requirad consent.

The Purchaser will supply to the Vendcr, in good faith and on a
reasonatle basis, the velue or allocation proposed by the Purchaser for
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any of the Assets fer which a Right of First Refusal notice is required
under this Ciause. The Pariies will consult with respect to that value or
allocation as appropriate in the circumsiances. The Vendor will use the
agreed upon value or allocation for the purposes of this Clause, provided
that any dispuie between the Parties with respeci to that value or
allocation will be resolved under Article 2.00.

Insofar as third parties elect to exercise any Right of First Refusal, the
Vendor will promptly notily the Purchaser of that exercise. |n such event,
the Purchaser will proceed only with the acquisition of those interests in
the Assets to which those exercised third parly Rights of First Refusal do
not directly pertain. The value and description of the Assets will be
amended under Clause 1.02, and, subjeci t¢ Subclause D of this Clause
and other provisions of the Agreement, the Pariies will preceed with
Closing for those unaffecied Assets, with a resultant adjustment of

accounts.

The Purchasar may, by notice tc the Vendor prior to the Closing Date,
terminate this Agreement if the value of the Assets deleted from the
Assets through the exercise of Righis of First Refusal by third parties and
because of uncured Title Defecis exceeds the threshold prescribed by
Paragraph 8.028B(d) applies.

8.00 PURCHASERS REVIEW

8.01

Exhibi A

Vendor to Provide Access

The Vendor will, subject io the Regulations, th

he Title and Operating Decumen:s

and Acticle 16.00:

(a)

(o)

provide the Purchaser and ifs nominees reasonable access to the
Vendor's records, files and documenis constituting the Miscellaneous
Interests ai the Vendor's office during normal business hours, for the
purpose of the Purchaser's review of the Assets and the Vendor's title
thereto, including, without limitation, the Tille and Operating Documents,
provided that the Vendor may exclude from the Title and Operaling
Documents all commercial or business terms that do not affaci the

Assets: and

provide the Purchaser and its nocminees with a reasonable cpportunity to
inspect the Assets relating fo title, environmental, site inspection and
production matiers at the Purchaser’s sole cost, risk and axpense, insofar
as the Vendor can reasonably provide that access.
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8.02 Title Defects

The Purchaser will conduct its review of the Vendor's title 1o the Assels
with reasonable diligence, Not tater than seven Business Days prior {o the
Closing Date, the Purchaser will give the Vendor notice ¢f the Purchaser's
Title Defects. That notice will specify: (i) those Title Defects in reasonable
detail; (i) the Asseis direcily affected thereby ("the Affected Asselis"), (iif)
any material Agreemenis or docuiments related to the Title Defecis that
appeared o be missing; and (iv) the Purchaser's reascnable requirements
for the curing of those Titlle Defecis. The Vendor will diligently make
reasonable efforis io cure those Title Defects not later than three (3)

Business Days prior to the Closing Date.

A,

B Insofar as the Title Defects described in the notice in the preceding
Subclause have not been cured {o the Purchaser's reasonable
satisfaction on or before three business days pricr to the Closing Date, the
Purchaser will, on or before the Closing Date, give the Vendor notice of
the Title Defects that the Purchaser is not prepared ic waive. The
Purchaser will include in that notice the vaiue reasonably atiribuied to
each affected interest by the Purchaser. The Parties will proceed with
Closing, without adjustment {o the Purchase Price due {o those uncured
Title Defacts, unless ihe iotal value atiributed ic them by the Purchaser in
that notice exceeds ten per ceni of the Purchase Price. If the total value
50 attributed to those uncured Title Defects exceeds thal amount, the
Purchaser may elect, by noiice to the Vendor ¢n or belore the Closing

Date, o do one of the fsllowing:

/

{a)  delay the Closing Date to such laier daie as is agreed by the

Parties, tc provide the Vendor with additional time {o cure the
remaining Title Defecis. at which poini this Subclause will again
apply to any {hen uncured Tille Defects;

{h)  waive the uncurad Tille Defects and proceed with Closing;

(c)  proceed with Closing for cnly those Assels not directly affected by
the applicable uncured Titie Defects, in which case the value and
description of the Assets will be amended under Clause 1,02 and
accounts adjusied accordingly, provided that the Vendor may delay
Closing by two (2) Business Days, by notice o the Purchaser.

{d)y subjectic Subclause 8.02F, terminate this Agreement if the value
of the Affected Assets for which the Tiile Defects remain uncured,
or the Assets exciuded from Closing through the exercise of Righis
of First Refusal by third parties are 10% or more of the Purchase

Price.
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C. Failure of the Purchaser to make an slection on or before the Closing
Date will be deamed 1o be an election under Paragraph (b} of ihe
preceding Subclause. Upon Ciosing, ihe Purchaser will bg deemed o
have waived permanenily all Title Defecis pentaining io the acquired
Assets that were identified by the Purchaser in the notice issued under
Subclause 8.02A. However, this Subclause will not limit the Parties’
respective righis with respect {o cther Title Defects respecting the
acquired Assets that are subsequently discovered by the Purchaser,
insofar cnly as those Title Defects are a resuli of the breach of the
Vendor's obligations under Clause 5.02 or, subject to Clauses 6.04 and
13.01, in breach of the Vendor's representations and warranties under

Article 6.00.

0. if the Purchaser elects to proceed with Closing under Paragraph (¢)
thereof and the Vendor does not exercise its right o terminate this
Agreement thereunder, ihe Purchase Price for Closing will exclude the
value attributed o the Affected Assets by the Purchaser under Subclause
8.02B or such other value as the Parties may agiee, Insofar as the
Parties have not agreed on the value of the Affecled Assels, they will
determine that value under Article 9.00, as of the Effective Date, provided
that this amouni will not exceed the value aitributed (o those Affected
Assets by the Purchaser. The Parties wili promptly acjust accounts
accordingly following a determination of the value of the Affecied Assets

under Arficle 9.00.

E. if Closing proceeds under Paragraph (o) thereof and, witlin thirly (30)
days cf the Closing Date, the Vendor cures or reciifies uncured Title
Defects to the reasonable satisfaction of the Purchaser for any of the
Afiected Assets for which Closing did not occur, it may, by notice {o the
Purchaser wiinin that peried, require the Purchaser to proceed with the
acquisition of those Affecied Assels. This Agreement will apply, mutatis
mutandis, to that acquisition, as of the Effeclive Date. The Purchase
Price applicable to these Affected Assets will be the amount of the
reduction in the Purcnase Price applicatle {c the exclusicn of those
Affecied Assets from Closing, subject to the adjustments provided in
Article 4.00. The Purchase Price for ihose Aifected Assets will be payable
by the Purchaser at the Ciosing Jor those Alfecied Assets, but in nc event
later than forty-iive (45; days following the Closing Date hersunder.

F. If the Purchaser elects to terminate this Agreement under Paragraph (d)
thereof and the Vendor does not agree with the value allocated to the
Affected Assets for which the Title Defecis remain uncured, the Vendor
may. by notice io the Purchaser within one (1) Business Day of the
Purchaser's nofice to terminate this Agreament, reguire the applicable
values {o be determined under Ardicle 8.00. i the Vendor serves that
notice, the Parties will be deemed to have agreed to delay the Closing
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9.00

9.01

3.02

Extibit A

Date uniil two (2) Business Days following that determination, at which
point Subctause 3.028 will again apply.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION
Disputes initially Referred To Mediation

The Parties will attempt o resolve any dispuie arising hereunder through
consultation and negotiaiion in good faith. If those attempts fail, 2 Party may, by
notice to the other Party at any time during those negotiations, request the other
Party to attempt to resolve that dispute through mediation, including with that
notice sufficient detail to enable the other Party to understand the issues that
remain in dispute. The Parties will atlempt to agree on the selection of a
mediator within five (5) Business Days of receipt of that notice, unless a Party
gives notice to the oiher Party within that period that it is not prepared to proceed
with mediation respecting that dispuie. If the Parties are proceeding with a
mediation and are unable {¢ select a mediator within thai period, either Party
may theraaiter deliver a writien request {o The Canadian roundation for Dispute
Resolution to attempt to select, within two (2) Business Days of the receipi of
that requesi, a mediator, qualified by education and experience to resclve that
dispuie, and the Parties agree that the person so selected will be the mediator
for the dispuie. Unless otherwise agreed, the Pariies will commence a mediation
within {ifteen (15) Business Days of the selection of the mediator, and the
mediation process will continue uniil the dispute is resoived, a Party serves
notice o the other Party that it wishes to terminate the mediation or the mediater
maxes a writlen determination that the dispuie cannoi be resclved through
meciation, whichgver first occurs. The Parlies will each bear ihelr own cosls
associaied with a madiation, but will share the common cosis of a mediation
equally, inciuding, without limitation, the cost of ihe mediator.

Arbitration Broceedings

A Party that wishes to pursue fuither proceedings after a falled or terminated

nediation under Clause 8.01 must refer the dispute to binding arbitration for final
resclution if the dispute pertains to: {i) the degree to which it is reascnable for
the Vendor tc exclude righis from the Surface Rights for its other operations
under Subclause 1.01EE; (i) ihe degree to which Clesing is delayed for reasons
solgly aitributable {0 the Vendor under Clause 3.03; (i) adjustments under
Article 4.00; (iv) the value or aflocaticn {o be used in 2 Right of First Refusal
notice under Subclause 7.018; or (v) the value of Assets for which Title Defecis
remain uncured under Clause 8.02.

Any such arbitration, and any other arbitration the Parties may agree o conduct
heraunder, will ke conducted under the Commercial Arbitration Rules of The
Canadian Foundation for Dispute Resolution. Except as otherwise provided in
this Clause, a Party may commence a court action with respact to any other
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dispute after a failed or terminated mediation.
5,03 Limitation Periods and interim Relief

All limitation periods respecting the commencement of an action will he stayed
during the peried that the Parties are aitempting to resolve a dispute under
Clause §.01 or 9.02. A Parly may, at any time it believes it necessary to protect
its interest during that period. seek interim or provisiongi relief, in the form of a
temporary restraining order, preiiminary injunction or other interim equitable relief
concerring a dispute under this Agreement, notwithstanding anything io the
contrary in this Article.

10.00 CONDITIONS TO CLOSING

10.01 Conditions for Benefit of Each Party

The obligation of a Party to compleie the transaction herein is subject o the
following conditions precedent that have been included for the muiual benefit of
the Partes:

{a)  investment Canada Act Competition Act: Any approvals required under
the investment Canada Aci (Canada) and the Compelition Act (Canada)
will have been abtained;

{b) Rights Of First Refusal: All Rights of First Refusal will have been
exercised, been waived or lapsed by the effluxion of time at oy prior to the
Ciosing Date;

{c) Material Compliance: The othear Parly will have comgiled in all material
respects with iis obligations under this Agreement 0 te performed or
complied with 2i or prior to the Clesing Date; and

{d)  Representations and Warranties Correct: The represantations and
warranties made by the other Party under Article 8,00 wilt be true and
correct in all material respects as of the Effective Date and the Closing
Date, except for those changes thereto that necessarily arise as the result
of the cperation of the provisions of the Agreement, anc, each Pariy will
have delivered a Represeniations and Warranties Certificate {o that effect
at Closing.

10.02 Conditions for Benefit of Purchaser

The cbligation of the Purchaser {o complete the acquisition hereunder is subjact
to the foliowing conditions precedent that have been included for its sole benefit:
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{a)  No Substantial Damage: Except as consenied {o in writing by the
Purchaser, no substantial unrepaired damage or phiysical alteration of the
Tangibles wilt have occurred belween the earlier ¢f the Effective Date or
the date of the Agreement, as applicabie, and the Closing Date which, in
the Purchaser's reasonable opinion, would materiaily and adversely afiect

the value of Assels;

(b)  Delivery of Conveyance Documents: The Vendor will have delivered to
the Purchaser a General Cenveyance and these other decumenis and
materials described in Subclause 3.03A that are to be provided to the

Furchaser at Closing; and

(c)  Discharge of Security Interests: The Vendor will have deliverad to the
FPurchaser, at no cost to the Purchaser, registrable discharges of all
Security Interesis or a "no interest” letter that is satisfactory to the
Purchaser, acting reasonably, from the financial institution(s) or ciher ihird
pariies holding those Securily Interests.

10.03 Conditions for Benefit of Vendor

The obligation of the Vendor to complete the disposition hereunder is subject ic
the following conditions precedent that have been included for its sole benefit:

{a) Required Payment: The Purchaser will have tendered to the Vendor in
the prescribed manner all amounts required o be paid by the Purchaser
nereunder at or prior to Closing Date, as applicable: and

Delivery of Conveyance Documents: The Purchaser wiil have delivered
to the Vendor copies ¢f a General Conveyance and the Specific
Conveyances execuied by the Purchaser.

{b)

10.04 Waiver of Conditions Precedant

The Party for the benefit of which conditions precedent have been included may
walve any of them, in whole or in part, by netice te the other Party. However,
neither Party may waive the existence or operation of any Rignt of First Refusat
or any condition that has been included respecting approvals required under the
Regulations.

10.05 Failure to Satisfy Conditions

if any condition precedent in Clause 10.01, 10.02 or 1C.03 has not been satisfied
at or before the Closing Date and that condition has not been waived under
Clause 10.04 by the Party for the benefit of which it was included, that Party may
terminate this Agreementi by notice to the other Party. However, a Party may not
terminate this Agreement in this manner after Closing, and any remedies
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10.06

11.00

11.01

11.02

12.00

12.01

Exabit A

thereafter for the failure to saiisfy such a condition will be fimited io damages, if
applicable.

Parties to Exercise Diligence with Respect to Conditions

Each Party will proceed in good faith and use all reasonable effcris with respect
ic all maiters within its contrel to satisfy the conditions referred to in Clauses
10.01, 10.02 and 10.03. A Party that fails to compiy with its cbligations under
this Clause with respect to a particular condition may noi rely on the failure to
satisfy that condition as a basis for the termination of this Agreement under

Clause 10.05.
OPERATORSHIP

Operatorship and Third Parties

Nothing in this Agreement will be interpreted as an assignment for the Vendor's
rights as operator of any of the Assetls under the Title and Cperating Documents
or as any assurance by the Vendor that ihe Purchaser will be able {o serve as
operator for any of ithe Assets thereunder at or after Closing. The Vendor will
assist the Purchaser on a reasonable efierts basis for Purchaser to hecome
cperator under the Title and Operating Documents insofar as the Vendor is the

current Operator.

Signs and Notifications

After Closing, and insofar as Purchasar bacomes operator of the Assets the
Vendor and Purchaser will coordinate the removal of any signs that indicate the
Vendaor's ownership or operation of the Asseis. It will be the Purchazer's
responsibility fo erect or install anv signs that may be required by ihe Reguiations
io indicate that the Purchaser is the owner of operalor of the Asssis, The
Purchaser will complete any such replacement of signs within three (3} monihs
of the Closing Date, and the Vendor may proceed with ihe replacement of those
signs at the Purchaser's expense, inscfar as they aie not repiaced by that iime.
It will alsc be the Purchaser's responsibility {o notify suppliers, coniractors,
governmental agencies, gas transporters and other affected third pariies of iis
interest in the Assets within sixty {80) days o the Closing Date.

DEFAULT

Remedies of Injured Party

If a Party (the "Defaulting Party”) fails to comply with an obligaticn under the
Agreement except as permitied by Clause 8.02 herein and Closing does not
occur as a result, the other Party (the “Injured Party”) may, by notice to the

Defaulting Party elect:

Page 34

UAGiana Banks\WPurchase and Sale! doc



{a)  tocontinue to ireat the Agreement as binding and enforceable; or

(b)  toireat the Agreement as terminated by reason of the non-fuffiflment of
the Defauiling Party’s obligations and, if the Injured Party sc decides and
subject to Article 5.00, pursue a claim for damages, provided that any
Deposit will be retainad in trust by the injured Party until the resolution of
the disputa.

If the Injured Party elects 10 proceed under this Clause, it will be deemed {o have
waived ail other remedies that may othenvise have bean available to it at faw or

equity for that defauk.

However, the Injured Party will be deemed to treat the Agreement as binding and
enforceable until it elects, by notice to the Defaulting Party, o apply Paragraph

(b) of this Clause.

12.02 Interest Accrues on Amounts Owing

Subject {6 Subclause 8.020, any amount owing to a Party by the cther Parly
hereunder after Clesing and remaining unpaid will bear interest, compounded
and computed monthly at the rate of two (2%) percent per annum above the
Prime Ratg, from the day that amount was due {o be paid until ths day it is paid,
regardless of whether the Party has given the other Party pricr notice of the
accrual of interast hersunder,

13.00 LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION

13.0% Responsibiiity of Vendor

A Subjecito Clauses 8.04, 13.03 and 13.04 and provided Closing has
occurred, the Vendor wilk:

(a)  be liable to the Purchaser for iis Losses and Liabilities; and, in
addition

(b)  indemnify and hold harmless Purchaser and each cf its directors,
officers, agents and emplioyees from and against ali Losses and

Liabilities;

as & direct resulf of any matter atiributable to the Assets and occurring or
accruing prior to the Effective Date, except any Losses and Liabilities
insofar as they are caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct
of the Purchaser, or any of its directors, officers, agenis, employees or
assigns.
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B. The responsibility prescribed by the preceding Subclause, however, is not
a litte warraniy and does not provide an axiension of any represeniation
the Vendor's breach thereof or any extension of the Purchaser's rights
under Clause 8.02. Subject only to Subclause 4.02C and in the absence
of fraud, no claim or action may be commenced by the Purchaser under
this Clause, unless, within tweive months following the Closing Date.
wriiten notice describing the claim in reasonable detail has been provided
io the Vendor, and the Purchaser hereby waives any rights it may have at
law cr othenwise to commence such a claim or action after that period.

13.02 Responsibility of Purchaser

Subject to Clauses 5.04 and 6.04 and provided Closing has occurred, the
Purchaser wili:

(@) be liable {o the Vendor for its Losses and Liabilfities; and, in addition

(b)  indemnify and hold harmless the Vendor and each of its directors,
ofiicers, agenis and employees from and against all Lossas and
Liabilities;

as a direci result of any matter attributable to the Assets and occurring on or
subsequent to the Efiective Date, except any Lesses and Liabilities insofar as
they are caused by a breach of the Vendor's representations or warranties under
Article 8.00 or by the gress negligence or willfui misconduct of the Vendor, or any
of ils directors, officers, agents cr employees. The responsibility prescribed by
this Clause, however, does not provide an exignsion of any regresentation or
warranty uncer Clauses 8.01 and .03 or an additicnal remedy for the
Purchaser's hreach ther=of.

13.03 Limit on Party’s Responsibility
A, The Verdor's {oial liabilities and indemnities under the Agreemen,
including, without limitation. any claims relaling io iis represantations and

warraniies, will not exceed the Purchase Price. as adjustad, excepiin the
event of fraud and as required under Clause 4.072.

B. No claim will be made against a Party by the other Party under the
Agreement unless the total Losses and Liabilities alleged by the Party
making the claim excesd en per cent of the Purchase Price.

13.04 Assets Acquired on “As Is” Basis

Notwithstanding the previous provisions of this Article and subject to Clause
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13.05

Exnibit A

8.02, the Purchaser acknovdedges ihat it is acguiring the Assets on an "as is”
basis. as of the Effective Date. The Purchaser acknowledges that it is familiar
with the condition ¢f the Assets, including the past and present use of the
Petrcleum and Natural Gas Rights and the Tangibles, that the Vendor has
provided the Purchaser with a reascnable opporiunity to inspect the Assets
under Clause 8.01 and that the Purchaser is not relying upon any representation
or warranty of the Vender as to the cendilion, enviranmental or otherwise, of the
Assets, except as is specifically made under Clause 6.02. Providad Closing has

oceurred, the Purchaser will:

(@)  be liable and responsible o the Vendor for its Losses and Liabilities; and,
i addition

(b} indemnify and hold harmless the Vendor and each of its diractors,
oificers, agenis and employees from and against all Losses and

Liabilities;

as a direct resuk of any matter attributable to any Environmental Liabilities and
Abandonment and Reclamation Obligations periaining to the acquired Assets,
regardless of the daie from which they may have accrued. In additicn, the
Vendor will alsc retain those cther rights and remedies available io it under the
Regulaticns, under the common faw or othenvise with respect to any claim it may
have against the Purchaser with respect {o those Losses and Liakilities. The
Purchaser hereby releases the Vender from any claims it may have against the
Vendar with respect to all such Environmenial Liabilities and Abandonment and
Reciamation Chligations under ihe Regulations, at common law ¢r otherwise,
including, without limitation, the right to name the Vendor as a third party under
any action commenced against the Purchaser. Nothing in this Clause, however,
will operaie to imit any representation or warranly made by the Vendor under
Clause 6.62 with respect to the environmenial condilion of the Assets or o affect
the Purchaser's right to make a claim against the Vendor for the breach thersof
hereunder, subject to Clause 6.04.

Notice of Claims

A Ii, aiter Closing, a claim 18 asserted by a third parity in circuimstances ihai
may give rise (o an indamnity under this Article, the Party against which
that claim is asserted must give notice thereof o the other Parly as soon
as is reasonably possible, including with that nolice reasonsble details
about that claim. The Parties will consult in respect thereof and in
determining if that claim and any legal proceedings relating thereto should
be resisied, compromised or seitled.

B. A Party must make available to the other Party all information in its
possession or to which it has access thal may be reievani io a claim
described in the preceding Subclause, excluding any privileged
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comimunicaiions of correspondence. 1he Purchaser must provide the
Vendor with access ¢ the Asseis to which that ciaim relates o the exieni
reasonably necessary in conneciion with that claim. No¢ such claim ior
indemnity will apply if the claim is settled or compromised without the
written consent of the indemnifying Party, which consent may not be
unreasonably withheld or delayed.

13.06 Substitution and Subrogation

Insofar as is possible, each Party will have full rights of substitution and
subrogaticn in and to all representations and warraniies by others previously

given or made respecting the Assets.
14.00 ASSIGNMENT

14.01 Assignments Before Closing

Prior to Closing, neither Party may assign any interest in or under ihis Agreemeat
or {o the Asseis withoui the prior writien consent of the other Parly (which

consent may be arbitrarily withheld}, except as rmay be required by the Vendor (o
compiy with its obligations respecting any Righi of First Refusal, because of any
earing or payoul recovery under the Title and Operaling Documents oras 2

result of any operation of Clause 5.02.
14.02 Assignments by Purchaser After Closing

No assignment, transfer ¢r other disposttion of this Agreement or any of the
Asseis by the Purchaser after Closing will relieve it from iis obligaiions {o the
Vendor under this Agreement. The Vendoer wilt have ihe oplion to claim paymani
or performance of those obligations from the Purchaser or its assignee, and tc
bring proceedings for any default against either or all of them. However, nothing
in this Agreement will entitle the Vendor {c receive duglicate payment or
performance of the same obligation.

15.00 NOTICES

15.01 Service of Notice

Any notice required or permiited under the Agreement must be in writing, and
may be served:

by delivering the notice tc a Party at its current address for service under
Clause 15.02. A notice so served will be deemed to be received by the
addressee when actually deliverad, provided that such delivery is during
normal business hours on any Business Day. If a notice is not delivered
on a Business Day or is delivered after normal business hours, ihat notice

(a)
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will be deemed 10 have heen received by that Parly ai the baginning of the

iirst Business Day next following the time of the delivery; or
o) by facsimite or other elgcironic medium directad (o a Pariy at iis currem
address for service under Clause 15.02. A nctice so served wiil be
deemed to be received by the addressee when aciually received by it, if
receivad within normal business hours on any Busiress Day or at the
beginning of the next Business Day following transmission if that nofice is
not received during normal business hours.

15.02 Addresses for Service

The Parties' initial addresses for service of notices nereunder are:
VENDOR: GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION
‘SOO 444 - 5" Avenue S
Calgary. Alberia

Attention: Vice Prasident, Land

PURCHASER:

for service by nctice {o the olher Party. That
eafiar will be effective jor afl purpcses ¢f the

AT

A Parly may ch'mgb its address
changed address {or service thar
Agresmernt.

16.00 CONFIDENTIALITY
15.61 Purchaser’s Qbligation to Maintain Information Caonfidential

Until Ciesing, informaticn respecting the Assais ghiained by the Purchaser
hergunder wifl be refainad in conw*mcb hy it and used only for the purposes of
this transaciton. Upon Closing, the Purchasar’s right to use or disclose thai

information will be subject oniy (o any apphcm%e Title and O';e"aung Documents,
greunder thal does not

Any additional information oblained by the Purchaser iy
relate to the Assets will conlinua o he freaied as confideniial by ii, and wili not
be used by it without the prior written consent of ihe Vendor. Howrever, these

resirictions on disclosure and vse of information will nei apply, insofar as

[oge2 ¥

information:
is or becomes publicly available thr ough no act or omission of the
Burchaser or its consultants or advisors;

(a)
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{b) is subszquently obiained lawifully from a third pariy, which, afier
reasonabie inguiry, the Purchaser dees not reasonably believe is
ohligaied io the Vendor (o maintain that information as confidential;

{c) is already in the Purchaser’s possession at the time of disclosure io it
hereunder, without restriction on disclosure; or

(d)  isrequired to be disciosed under the Reguiations cr by the direction of
any court, tribunal or other regutatory body having jurisdiction.

However, specific items of information wili not be considered to be in the public
domain merely because more general information respecting the Assets is in the
public demain.

16.02 Consultants and Advisors Bound

If the Purchaser employs consultants, adviscrs or agents to assist in its review of
the Assels, it will ensure that they comply wiih the restrictions on the use and
disclosure of information set forth in Clause 16.01.

1£.03 Confidentiality Agreement

Notwithstanding Clause 16.01, the obligations of the Purchaser under this Asticle
are in addition {o, and not in substitution for, its obligaiions under any
coniidentiaiily Agreement made between the Vendor and the Purchaser for iis
possible acquisition of the Assels, except as cthenwise provided in thai
Agreemaent.

17.00 FUBLIC ANNCURNCENNTS
17.01 Parties to Discuss Public Announcements

The Parties wili co-operaie with ezach other in releasing to third pariies
information concerning this Agreement and the transaction contemplated herein.
A Party will provide the cther Party with a draft cf all press releases and other
releases of infermation for dissemination (¢ the public a sufiicient time prior to ifs
release (o enable the other Party fo review that drait and provide any comments
it may have. The proposed release is subject to the prior written approval of the
other Party, which approval may noi be unreasonably withheld or delaved.
However, a Party may provide information about this transaction to any
governmental agency, any requlatory authority or {o the public, insofar cnly as is
required by the Regulations or securities laws or siock exchange requiremenis
applicable io the Party, and a Party may provide information about this
transaction to a bank or other financial institution to obtain financing or any
required conseni of its bank or other financiat lender. The Vendor may also
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18.00

18.01

18.02

18.04

18.05

Lahbi A

disclose infermation pertaining to this Agreemant and ihe identity of the
Purchaser, insofar as is required 0 enable the Vendor {o iulfili its obligations
periaining fo Rights of Firsi Refusal and other third pany rights under Aricle

7.00.

MISCELLANEQOUS PROVISIONS

No Merger

The covenants, representations, warranties, liabilities and indemnities in this
Agreemant will survive Closing on the basis set forth in this Agreement. They
will be deemed {o apply io the Genegral Conveyance, the Specific Conveyances
and all other instruments conveying any oi the Assets form the Vendor fo the
Purchaser. They will not merge with those documents, notwithstanding the
terms of these documents and any rule of law, equity or statue to the contrary.
and all such rules are hereby waived.

Further Assurances

hereafter as may be necessary, the Parties will, on a
timely basis and without further consideration, comglete such other documents
ctions as may be reascnably necessary o uliill their

Atthe Clesing Daie and t

ut f
and take such other a
respective obligations hereunder.

Waiver Must Be In Writing

Except as ctherwise provided herein, only & wiitten waiver by a Party of any i
breach (whether actual or anticipated) of any of the ierms, condiions, :
reprasentations or warraniies contained herein wiil be effective or binding upon

ithat Party. Any walver so given will exiend only to the particuiar breach waived,

and will not limit or aifect any rights for any other or future breach.

Governing Law

This Agreement will be ireated as a coniract made in the Province of Alberia.
This Agreement will he subject {o and be interpreied and enforced in accordance
with ine laws in effect in the Province of Alberla, provided that this does not
affect iha obligations of the Parties to comply with the Regulations applicable to
any Assets located outside the Province of Alberia. Subject to Article 8,00, each
Party accepts the jurisdiction of the courts of the Province of Alherta and all

courts of appeal therefrom with respect to this Agreement and any associated
legal proceadings beiwesn the Parties.

Time

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.

Poge )
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18.06

18.07

18.08

18.09

18.10

Exhiil A

No Amendment Except In Writing

Subject to Clauses 1.02 and 15.02, amendments to this Agreement may only be
in writing, executed by the Parties.

Resuits of Termination

If this Agreement is terminated prior to Closing, the Parties will be released from
all obligations under this Agreement, except for those under Articles 12.00 and
16.00 and the warranties, representations or other obligations breached prior to
ihat termination, provided that the Purchaser's abligations under Article 16.00 will
nc lenger be in effect two (2) years following the date of that termination. If this
Agreement is terminated prior to Clesing, the Purchaser will promptly retumn to
the Vendor all materials delivered to it by the Vendor hereunder and all copies of
them that may have been made by or for the Purchaser, and, subject io the
provisions of Article 12.00, the Vendor will promptly return to the Purchaser any

Deposit.
Supersedes Earlier Agreements

This Agreement supersedes ail cther Agreements between the Pariies
respecling the Assats, and, excapt for the Title and Cperating Documenis and
any confidentiality Agreement described in Clause 16.03, expresses the aniire
Agreement of the Parties with respact to this transaction.

Exearcise of Remedies

No faillure of a Party te exercisa any right or remedy will cperaie as a waiver
thereof, A Parly will not be preciuded from exercising any right available io it at

jaws, equity or Dy statuie because of its exercise of any singie or pariial right, and

a Panty may exercise any such remecdies independenily or in combination.

Enurement

Subject {c the provisions of Ariicle 14,00, ihis Agreement will be binding upon
and enure to the benefit of the Parlies and their respeciive rusiees, receivers,

receliver-managers, successors and permitled assighs.
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INWITNESS WHEREGCF the parties have duly execuisd this Agreement as of the day 218
year irst above writign.

GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION
\.«’endor

Shawn McDonald
Chief Financiat Ofiicer

This is ihe execulion page for ihis Purchase and Sale Agrsamisnt made between Srand Banhs
Energy Dorparation as Vemdior ar Poan M eemhegay dat sl
the Sth day of April. 2007

Extubd A Fage 13
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File No. 82-348%6

GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION

For Immediate Release

(“GBE” - TSX-V)

Grand Banks Announces Appointment of Chief Financial Officer
Calgary, Alberta — May 31, 2007

Grand Banks Energy Corporation (the “Corporation” or “Grand Banks™) announces today the appointment of
John Kalman as Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer effective June 1, 2007. Mr. Kalman is a
Chartered Accountant with over 20 years of experience, the last 19 years spent in positions of ever increasing

responsibility in financial management and reporting in the oil and gas industry. Mr. Kalman has held the
position of Vice President, Finance and CFO with several publicly traded companies.

Grand Banks is listed on the TSX-Venture Exchange under the Symbol GBE.

For further information Grand Banks Energy Corporation
please contact: 1600, 444 — 5" Avenue S.W.

Calgary, Alberta T2P 2T8
Phone: (403) 262-8666
Fax:  (403)262-8796

E.C. (Ted) McFeely
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

The TSX Venture Exchange does not accept responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy of this release.
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TSX venture

FORM 4G
“%SUMMARY FORM - INCENTIVE STOCK OPTIONS

Re: GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION (the “issuer”).

EXCHANGE

Month in which stock options have been granted or amended: May 2007.

File No. 82-34896

TS)

This Form must be filed at the conclusion of each calendar month during which options have
been granted or amended.

New Options Granted:

Name of Date of news Position of Date of No. of Exerc Expiry
Optionee release Optionee Grant Optioned ise Date
disclosing grant {Director/ Shares Price
(if applicable) Officer
/Employee/
Consultant

John n/a Consultant May 9, 100,000 | $1.40 | 9/5/12

Kalman 2007 100,000 | $1.40 | 9/5/13

100,000 | $1.40 | 9/5/14
Sandi Godin | n/a Consultant May 14, | 3,334 $1.40 | 14/5/12
2007 3,333 $1.40 | 14/5/13
3,333 $1.40 | 14/5/14
Norma n/a Consultant May 14, | 16,668 $1.40 | 14/5/12
Messenger 2007 16,666 | $1.40 | 14/5/13
16666 $1.40 | 14/5/14
Diane Park | n/a Consultant May 14, | 1,000 -$1.40 | 14/5/12
2007 11000 | $1.40 | 14/513
1,000 $1.40 | 14/5/14
Chelsey n/a Employee May 14, | 1,000 $1.40 | 14/5/12
Weiler 2007 1,000 | $1.40 | 14/5/13
1,000 $1.40 | 14/5/14
Jean Sharp | n/a Employee May 14, | 6,668 $1.40 | 14/5/12
2007 16666 | $1.40 | 14/5/13
6,666 $1.40 | 14/5/14

FORM 4G SUMMARY FORM - INCENTIVE STOCK OPTIONS Page 1

(as at March 11, 2004)



Total number of optioned shares proposed for acceptance: 386,000

o Date shareholder approval was obtained for the Stock Option Plan: June 6, 2006

e Subsequent to the grant of options presented above, state the number of shares remaining
available for issuance under the plan: 253,917.

Amended Options:

Name of Optionee No. of Amended Original Date New/Current
Optioned Exercise of Grant Expiry Date
Shares Price

e If amendments are proposed to directors or officers options, disclose the date shareholder
approval was obtained for the amendment:

DECLARATION

The undersigned hereby certifies that:

1. The undersigned is a director and/or senior officer of the Issuer and has been duly
authorized by a resolution of the board of directors of the Issuer to make this Declaration.

2. The Issuer has not been put on notice to have its listing transferred to NEX, pursuant to
Policy 2.5 — Tier Maintenance Requirements and Inter-Tier Movement.

3. The Filing is either in all respects in accordance with Exchange Policy 4.4 — Incentive
Stock Options, in effect as of the date of this Declaration, or any deviations are indicated
herein.

4. As of the date of grant there were no Material Changes in the affairs of the Issuer which

were not publicly disclosed.

Acknowledgement - Personal Information

“Personal Information” means any information about an identifiable individual, and includes the
information contained in the tables, as applicabie, found in this Form.

FORM 4G SUMMARY FORM - INCENTIVE STOCK OPTIONS Page 2
(as at March 11, 2004)



The undersigned hereby acknowledges and agrees that it has obtained the express written
consent of each individual to:

(a) the disclosure of Personal Information by the undersigned to the Exchange (as defined in
Appendix 6A) pursuant to this Form; and

(b) the collection, use and disclosure of Personal Information by the Exchange for the
purposes described in Appendix 6A or as otherwise identified by the Exchange, from

time to time.

Dated May 31, 2007.

Shawn McDonald
Name of Director or Senior Officer

A

Signature

Chief Financial Officer

FORM 4G SUMMARY FORM - INCENTIVE STOCK OPTIONS Page 3.
{as at March 11, 2004)




File No. 82-34896

Grand ‘Banks

y Energy Corporation

For Immediate Release (“GBE” - TSX-V)

Grand Banks Announces First Quarter 2007 Results

Calgary, Alberta — May 29, 2007

Grand Banks Energy Corporation (the “Company” or “Grand Banks™) is pleased to announce its financial
results for the first quarter, ending March 31, 2007. The detailed financial statements and management
discussion and analysis for the quarter are accessible on the internet at the website www.sedar.com.

The first quarter of 2007 represented a relatively quiet building and consolidation period in which Grand
Banks undertook a number of measures that have positioned the Company for rapid growth going forward.
Although production volumes, revenue, and funds generated from operations during the first quarter of 2007
were lower than 2006 levels, the overall outlook for the Company is much better now than a year ago. Oil and
gas reserves increased by 102% (proved) and 94% (proved plus probable) at year end 2006 compared to 2005,
and the Company is poised to realize a significant jump in production volumes, revenues, and cash flow from
these reserve additions in the second half of 2007,

Three Months ended March 31,

2007 2006 % Change
Average Sales Volumes:
Crude oil & liquids - bbls/day 616 643 4
Natural gas — mcfiday 1,056 1,844 43
Sales volumes — boe/day (6:1) 792 951 (17N
Financial Results (Canadian $000’s)
Gross revenues $ 4,124 $ 4,632 (1
Net income (loss) $ (320) $ (425 25
Funds flow from operations $ 1,885 $ 2,803 (33)
Capital expenditures $ 2,939 $ 7,19 (59)
Working capital (deficiency) $(10,382) $ (2,576) (303)
Flow-through obligations (to year end) $ 2,864 $ 3,500 (18)
Total assets $ 50,618 $ 43,511 16

Production: Grand Banks has devoted a large amount of resources to planning and implementing the tie-ins
and facilities needed to bring our Tower Creek 2-21-55-27 W5M Leduc gas discovery well (Grand Banks
16.7% working interest) on production. The pipeline and dehydration facility for the well are now over 95%
completed. Commencement of production of the well, expected in mid June, at gross (raw) rates in the 20
MMcf/d range, will boost our corporate production levels, by about 400 boe/d (net sales) to about 1,100 boe/d.



.l

Grand Banks is listed on the TSX-Venture Exchange under the Symbol GBE.
For further information Grand Banks Energy Corporation
please contact: 1600, 444 — 5™ Avenue S.W.

Calgary, Alberta T2P 2T38

Phone: (403) 262-8666

Fax:  (403) 262-8796

E.C. (Ted) McFeely
Chairman, President and Chicf Executive Officer

The TSX Venture Exchange does not accept responsibility for the udequacy or accuracy of this release.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This press release contains forward-looking statements including expectations of future production. These
statements are based on current expectations that involve a number of risks and uncertainties, which
could cause actual results to differ from those anticipated.

BOEs may be misleading, particularly if used in isolation. A BOE conversion ratio of 6 Mcf: 1 bbl is
based on an energy equivalency conversion method primarily applicable at the burner tip and does not
represent a value equivalency at the wellhead.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") shouid be read in conjunction with the unaudited financial
statements of Grand Banks Energy Corporation (“Grand Banks” or the “Company”) and accompanying notes for the three
months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006. In this MD&A, production and reservas information are commonly reported in
units of barrels of oif equivalent ("boe”). For purposes of computing such units, nalural gas is converted to equivalent
barrels of oil using a conversion factor of six thousand cubic feet to one barrel of oil. This conversion ratio of 6:1 is based
on an energy equivalent welthead value for the individual products. Such disclosures of boes may be misleading,
particularly if used in isolation. Readers should be aware that historical results are not necessarily indicative of future
performance.

This MD&A and the unaudited interim financial statements and accompanying notes have been prepared by
management and approved by the Audit Gommittee of the Board of Directors of Grand Banks and include information to
May 29, 2007.

These interim financial statements have not been reviewed or audited on behalf of the shareholders by the
Company's independent external auditors, Deloitte & Touche, LLP.

All financial measures presented in this interim Report are expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated.

Highlights

Grand Banks Energy Corporation ("Grand Banks" or the "Company”) recorded average
sales of natural gas, crude oil and liquids during the three months ended March 31, 2007 of 792
boel/d versus 951 boe/d for the comparative period of 2006. Sales volumes for the period were
down due to the lack of development drilling activity and normal production declines from existing
wells.

In the first quarter of 2007, activity and corporate resources were focused on the tie-in of
wells drilled in 2006, particularly the Tower Creek gas discovery, which required the construction
of new production facilities. These facilities are expected to be completed in June, 2007 at which
time production from the well will commence.

Also during the first quarter, the Company consclidated its position in its Stoughton/Viewfield
property, which it subsequently disposed of effective May 1, 2007. The sale of this property and
reduced capital expenditures in the quarter has strengthened the Company's working capital
position. A strong balance sheet going forward along with the upceming increase in production
volumes related to the Tower Creek 02-21 well positions the Company for continued growth
through the drill bit. This strategy, which emphasizes lower risk horizontal development drilling
opportunities in Saskatchewan and Manitoba, is expected to steadily and more predictably
increase corporate production and reserves. As reserves are continually added in a cost effective
manner, depletion will decline and profitability will increase. Grand Banks will continue to devote
a portion of its budget to high impact exploratory projects, financed primarily with the proceeds of
flow-through financings, including the second Tower Creek well, which is expected to spud in
June 2007. This strategy is particularly well suited to Grand Banks because the tax pools
renounced to investors in flow-through shares are offset by corporate tax pools in excess of
$50,000,000.



The following table summarizes the results for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2007 and 2006:

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2007 2006 Change
%)
Sales Volumes
Crude oil and liquids (abist) 616 643 27) (4)
Natural gas (mctid) 1,056 1,844 (788) (43}
Average boe/d (6:1) 792 951 (159) (17}
1ty (3} 3) (%)
Product Prices
Crude oil and liquids (sbb) 61.51 57.21 4.30 8
Natural gas ($/mcf) 7.51 7.80 (0.29) {4)
(000s) (%) % (%} (%)
Financial Results
Gross revenues 4,124 4632 (508) {(11)
Loss hefore income taxes {320} {425) 105 25
Net income (loss) {320) {425) 105 25
Per share — basic (0.01} (0.01) - -
Per share — diluted (0.01} {0.01) - -
Funds flow from operations 1,885 2,803 (918} {33)
Per share - basic 0.06 0.09 {0.03) (33)
Per share - diluted 0.06 0.09 {0.03) (33)
Additions to property and equipment, net of proceeds 2,939 7,196 (4,257) {59)
Total assets 50,618 43,511 7,107 16
Waorking capital (deficiency) {10,382) (2,576) (7.797) (303)
Asset retirement obligation (including current portion}) 1,253 964 289 30
Flow-through share obligations 2,864 3,500 (636) (18)
{Sboe} ($/boe) {&/boe} (%)
Netback Analysis
Qil and gas revenue (6:7) 57.86 53.84 4.02 7
Royalty expense 11.58 9.20 2.38 26
Operating costs 9.25 8.09 1.16 14
Netback 37.03 36.55 0.48 1
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Sales Volumes

Three Months Ended March 31,

2007 2006 % Change
Crude oil and liquids (bbis/d) 616 643 {4)
Natural gas (meta) 1,056 1,844 {43)
Average boe/d (51 792 951 {17)

The 17% decline in average production was due to a 788 mcf/d decrease in natural gas
volumes and the 27 bbls/d decrease in crude oil and liquids volumes. The reduction in natural
gas volumes was primarily due to expected declines at Virginia Hills in Alberta. Natural gas sales
from the Tower Creek 02-21 discovery well drilled in 2006 are still expected to commence in
June, 2007. The decreases in crude oil and liquid volumes were primarily a result of natural
declines in production from wells at Kingsford in Saskatchewan. The Company’'s horizontal
development drilling program at Frys and Sinclair is expected to re-commence in mid-June, 2007.
All of the Company's sales volumes consisted of natural gas and light to medium gravity crude oil,
with no heavy oil.

Gross Revenues

Three Months Ended March 31,

2007 2006 Change

(000s) () It (%)
Crude oil and liquids 3,408 3,312 3
Natural gas 714 1,295 (45)
Interest and other income 2 25 {92)
4124 4632 {11)

The 11% decrease in total revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2007 was due
to lower sales volumes partially offset by higher crude off and liquid prices. The Company has not
hedged any of its production.

Royalty Expenses
Three Months Ended March 31,
2007 2006 Change
{000s) {5} (s %)
Royalty expenses 825 787 5
$/boe 11.58 9.20 26
Royalty rate (%) 20.0 - 17.1 17

The higher royalty rates were due to higher crown royalty rates in Saskatchewan as wells
at Kingsford came off royalty holiday starting in June, 2006. Additionally, royalty expense in 2006
was net of funds received under the Alberta Royalty Tax Credit (“ARTC") program. The ARTC
program was discontinued effective January 1, 2007,
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Production Expenses

Three Months Ended March 31,

2007 2006 Change
{000s} (3 » (%}
Production expenses 659 692 (5)
$/boe 9.25 8.09 14

The overall drop in production expenses was due fo lower production volumes.
Production costs on a per unit basis rose due to the change in the relative production mix
between oil and gas. This per unit increase was tempered by the lower per unit costs at
Kingsford brought about by the construction of new battery facilities late in the third quarter of
2006.

Depietion, Amortization and Accretion

Three Months Ended March 31,

2007 2006 Change

{000s) (3) (3} (%)
Depletion and amortization 1,930 2,848 (32)
Accretion of asset retirement obligations 18 19 (5)
1,948 2,867 {32)

$/boe 27.34 33.51 (18)

For the three months ended March 31, 2007, the decrease in depletion, amortization
and accretion costs was due to the 17% decline in production volumes and an 18% decrease in
the depletion, amortization and accretion rate. The lower depletion rate was due to improved
finding and developing costs of proved reserves in 2006.

Interest
Three Months Ended March 31,
2007 2006 Change
{000s} %) (L3 (%}
Interest expenses 157 48 227
$/boe 2.20 0.56 -

The increase in interest costs was due primarily to the increase in interest on bank
indebtedness. In the first quarter of 2006, the Company had cash on hand from its flow-through
equity financings in 2005 and accordingly had not drawn any funds on its bank lines. In the first
quarter of 2007, the Company had drawn on both its revolving bank line and its term facility to
fund its capital program.
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General and Adminisirative Costs

Three Months Ended March 31,

2007 2006 Change
{000s} {s) {3} (%)
Gross general and administrative cosls 669 481 39
Qverhead recovered (71) (179) (60)
Overhead capitalized - - -

598 302 98
$/boe 8.39 3.53 138

General and administrative costs, net of overhead recovered, for the first three months of
2007 nearly doubled from the comparative period of 2008. Two thirds of this increase was due to
the cost of expanded operations resulting in higher salaries, benefits and consulting fees, while
ane third of the increase was related to the decrease in overhead recoveries due to the reduction
in the operated capital projects. The increase in the cost per boe was attributable to lower
production volumes combined with increased general and administrative costs.

Stock-Based Compensation

Three Months Ended March 31,

2007 2006 Change
(000s} (%) (%) (%}
Stock-based compensation 257 361 (29)
$/boe 361 4.22 (14)

Stock-based compensation costs decreased $104,000 due to the decrease in the value
assigned to each option. During 2007, the Company issued 838,000 stock options compared to
695,000 issued in 2006. Stock-based compensation costs are amortized over the vesting period,
which is two years from the date of grant.

Net Loss

Grand Banks recorded a net loss of $320,000 or $0.01 per share for the first quarter of
2007 compared a loss of $425,000 or $0.01 per share in 2006. The current quarter's loss was
due to lower revenues related to lower production volumes, higher general and administrative
expenses and interest costs that were offset to a large degree by improved depletion,
depreciation and accretion expense.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

At March 31, 2007, the Company had a working capital deficiency of $10,382,000
(including $4,748,000 drawn on its revolving bank loan) and $1,134,000 drawn on its non-
revolving reducing term facility compared to a working capital deficiency of $10,562,000
(including $6,044,000 drawn on its revolving bank loan) at December 31, 2006. At March 31,
2007, the Company had a $10,500,000 ($10,500,000 — December 31, 2008) revolving line of
credit agreement with a Canadian financial institution. The line of credit bears interest at prime
rate plus 0.25% per annum and the non-revolving facility bears interest at 7.5% and is repayable
in 36 blended monthly payments of principal and interest of $37,000. During the first three
months of 2007, the Company had funds flow from operations of $1,855,000. (See "Non-GAAP
Measures."} The Company has not declared any dividends.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources (continued)

Subsequent to quarter-end, the Company closed the sale of its Stoughton/Viewfield
property resulting in net proceeds of approximately $8,100,000. The proceeds from this sale
together with cash flow and lines of credit, which were increased to $16,500,000 following
completion of the annual bank review, are expected to meet the Company's working capita!
commitments for the balance of 2007.

The Company had a $3,855,000 flow-through spending obligation at December 31, 2006,
which was reduced to $2,864,000 at March 31, 2007. The Company expects to have this
commitment fulfiled by the end of 2007 with capital spending that includes the Company’s
estimated $3,800,000 share of the Tower Creek 11-26 exploration well which is expected to
commence drilling in June 2007. ’

Financing Activities

in February 2007 the Company borrowed $1,200,000 in the form of a fixed term loan to
help finance the facilities for the tie-in of the Tower Creek well. In May 2007, the Company was
granted an increase in its revolving line of credit from $10,500,000 to $16,500,000.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2007 2006 Change

{0005) (4] () (s %)
Land 267 21 56 27

Geological and geophysical - M - -

Drilling and completion 1,288 5,913 {4,625) (78)
Equipment and gathering 1,372 1,134 238 21

General and administrative
costs capitalized - - - -

Office equipment 12 10 2 20
2,939 7,309 (4,370) (60}

Less proceeds of disposition - {113) - -

Additions to property and

equipment, net of proceeds 2,939 7,196 (4,257) {(59)

The decrease in capital spending was due to the limited amount of spending on drilling in
the first quarter of 2007. The Company participated in the drilling of 2 wells (0.3 net) in 2007 as
compared to 9 wells (6.1 net) in 2006.

Financial Instruments

Grand Banks has not entered into any commodity or financial instrument hedges,
however, it does carry various forms of financial instruments, all of which are recognized in the
Company's financial statements. Unless otherwise indicated in the financial statements, it is
management’s opinion that the Company is not exposed to excessive interest, currency or credit
risks arising from these financial instruments. The fair values of these financial instruments
approximate their carrying values, unless otherwise indicated. The Company has no
unrecognized gains or losses on its financial instruments.
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Obligations

Payments Due By Period

Less Than 1-3 4-5 After 5

Total 1 Year Years Years Years

(000s) 5) {($) (%) %) $)
Office lease 1,448 243 616 590 -
Flow-through shares 2,864 2,864 -- - -
Lease rentals land 475 120 192 123 40
Asset retirement obligations 3,016 295 169 208 2,344
Total contractual obligations 7,804 3,522 977 921 2,384

At March 31, 2008, the Company had farm-in obligations that are not included in the
preceding table. The most significant of these obligations is for the 11-26 Tower Creek option
well, which is scheduled to be drilled in the summer of 2007. Grand Banks is the operator and
will pay 19.65% to earn a 17.56% working interest in this well. These farm-in obligations are
expected to meet some of the flow-through share cbligations outlined in the preceding table.

Transactions with Related Parties

All related party transactions are in the normal course of operations and have been
measured at the agreed to exchange amounts, which is the amount of consideration established
and agreed to by the related parties and which is similar to those negotiated with third parties.

{a) The Company conducts cil and gas exploration and development activities and related
transactions with organizations managed or controlled by directors. These transactions are
negotiated and conducted using standard industry agreements and terms.

{b) Included in general and administrative expenses are consulting fees of $87,000 (2006 —
$61,000) incurred with companies controlled by officers of the Company for the quarter
ended March 31, 2007,

(¢) Included in general and administrative expenses are legal fees of $8,000 (2006 — $11,000)
incurred with a firm in which one of the Company’s officers was a partner for the gquarter
ended March 31, 2007.

(d) Included in general and administrative expenses is $14,000 (2006 - $12,000) paid for
directors' fees to independent directors for the quarter ended March 31, 2007.
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Summary of Quarterly Results
Eight-Quarter Comparison

The quarterly results are prepared without audit or review by the Company's independent
auditors. The following table summarizes the Company's financial and operating highlights for
the past eight quarters. Sales volumes are the average for the periods shown, net to the
Company, before the deduction of royalties.

Three Months Ended Jun30, Sep.30, Dec.31, Mard1, Jun.30, Sep.30, Decdi1, Mar.d1,
2005 2005 2005 2006 2006 2006 2006 2007

Sales Volumes
Crude oil and liquids (bbls/d} 180 227 522 643 527 569 631 616

Natural gas (metad) 5,653 4,755 2,690 1,844 1,561 1,464 1,363 1,056
Royalty income {boe/d) 1 1 - - - - 2 --
Average boe/d (6:1) 1,123 1,021 970 951 787 813 860 792

(£ » (3) 3 () (] (3) %)

Product Prices
Crude oil and liquids (s550) 51.82 60.38 57.34 57.21 67.10 70.17 5928 61.51

Natural gas (vmef) 7.37 B.74 11.60 7.80 6.02 5.89 6.88 7.51

Oil equivalent ($4oe) 45.48 5423 63.01 53.84 56.86 59.68 54.51 57.86

(000s, except per share amounts) ($) ($) ($) [t {3) {3} (%) s}

Financial Results

Gross revenues 4,685 5117 5,653 4632 4,088 4,469 4315 4,124

Net income (loss) 1,018 (1,113) 1,307 (425) (439) 226 1,265 {320)
Per share — basic 0.04 (0.04) 0.04 (0.01) {0.01) {0.01) 0.04 (0.01)
Per share — diluted 0.04 (0.04) 0.04 0.01)  (0.01) (0.01) 0.04 (0.01)

Funds flow from

operations 2,681 2,532 2,997 2,803 2,209 2,475 2,219 1,885

Additions to property

and equipment, net

of proceeds 2,020 5,291 8,270 7,196 5,426 6,097 7.237 2,939

Total assets 31,492 34,713 42,336 43511 42371 44526 52,251 50,618

Working capital (deficiency) 4,499 3,725 1,777 (2,576) (6.011) (9,571) (10,562) {10,382)
Flow-through share

obligation 6,350 5,350 6,740 3,500 1,800 740 3,855 2,864
Asset retirement obligation 827 832 894 064 753 837 1,223 1,253

Sales Volumes

Natural gas sales volumes in the second quarter of 2005 showed the full quarter effect of
the Virginia Hills well, a prolific producer that was expected to have a production profile with an
exceptionally steep decline. During the third quarter of 2005, natural gas sales volume declines
from Virginia Hills were largely offset by increased crude oil and liquids sales volumes from new
wells in Saskatchewan and Manitoba. During the fourth quarter of 2005, total sales volumes
dropped modestly as natural gas volume declines at Virginia Hills exceeded new oil sales
volumes for Kingsford and Sinclair.

Natural gas volumes continued to decline in 2006 as the Company concentrated on
drilling for oil in southeastern Saskatchewan and Manitoba. The Tower Creek discovery well
drilled in mid-2006 will not be tied-in and producing until the second quarter of 2007.
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Sales Volumes (continued)

in 2007, natural gas volumes continued to decline but are expected to rise significantly
once the Tower Creek 02-21 well comes on stream in June 2007. OQil production in 2007 has
declined due to the tack of development drilling activity since the fourth quarter of 2006. Oil
production is expected to increase over the later part of 2007 as the Company re-commences its
horizontal development drilling program at Frys and Sinclair.

Gross Revenues

The increases in gross sales revenues were directly related to the sales volumes from
the wells previously discussed combined with product price changes shown on the quarterly
table. All of the Company's natural gas, crude oil and liquids were sold at spot prices, which are
subject to world and North America supply and demand fundamentals.

Net Income (Loss)

The Company recorded a net income of $1,018,000 in the second quarter of 2005 as
higher sales volumes and revenues combined with recording a future tax benefit of $1,967,000
more than offset increased depletion expense. In the third quarter of 2005, the Company
recorded a net loss of $1,113,000 as increased revenues from higher product prices were more
than offset by a continuation of the high depletion costs. During the 2005 fourth quarter, net
income improved to $1,307,000 due to recording a future tax recovery of $1,123,000 relating to
the issue of flow-through shares and a lower depletion rate.

The Company incurred a modest loss in the first and second quarters of 2006. In the
third quarter of 2006, the Company recorded net income of $226,000 as the increased proved
reserves from the Tower Creek weli reduced the depletion rate. The fourth quarter of 2006 also
showed a net income of $1,265,000 as a result of a lower depletion rate combined with a future
tax recovery of $1,306,000.

The Company recorded a net loss of $320,000 in the first quarter of 2007 as lower sales
revenues, higher general and administrative expenses and interest costs more than offset the
improvements in depletion, depreciation and accretion expense.

Additions to Property and Equipment

Grand Banks' capital program ranged between $5.0 million and $8.0 million per quarter,
except in the second quarter of 2005 when wet weather delayed drilling projects, and the first
quarter of 2007 when the Company deferred some of its drilling plans untit it had improved its
working capital position.

Working Capital (Deficiency)

During the first and fourth quarters of 2005, the Company raised additional equity capital
for gross proceeds of $5,850,000 and $3,340,000, respectively.

During 2005, working capital decfined from $4,499,000 to $1,777,000 as capital spending
exceeded funds from operations and the proceeds from two flow-through share issues totaling
$9,190,000. In 2006, working capital declined from $1,777,000 at December 31, 2005 to a
working capital deficit of $10,562,000 as capital spending exceeded funds from operations.
During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company raised gross proceeds of $4,200,000 from a flow-
through share issue. The Company also increased its available lines of credit from $10,500,000
at December 31, 2006 by a $1,200,000 fixed term loan in early 2007.
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Working Capital (Deficiency) (continued)

To date, the Company has improved its working capital position by increasing its
revolving line of credit to $16,500,000 and through the sale of its Stoughton/Viewfield property for
approximately $8,100,000.

Flow-Through Obligations

The remaining flow-through obligation represented the amount of flow-through shares
issued in excess of qualifying capital expenditures. During 2005, the Company issued flow-
through shares totaling $9,190,000. At December 31, 2005, $6,740,000 of these obligations
remained.

In 2006, the Company issued $4,200,000 of flow-through shares. The remaining flow-
through obligations at December 31, 2006 totaled $3,855,000, which were reduced to $2,864,000
at March 31, 2007 and are expected to be expended by the end of 2007.

Asset Retirement Obligations

The asset retirement obligations grew from $827,000 in the second quarter of 2005 to
$1,253,000 in the first quarter of 2007 as the Company continued to drill wells that are required to
be abandoned and reclaimed at some point in the future. The asset retirement obligation
represents the present value of future abandonment and rectamation cost for the Company's
interest in the wells. These amounts include the current portion of asset retirement cobligations,
which are included in working capital.

Other ltems
Cutstanding Shares, Options and Warrants

The following table is a summary of the Company's share capital structure:

As at March 31, May 289,

2007 2007

(000s) #) i#)

Common shares outstanding 32,398 32,406

Options outstanding 3,121 3,111

Fully diluted 35,517 35,517
Weighted

Average Weighted

Exercise Average

Shares Price Term

(#000s) () (vears)

Options outstanding at December 31, 2006 2,854 1.24 4.1

Options outstanding at March 31, 2007 3121 1.31 4.5

Options vested at March 31, 2007 2191 1.26 38
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Accounting Policy Changes

On January 1,2007, the Company adopted the new Canadian accounting standards for

financial instruments — recognition and measurement, financial instruments — presentations and
disclosures, hedging and comprehensive income. Prior periods have not been restated.
Additional disclosure requirements for financial instruments and accounting changes have been
approved by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and will be required disclosure
beginning January 1, 2008.

(a)

(b)

(€}

Financial instruments — recognition and measurement:

This new standard requires all financial instruments within its scope, including all
derivatives, to be recognized on the balance sheet initially at fair value. Subsequent
measurement of all financial assets and liabilities except those held-for-trading and available
for sale are measured at amortized cost determined using the effective interest rate method.
Held-for—trading financial assets are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized in earnings. Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in comprehensive income and reclassified to earnings
when derecognized or impaired. There were no changes to the measurement of existing
financial assets and liabilities at the date of adoption.

Cash and cash equivalents are designated as “held-for-trading” and are measured at
carrying value, which approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of these
instruments. Accounts receivable are designated as “loans and receivables”. Accounts
payable and accrued liabilities and bank loans are designated as “other liabilities”.

Risk management assets and liabilities are derivative financial instruments classified as
“held-for-trading” unless designated for hedge accounting. The Company has no commodity
contracts or fixed-price physical contracts in place at this time.

Derivatives:

The Company may use various types of derivative financial instruments to manage risks
associated with crude oil and natural gas fluctuations. These instruments are not used for
trading or speculative purposes. Proceeds and costs realized from holding the related
contracts are recognized in petroleum and natural gas revenues at the time that each
transaction under a contract is settled. For the unrealized portion of such contracts, the
Company utilized the fair value method of accounting. The fair value is based on an
estimate of the amounts that would have been paid to or received from counterparts to settle
these instruments given future market prices and other relevant factors. The method
requires the fair value of the derivative financial instruments to be recorded at each balance
sheet date with unrealized gains or losses on these contracts recorded through net
earnings.

Prior to adoption of the new standards, physical receipt and delivery contacts were not
within the scope of the definition of a financial instrument. On adoption of the new standards,
the Company elected to continue to account for its physical delivery contracts on an accrual
basis rather than non-financial derivatives.

Embedded dervatives:

On adoption, the Company elected to recognize, as separate assets and liabilities, only
for those embedded derivatives in hybrid instruments issued, acquired or substantively
modified after January 1, 2003. The Company did not identify any material embedded
derivatives which require separate recognition and measurement.
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Accounting Policy Changes (confinued)

(d) Other comprehensive income:

The new standards establish a new statement of comprehensive income, which is
comprised of net earnings and other comprehensive income. As the Company currently has
no other comprehensive income items requiring disclosure this statement of comprehensive
income is not required.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Management is required to make judgements, assumptions and estimates in the
application of generally accepted accounting principles that have a significant impact on the
financial results of the Company.

Reserve estimates have a significant impact on income or loss, as they are a key
component in the calculation of depletion and depreciation and site restoration costs. A change
in the reserve quantity estimates will result in a corresponding change in depletion, depreciation
and site restoration costs. In addition, if capitalized costs are determined to be in excess of the
calculated ceiling, which is based on reserve quantities and values, the excess must be written off
as an expense, The reserves and estimated future net cash flow from the assets of Grand Banks
have been independently evaluated.

Future site restoration costs are estimated and amortized over the life of reserves. These
costs were estimated by management using industry standard guidelines. A change in estimated
future site restoration costs will change the amortization of site restoration costs included in
depletion and depreciation expense.

Non-GAAP Measures

Funds flow from operations is not a recognized measure under Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"). Management believes that funds flow from operations
is a useful measure of financial performance. For the purposes of funds flow from operations
calculations, the following table reconciles the non-GAAP financial measures "funds flow from
operations” to "net income," the most comparable measure calculated in accordance with GAAP:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2007 2006
(000s) (% (s
Net loss (320) (425)
Adjustments for;
Accretion of asset retirement obligation 18 19
Depletion and amodization 1,930 2,848
Loss on setttement of asset retirement obligation - -
Stock-based compensation 257 381
Future income tax (recovery} - -
Assets retirement costs - -
Funds flow from operations 1,885 2,803

Netback is the average per unit of volume for oil and gas revenues less royalties and
production costs incurred. Netback is expressed in terms of dollars per boe and is calculated in
accordance with National Instrument 51-101 Standards of Disclosure for Oil and Gas Activities.
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Disclosure Controls

As of December 31, 2006, the Company's management evaluated the effectiveness of
the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures ("Disclosure Controls”), as
defined under rules adopted by the Canadian Securities Administrators. This evaluation was
performed under the supervision of, and with the participation of, the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer.

Disclosure Controis are procedures designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in documents filed with securities regulatory authorities is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported on a timely basis, and is accumulated and communicated to the
Company's management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

The Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, does not expect that the Company’s Disclosure Controls will prevent or detect all errors
and all fraud. Because of the inherent limitations in ali control systems, an evaluation of controls
can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that all control issues and instances of
fraud or error, if any, within the Company have been detected.

Based on the evaluation of Disclosure Controls, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer have concluded that, subject to the inherent limitations noted above, the
Company's Disclosure Controls are effective in ensuring that material information relating to the
Company is made known to the Company's management on a timely basis by others and is
included as appropriate in this MD&A.

Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company designed and implemented internai
controls over financial reporting. These internal controls are designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of the Company’s financial reporting and preparation of the
Company's financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Due to inherent limitations, the Company's system of internal control over financial
reporting does not guarantee that a material misstatement in the financial statements or
occurrence of fraud would be prevented or detected in a timely manner. Management considers
the size and the nature of the Company's operations, and exercises judgement in designing
appropriate and cost effective controls for the detection and prevention of material error in the
financial statements or occurrence of fraud with a potential material impact on the reliability of the
financial statements. -

The Company has a lack of segregation of duties over the financial close and reporting
functions due to limited staff. Management has concluded and the board has agreed that, taking
into account the present stage of the Company’s development and the best interests of its
shareholders, the Company does not have sufficient size and scale to warrant the hiring of
additional staff to correct this weakness at this time. Subsequent to year-end, the Company had a
fack of continuity of the CFO, as the CFO retired. A replacement CFO was hired; however this
candidate was unable to continue in this position for personal reasons. The Company has
subsequently appointed Shawn McDonald, B.Comm, LLB., as CFO. The Company relies
primarily on the CFQO for financial reporting. The Company has implemented compensating
controls in the form of additional review of the financial close procedure by a qualified third party.
The Company's officers and Audit Committee review the quarterly financial reports, and annual
audits are conducted by the Company's independent auditors. The Company seeks third party
expertise to review more complex financial reporting items.
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Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting (continued)

The Company is continuing with its efforts in formalizing and documenting various
elements of its system of internal control over financial reporting in preparation for the evaluation
of the operating effectiveness of its internal control system within the timelines to be prescribed
by the Canadian Securities Administrators.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Interim Report contains forward-looking or outlook information with respect to Grand Banks. The use of any of

the words "anticipate,” "continue,” "estimate,” "expect,” "may," "will," "project,” "should,” "believe,” "outlook,” and similar

expressions are intended to identify forward-iooking statements. These statements involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results or events to differ materially from those anticipated in the
Company's forward-looking statements. Consequently, all of the forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report
are qualified by these cautionary statements and there can be no assurance that actual results or developments
anticipated by the Company will be realized, or that they will have the expected consequences or effects on the Company
or its business or operations. The Company assumes no obligation to update publicly any such forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

The Company's actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a
result of the risk factors set forth below and elsewhere in this MD&A.

Volatility in market prices for oil and natural gas.

Risks inherent in the Company's cperations.

Geological, technical, drilling and processing problems.

General economic conditions.

industry conditions, including fluctuation in the price of oil and natural gas.

Governmental regulations.

Fluctuation in foreign exchange and interest rates.

Unanticipated events that can reduce production or cause production to be shut-in or delayed.
Failure to obtain industry partners and other third party consents and approvals, when required.
The need to obtain required approvals from regulatory authorities.

The other factors discussed in the "Operational and Other Business Risks" section of this MD&A.

Operational and Other Business Risks

Need to Replace and Grow Reserves

The future oil and natural gas production of Grand Banks, and therefore future cash flows, are highly dependent
upon ongoing success in exploring its current and future undeveloped land base, exploiting the cument producing
properties and acquiring or discovering additional reserves. Without reserve additions through exploration, acquisition or
development activities, reserves and production will decline over time as reserves are depleted.

The business of discovering, developing or acquiring reserves is capital intensive. To the extent cash flows from
operations are insufficient and external sources of capital becomne limited or unavailable, the ability of Grand Banks to
make the necessary capital investments to maintain and expand its oil and natural gas reserves may be impaired.

There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to find and develop or acquire additional reserves to
replace and grow production at acceptable costs.

Exploration, Development and Production Risks

Oil and natural gas exploration involves a high degree of risk, which even a combination of experience, knowledge
and careful evaluation may not be able to overcome. There is no assurance that expenditures made on future exploration
by Grand Banks will result in new discoveries of oil and natura! gas in commercial quantities. It is difficult lo project the
costs of implementing an exploratory drilling program due to the inherent uncertainties of drilling in unknown formations,
the costs associated with encountering various drilling conditions such as over pressured zones, tools lost in the hole and
changes in drilling plans and focations as a result of prior exploratory wells or additional seismic data and interpretations
thereof.

The long-term commercial success of Grand Banks depends on its ability to find, acquire, develop and commercially
produce oil and natural gas reserves. No assurance can be given that the Company will be able to continue to locate
satisfactory properties for acquisition or participation. Moreover, if such acquisitions or participation are identified, Grand
Banks may determine that current markets, terms of acquisition and pardticipation or pricing conditions make such
acquisitions or padicipations uneconomic.

Grand Banks Energy Corporation March 31, 2007 Management's Discussion and Analysis
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Exploration, Development and Production Risks (continued)

Future ¢il and gas exploration may involve unprofitable efforts, not only from dry wells, but from wells that are
productive but do not produce sufficient net revenues to return a profit after drilling, operating and other costs.
Completion of a well does not assure a profit on the investment or recovery of drilling, completion and operating costs. In
addition, drilling hazards or environmental damage could greally increase the cost of operations, and various field
operating conditions may adversely affect the production from successful wells. These conditions include delays in
obtaining governmental approvals or consents, shut-ins of connected wells resulting from extreme weather conditions,
insufficient storage or transportation capacity or other geolegical and mechanical conditions. While diligent well
supervision and effective maintenance operations can contribute to maximizing production rate over time, production
delays and declines from normal field operating conditions cannct be eliminated and can be expected to adversely affect
revenue and cash flow levels to varying degrees.

In addition, oil and gas operations are subject to the risks of exploration, development and preduction of oil and
natural gas properties, including encountering unexpected formations or pressures, premature declines of reservoirs,
blowouts, sour gas releases, fires and spills. Losses resulting from the occurrence of any of these risks could have a
materially adverse effect on future results of operations, liquidity and financial condition.

Reserve Estimates

The production forecast and recoverable estimates contained in the Company's engineering report are only
estimates, and the actuat production and ultimate recoverable reserves from the properties may be greater or less than
the reserve estimates.

There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of reserves and cash flows to be derived
therefrom, including many factors that are beyond the control of Grand Banks. The reserve and cash flow information set
forth herein represent estimates only. The reserves and estimated future net cash fiow from the assets of Grand Banks
had been independently evaluated at December 31, 2006 and updated by management to March 31, 2007. These
evaluations include a number of assumptions relating to factors such as initial production rates, production decline rates,
ultimate recovery of reserves, timing and amount of capitat expenditure, marketability of production, future prices of oil
and natural gas, operaling costs and royalties and other government levies that may be imposed over the producing life of
the reserves.

These assumptions were based on price forecasts in use at the date the relevant evaluations were prepared and
many of these assumptions are subject to change and are beyond the control of the Company. Actual production and
cash flows derived therefrom will vary from these evaluations, and such variations could be material. The foregoing
evaluations are based in part on the assumed success of exploitation aclivities intended to be undertaken in future years.
The reserves and estimated cash flows to be derived therefrom contained in such evaluations will be reduced to the
extent that such exploitation activities do not achieve the level of success assumed in the evaluations.

Volalility of Oif and Natural Gas Prices

The operational results and financial condition of Grand Banks will be dependent on the prices received for oil and
natura! gas production. Oil and natural gas prices have fluctuated widely during recent years and are determined by
supply and demand factors, including weather and general economic conditions as well as conditions in other oil and
natura! gas regions. Any decline in oil and nalural gas prices could have an adverse effect of the operations, proved
reserves and financial conditions of Grand Banks and could resutt in a reduction of the net production revenue of the
Company causing a reduction in its oit and gas acquisition and development activities. In addition, bank borrowings that
might be made available to the Company are typically determined in part by the borrowing base of the reserves of Grand
Banks. A sustained material decline in prices from historical average prices could reduce the borrowing base of the
Company, therefore reducing the bank credit available to Grand Banks and possibly requiring that a portion of such bank
debt be repaid.

Grand Banks uses the full cost method of accounting for oil and natural gas properties. Under this accounting
method, capitalized costs are reviewed on a quarterly basis for impairment to ensure that the carrying amount of these
costs is recoverable based on expected future cash flows.

Operational Hazards and Other Uncertainties

Oil and natural gas exploration cperations are subject to all the risks and hazards typically associated with such
operations, including hazards such as fire, explosion, blowouts and oif spills, each of which could result in substantial
damage to oil and natural gas wells, production faculties, other property and the environment or in personal injury,

In accordance with industry practice, Grand Banks is not fully insured against all of these risks, nor are all such risks
insurable. Although Grand Banks maintains liability insurance, where available, in an amount that it considers adequate
and consistent with industry practice, the nature of these risks is such that liabilities could exceed policy limits, in which
event Grand Banks could incur significant cosls that could have a material adverse affect upon its financial condition.
Business interruption insurance may also be purchased for selected facilities, to the extent that such insurance is
available, il and natural gas production operations are also subject to all the risks typically associated with such
operations, including premature decline of reservoirs and the invasion of water into producing formations,

Grand Banks Energy Corporation March 31, 2007 Management's Discussion and Analysis
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Operational Hazards and Other Uncertainties {continued)

Oil and natural gas exploration and development aclivities are dependent on the availability of drilling and related
equipment in the particular areas where such activities will be conducted. Demand for such equipment or access
restrictions may affect the avaitability and/or cost of such equipment to Grand Banks and may delay exploralion and
development activities. To the extent Grand Banks is not the operater of its oil and gas properties, the Company will be
dependent on other operators for timing of activities refated to non-operating properties and will be largely unable to direct
or contro! the activities of the operators.

Although property title reviews are completed according to industry standards prior to the purchase of most oil and
natural gas producing properties or the commencement of drilling wells, such reviews do not guarantee or certify that an
unforeseen defect in the chain of title will not arise 1o defeat the claim of Grand Banks, which could result in the reduction
of the revenue received by the Company.

Competition

There is strong competition relating to all aspects of the oil and natural gas industry. Grand Banks actively competes
for capital, skilled personnel, undeveloped Jand, reserve acquisitions, access to drilling rigs, service rigs and other
equipment, access to processing facilities and pipeline and refining capacity, and in all other aspects of its operations with
a substantia! number of other organizations, many of which may have greater technical and financial resources than
Grand Banks.

Key Personnel

The success of Grand Banks depends in farge measure on certain key personnel. The loss of the services of such
key personnel could have a material adverse affect on the Company. Grand Banks does not have key person insurance
in effect for management. The contributions of these individuals to the immediate operations of Grand Banks are likely to
be of central importance. In addition, the competition for qualified personnel in the oil and natural gas industry is intense
and there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to continue to attract and retain all personnel necessary for
the development and operation of its business.

Environmental Risks

The oil and natural gas industry is subject to environmental regulations pursuvant to a variety of international
conventions and Canadian federal, provincial and municipal laws, reguiations and guidelines. A breach of such
regulations may result in the imposition of fines or issuances of clean-up orders in resped of Grand Banks or its assets.
Such regulations may be changed to impose higher standards and potentially more costly obligations on the Company.
There can be no assurance that future environmentat costs will not have a material adverse affect on Grand Banks.

Other Information

Additional information regarding Grand Banks Energy Corporation’s reserves and other
data is available on the Company's website at www.grandbanksenergy.com and on the Canadian
Securities Administrators’ System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval ("SEDAR") at
www.sedar.com.

Grand Banks Energy Corporation March 31, 2007 Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION
2007 First Quarter Interim Report

(Unaudited)
BALANCE SHEETS
March 31 Decernber 31
2007 2006
(000s) (s} (s)
ASSETS
Current
Cash and cash equivalents - -
Accounts receivable 4,734 6,044
Prepaid expenses and advances 122 160
4,856 6,204
Property and equipment (Note 3 45,762 44,741
Future tax asset - 1,306
50,618 52,251
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current
Revalving bank loan (vote 4 4,748 6,328
Current portion of long-term loan (Note 4) 376 -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 9,819 10,176
Current portion of asset retirement obligalion (vote 5 295 2862
15,238 16,766
L.ong-term bank loan (Note 4) 758 -
Asset retirement obligation (Note 5) 858 961
16,954 17,727
Shareholders' Equity
Share capital (vote 8 30,067 30.489
Share purchase loans (48) (48}
Contributed surplus (vote 7) 2,330 2,448
Retained earnings 1,315 1,635
33,664 34,524
50,618 52,251

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

These interim financial statements have not been reviewed or audited on behalf of the shareholders by the

Company’s independent auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP.

On behalf of the Board of Directors:

(signed)

W.J. McNAUGHTON
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION
2007 First Quarter Interim Report
{(Unaudited)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AND

RETAINED EARNINGS

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2007 2006
(000s, except per share amounts) (3) (3)
Revenue
Crude oi! and liquids 3,408 3.312
Natural gas 714 1,295
Other income 2 25
4124 4632
Less: royalties (825) {787)
3,299 3,845
Expenses
Production 659 692
General and administrative 598 302
Interest 157 48
Stock-based compensation (Note 8) 257 361
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 1,948 2,867
3,619 4,270
Net loss and comprehensive loss for the period {320} (425)
Retained earnings, beginning of period 1,635 1,008
Retained eamings, end of period 1,315 583
Loss per share
Basic and diluted (Note 6) {0.01} (0.01)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION
2007 First Quarter Interim Report
(Unaudited)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2007 2006
{000s) (3) (%
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss for the peried {320) (425)
Adjustments for:
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 1,948 2,867
Stock-based compensation 257 361
Funds flow from operations 1,885 2,803
Changes in non-cash operating working capital balances (Note 10) B56 (41)
2,741 2,762
Cash flows from firancing activities
Issue of shares, net 509 40
Increase in long-term debt 1,200 -
Repayment of long-term debt {66) -
Decrease in revolving bank loan {1,580) -
Change in non-cash working capital - -
63 40
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds on disposal of property and equipment - 113
Additions to property and equipment {2,939) {7,309)
Change in non-cash investing working capital (Note 10) 135 3,574
{2,804) {3.622)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents - (820)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period - 5,443
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period - 4,623

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION
2007 First Quarter Interim Report
(Unaudited}

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2007 and 2006

1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies

Grand Banks Energy Corporation's ("Grand Banks" or "the Company”} principal business is the
exploration, development and production of oil and gas properties. The Company was originally
incorporated on June 25, 1969 under the British Columbia Companigs Act and changed its name from
Pacific Amber Resources Ltd. to Grand Banks Energy Company in 2003. The Company has been
continued under the Alberta Business Corporations Act. The Company's common voling shares are
listed on the TSX Venture Exchange.

The unaudited interim financial statements of the Company have been prepared by management in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (*GAAP”), using the same
accounting policies as those set out in Note 2 to the financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2006 except for the changes discussed in the Note 2 below. The disclosures in these interim
financial statements are incremental to those included in the annual financial statements and certain
disclosures which are required to be included in the notes to the annual financial statements have been
condensed or omitted. The interim financiat statements should be read in conjunction with the financial
statements for the year ended December 31,2006.

The financial statements of the Company as et March 31, 2007 and 2006 have been compifed by management and
approved by the Compeny’s Audit Committee on May 29, 2007. These intenim financial statements and MD&A have
not been reviewed or audited on behaif of the shareholders by the Company's independent external auditors,
Deloitte & Touche LLP.

2. Changes in Accounting Policies

On January 1,2007, the Company adopted the new Canadian accounting standards for financial
instruments — recognition and measurement, financial instruments — presentations and disclosures,
hedging and comprehensive income. Prior periods have not been restated. Additional disclosure
requirements for financial instruments and accounting changes have been approved by the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants and will be required disclosure beginning January 1, 2008.

(a) Financial instruments — recognition and measurement:

This new standard requires all financial instruments within its scope, including all derivatives, to be
recognized on the balance sheet initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of all financial
assets and liabilities except those held-for-trading and available for sale are measured at amortized
cost determined using the effective interest rate method. Held-for—trading financial assets are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in earnings. Available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in comprehensive
income and reclassified to earnings when derecognized or impaired. There were no changes to
the measurement of existing financial assets and liabilities at the date of adoption.

Cash and cash equivalents are designated as “held-for-trading” and are measured at carrying
value, which approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments. Accounts
receivable are designated as “loans and receivables™. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and
bank loans are designated as “other liabilities”.

Risk management assets and liabilities are derivative financial instruments classified as "held-for-

trading” unless designated for hedge accounting. The Company has no commodity contracts or
fixed-price physical contracts in place at this time.
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GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION
2007 First Quarier Interim Report
{(Unaudited)

2,

Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

(<)

(d)

Derivatives:

The Company may use various types of derivative financial instruments to manage risks associated
with crude oil and natural gas fluctuations. These instruments are not used for trading or
speculative purposes. Proceeds and costs realized from holding the related contracts are
recognized in petroleum and natural gas revenues at the time that each transaction under a
contract is settled. For the unrealized portion of such contracts, the Company utilized the fair value
method of accounting, The fair value is based on an estimate of the amounts that would have been
paid to or received from counterparts 1o setlle these instruments given future market prices and
other relevant factors. The method requires the fair value of the derivative financial instruments to
be recorded at each balance sheet date with unrealized gains or losses on these contracts
recorded through net eamings.

Prior to adoption of the new standards, physical receipt and delivery contacts were not within the
scope of the definition of a financial instrument. On adoption of the new standards, the Company
etected to continue 1o account for its physical delivery contracts on an accrual basis rather than
non-financial derivatives.

Embedded derivatives:

On adoption, the Company elected to recognize, as separate assets and liabilities, only for those
embedded derivatives in hybrid instruments issued, acquired or substantively modified after
January 1, 2003. The Company did not identify any material embedded denvatives which require
separate recognition and measurement.

Other comprehensive income:

The new standards establish a new statement of comprehensive income, which is comprised of net
earnings and other comprehensive income. As the Company currently has no other
comprehensive income items requiring disclosure this statement of comprehensive income is not
required.

Property and Equipment

Accumulated
Depletion and Net Book
Cost Amortization Value
(000s} {3} ey (s)
March 31, 2007
Petroleum and natural gas properties 69,967 24,272 45,695
Furniture and equipment 132 65 67
70,099 24,337 45,762
December 31, 2006
Petroleum and natural gas properties 67,027 22,346 44 681
Fumiture and equipment 120 60 60
67,147 22,406 44741
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GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION
2007 First Quarter Interim Report
{Unaudited)

Property and Equipment (continued)

Future development costs relating to proved reserves of $9,808,000 (December 31, 2006 -
$10,568,000) have been included in the depletion calculation. The Company did not capitalize any
general and administrative costs during the three months ended March 31, 2007 or March 31, 2006.
The Company excluded $1,926,000 (December 31, 2006 — $1,785,000) of undeveloped properties from
the depletion calculation as follows:

March 31 December 31

2007 2006

(000s) (%) 3)
Unproven costs

Land 1,183 1,056

Geological and geophysical 278 278

Drilling and completion 465 451

1,926 1,785

The Company performed a ceiling test calculation at March 31, 2007 to assess the recoverable value of its
oil and gas properties. The undiscounted value of future net revenues from the Company's proved reserves
exceeded the carrying value of the oil and gas properties at March 31, 2007.

4.

Bank Indebtedness
(a) Revolving bank loan

At March 31, 2007, the Company had a $10,500,000 (December 31, 2006 - $10,500,000) revolving line
of credit agreement with a Canadian financial institution. The line of credit bears interest at prime plus
0.25% per annum, secured by the assets of the Company, and is due on demand. AtMarch 31, 2007
the effective rate under the revolving line of credit was 6.25% (March 31, 2006 - 5.75%). Al March 31,
2007, the Company was in compliance with all covenants related to this credit facility.

In May 2007 the credit facility was increased to $16,500,000 following the completion of the annual
review.

{b) Long-term bark loan

At March 31, 2007 the Company had drawn $1,134,000 (December 31,2006 - $Nil) on its long-term
credit facility with the same Canadian financial institution. This credit facility bears interest at 7.5%. This
credit facility is fully drawn and the outstanding balance is repayable through blended monthly payments
of interest and principal of $37,000. The balance is repayable over the next 34 months, the final
installment being due January 31, 2010. This credit facility is secured by the assets of the Company,
including a specific charge on the Tower Creek property.

Asset Retirement Obligation

The following table presents the recongciliation of the beginning and ending aggregate carrying amount
of the obligation associated with the retirement of oil and gas properties:

March 31 December 31

2007 2008

{000s} (%) (%)
Balance, beginning of period 1,223 894
Liabilities incurred in period 12 273
Asset retirement costs incurred - (29)
Accretion expense 18 85
1,253 1,223

Less current portion 295 262
Balance, end of period 958 961
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GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION
2007 First Quarter Interim Report
(Unaudited)

5. Asset Retirement Obligation (continued)

The undiscounted amount of cash flows, required over the estimated reserve life of the underlying
assels, 1o settle the obligation, adjusted for inflation is estimated at $3,016,000 (December 31, 2006 -
$3,063,000). The obligation was calculated using a credit-adjusted risk free discount rate of 8% and an
inflation rate of 2%. It is expected that this obligation will be funded from the Company's general
resources at the time the costs are incurred with the majority of costs expected to occur between 2009

and 2015. No funds have been set aside to settle this obligation.

6. Share capital
(a) Authorized

The authorized share capital consists of an unlimited number of common shares without nominal or

par value.

(b) Issued and Qutstanding

Shares Amount
(060s) 1) {3)
Balance, December 31, 2006 31,915 30,489
Issued on exercise of options (Note s(e)) 481 509
Transfer from contributed surplus - 375
Tax effect flow-through shares ¥ . (1,306)
Balance at March 31, 2007 32,396 30,067

(1) Calculated at an effective rate of 31.10% on renounced expendilures.

(c} Per Share Amounts

The following table summarizes the calculation of basic net loss and diluted net loss per share for

the three months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006:

March 31, 2007 2006
{000s, except per share amounts) (%) 3
Net loss available to common shareholders {320) (425)
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding — basic 32,135 29,769
Dilutive effect of stock options - 768
Weighted average number of common shares 32,135 30,537
outstanding - diluted
Net loss per share
Basic and diluted {0.01) (0.01)
(d) Flow-Through Share Information
March 31 December 31
2007 2006
(000s) (s (3}
Remaining obligation, beginning of period 3,855 6,740
Amount of flow-through shares issued - 4,200
Expenditures incurred (991) (7,085)
Remaining obligation, end of period 2,864 3,855
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GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION
2007 First Quarter Interim Report
{(Unaudited)

6. Share Capital {continued)

(e) Stock Options

The Option Plan allows directors, employees and consultants to be granted incentive based
compensation under the Option Plan while allowing a rolling maximum of 10% of the number of
issued and oulstanding shares from time-to-time to be granted under the Option Plan. Options
may be granted under the Option Plan at an exercise price and vesting provisions as set by the
Board of Directors of the Company from time-to-ime, subject to the limitations of any stock

U}

exchange on which the common shares are listed.

As at March 31, 2007, the Company had the following stock options outstanding:

QOption Weighted

Price Average

Share Per Share Exercise

Options Range Price

#000s) (3) (%)

Qutstanding, December 31, 2006 2,854 1.00-1.80 1.24
Granted 838 1.40 1.40
Exercised (481} 1.00-1.25 1.06
Expired {90} 1.25-1.65 1.49
Qutstanding, March 31, 2007 3 1.00-1.80 1.31

The following table summarizes information about the stock options outstanding at March 31, 2007:

Options Qutstanding Options Currently Exercisable
Weighted Weighted

Average Weighted Average Weighted

Remaining Average Remaining Average

Share  Contractual Exercise Shares  Contractual Exercise

Option Price Options Life Price Options Life Price

6] (#000s) (Years) (3 (#000s) (Years) {3
March 31, 2007

1.00 10 4.1 1.00 10 41 1.00

1.05 970 3.3 1.05 970 33 1.05

1.15 150 36 1.15 150 36 1.15

1.25 497 4.3 1.25 327 38 1.25

1.40 838 6.0 1.40 280 5.0 1.40

1.65 642 4.8 1.65 450 4.4 1.65

1.68 4 5.5 1.68 1 4.5 1.68

1.80 10 5.2 1.80 3 4.2 1.80

3121 45 1.31 2,191 3.8 1.26

Issued on Exercise of Options

During the first quarter of 2007, the Company issued 481,600 (2006 — 40,000) common shares at

$1.00 to $1.25 per share for cash on the exercise of options.
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GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION
2007 First Quarter Interim Report
{(Unaudited)

7. Contributed Surplus

March 31 December 31

2007 20086

{000s) (3) it
Balance, beginning of period 2,448 1,790
Stock compensation costs 257 836
Transfer to share capital upon exercise of options (375) {178}
Balance, end of period 2,330 2,448

8. Stock Compensation

The total fair value of share options granted during the period was estimated at $257,000 (March 31,
2006 - $781,000) using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

March 31, 2007 2006
Dividend yield Nil Nil
Expected volatility ¢3) 45 74
Risk free rate of retumn (%) 4.5 4.5
Weighted average life tyears) 6 5

9. Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions are in the normal course of operations and have been measured at the
agreed to exchange amounts, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed o by the
related parties and which is similar to those negotiated with third parties. The Company had the
following related party transactions:

(a) The Company conducts oil and gas exploration and development activities and related transactions
with organizations managed or controlled by directors. These transactions are negotiated and
conducted using standard industry agreements and terms.

{b) Included in general and administrative expenses are consuiting fees of $87,000 (2006 — $61,000)
incurred with companies controlled by officers of the Company for the quarter ended March 31,
2007.

{c) Included in general and administrative expenses are legal fees of $8,000 {2006 — $11,000) incurred
with a firm in which one of the Company’s officers was a partner for the quarter ended March 31,
2007.

{d) Included in general and administrative expenses is $14,000 (2006 - $12,000) paid for directors’
fees to independent directors for the quarter ended March 31, 2007.

Page 9



File No. 82-34896

Form 52-109F2 Certification of Interim Filings
[ Edward C. McFeely, Chief Executive Officer of Grand Banks Energy Corporation, certify that:

1. [ have reviewed the interim filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-
109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of Grand Banks
Energy Corporation, (the issuer) for the interim period ending March 31, 2007,

2. Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to
make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made,
with respect to the period covered by the interim filings;

3. Based on my knowledge, the interim financial statements together with the other
financial information included in the interim filings fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date
and for the pertods presented in the interim filings;

4. The issuer's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial
reporting for the issuer, and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information
relating to the issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the pericd in which the interim
filings are being prepared; and

(b)  designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused it to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with the issuer’s GAAP; and

5. I have caused the issuer to disclose in the interim MD&A any change in the issuer’s
internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the issuer’s most recent
interim period that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
issuer’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 29, 2007

“signed”

Edward C. McFeely
President & C.E.O.




File No. 82-34896

Form 52-109F2 Certification of Interim Filings
I Shawn D. McDonald, Chief Fiﬁancial Officer of Grand Banks Energy Corporation, certify that:

1. I have reviewed the interim filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-
109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of Grand Banks
Energy Corporation, (the issuer) for the interim period ending March 31, 2007,

2. Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to
make a staternent not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made,
with respect to the period covered by the interim filings;

3. Based on my knowledge. the interim financial statements together with the other
financial information included in the interim filings fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date
and for the periods presented in the interim filings;

4. The issuer's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial
reporting for the issuer, and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information
relating to the issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which the interim
filings are being prepared; and

(b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused it to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with the issuer’s GAAP; and

5. I have caused the issuer to disclose in the interim MD&A any change in the issuer’s
internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the issuer’s most recent

interim period that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
issuer’s internal control over financial reporting,

Date: May 29, 2007

“signed”

Shawn D. McDonald
Chief Financial Officer
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File No. 82-34896

GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION
2007 First Quarter Interim Repont

(Unaudited) ‘“ ‘_: ‘T ,... - ; r‘ n
BALANCE SHEETS oy B NSO
~og
e March 31 December 31
2007 2006
(D00s) (%) $
ASSETS
Current
Cash and cash equivalents - -
Accounts receivable 4,734 6,044
Prepaid expenses and advances 122 160
4,856 6,204
Property and equipment (Note 3 45,762 44741
Future tax asset - 1,306
50,618 52,251
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current
Revolving bank loan (vota 4 4,748 6,328
Current portion of long-term loan (Note 4) 376 -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 9,819 10,176
Current portion of asset retirement obligation (Note 5) 295 262
15,238 16,766
Long-term bank loan (Note 4 758 -
Asset retirement obligation (note 5) 958 961
16,854 17,727
Shareholders' Equity
Share capital (Note 6) 30,067 30,489
Share purchase loans (48) {48)
Contributed surplus (vote 7) 2,330 2,448
Retained earnings 1,315 1,635
33,664 34,524
50,618 52,251

See accompanying notes (o the financial statements.

These interim financial statements have not been reviewed or audited on behalf of the shareholders by the
Company's independent auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP.

On behalf of the Board of Directors:

(signed) (signed)
W.J. McNAUGHTON KENNETH H. HAYES
Chairman of the Audit Committes Birector
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STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AND

RETAINED EARNINGS

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2007 2006
{000s, except per share amounts) (%) %)
Revenue
Crude oil and liquids 3,408 3,312
Natural gas 714 1,295
Other income 2 25
4,124 4,632
Less: royalties (825) (787)
3,299 3,845
Expenses
Production 659 692
General and administrative 598 302
Interest 157 48
Stock-based compensation (Nate 8) 257 361
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 1,948 2,867
3,619 4,270
Net loss and comprehensive loss for the period {320) {425)
Retained earnings, beginning of period 1,635 1,008
Retained earnings, end of period 1,315 583
Loss per share
Basic and diluted (Note 8) {0.01) (0.01)

See accompanying notes to the linancial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2007 2006
{000s) (%) {5}
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss for the period (320} (425)
Adjustments for:
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 1,848 2,867
Stock-based compensation 257 361
Funds flow from operations 1,885 2,803
Changes in non-cash operating working capital balances (Note 10} 856 (41)
2,741 2,762
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of shares, net 509 40
Increase in long-term debt 1,200 -
Repayment of long-term debt (66) .
Decrease in revolving bank loan (1,580} -
Change in non-cash working capital - -
63 40
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds on disposal of property and equipment - 113
Additions to properly and equipment (2,939) (7,309}
Change in non-cash investing working capital (vote 10} 135 3,574
(2,804) {3,622)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents - {820}
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period - 5,443
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period - 4,623

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2007 and 2006

1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies

Grand Banks Energy Corporation's ("Grand Banks" or "the Company") principal business is the
exploration, development and production of oil and gas properties. The Company was originally
incorporated on June 25, 1968 under the British Columbia Companies Act and changed its name from
Pacific Amber Resources Lid. to Grand Banks Energy Company in 2003, The Company has been
continued under the Alberta Business Corporations Act. The Company's common voting shares are
listed on the TSX Venture Exchange.

The unaudited interim financial statements of the Company have been prepared by management in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP7), using the same
accounting policies as those set out in Note 2 to the financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2006 except for the changes discussed in the Note 2 below. The disclosures in these interim
financial statements are incremental to those included in the annual financial statements and certain
disclosures which are required to be included in the notes to the annual financial statements have been
condensed or omitted. The interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the financial
statements for the year ended December 31,2006.

The financial statements of the Company as at March 31, 2007 and 2006 have been compiled by management and
approved by the Company's Audit Commiltee on May 29, 2007. These interim financial statements and MD&A have
not been reviewed or audited on behalf of the sharehoiders by the Company's independent extemal auditors,
Deloitte & Touche LLP.

2. Changes in Accounting Policies

On January 1,2007, the Company adopted the new Canadian accounting standards for financial
instruments ~ recognition and measurement, financial instruments — presentations and disclosures,
hedging and comprehensive income. Prior periods have not been restated. Additional disclosure
requirements for financial instruments and accounting changes have been approved by the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants and will be required disclosure beginning January 1, 2008.

{a) Financial instruments — recognition and measurement:

This new standard requires all financial instruments within its scope, including all derivatives, to be
recognized on the balance sheet initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of all financial
assets and liabilities except those held-for-trading and available for sale are measured at amortized
cost determined using the effective interest rate method, Held-for—trading financial assets are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in earnings. Available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in comprehensive
income and reclassified to eamings when derecognized or impaired. There were no changes to
the measurement of existing financial assets and liabilities at the date of adoption.

Cash and cash equivalents are designated as “held-for-trading” and are measured at carrying
value, which approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments. Accounts
receivable are designated as “loans and receivables”. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and
bank loans are designated as “other liabilities”.

Risk management assets and liabilities are derivative financial instruments classified as “held-for-

trading” unless designated for hedge accounting. The Company has no commaodity contracts or
fixed-price physical contracts in place at this time.
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2. Changes in Accounting Policies (continued})

(o)

(d)

Derivatives:

The Company may use various types of derivative financial instruments to manage risks associated
with crude oil and natural gas fluctuations. These instruments are not used for trading or
speculative purposes. Proceeds and cosis realized from holding the related contracts are
recognized in petroleum and natural gas revenues at the time that each transaction under a
contract is settled. For the unrealized pertion of such contracts, the Company utilized the fair value
method of accounting. The fair value is based on an estimate of the amounts that would have been
paid to or received from counterparts to settle these instruments given future market prices and
other relevant factors. The method requires the fair value of the derivative financial instruments to
be recorded at each balance sheet dale with unrealized gains or losses on these contracts
recorded through net earnings.

Prior to adoption of the new standards, physical receipt and delivery contacts were not within the
scope of the definition of a financial instrument. On adoption of the new standards, the Company
elected to continue to account for its physical delivery contracts on an accrual basis rather than
non-financial derivatives.

Embedded derivatives:

On adoption, the Company elected to recognize, as separate assets and liabilities, only for those
embedded derivatives in hybrid instruments issued, acquired or substantively modified after
January 1, 2003. The Company did not identify any material embedded derivatives which require
separate recognition and measurement.

Other comprehensive income:

The new standards establish a new statement of comprehensive income, which is comprised of net
earnings and other comprehensive income. As the Company currently has no other
comprehensive income items requiring disclosure this statement of comprehensive income is not
required.

3. Property and Equipment

Accumulated
Depletion and Net Book
Cosl Amortization Value
(000s} (%) (%) (%)
March 31, 2007
Petroleurn and natural gas properties 69,967 24272 45,695
Furniture and equipment 132 65 67
70,099 24,337 45,762
December 31, 2006
Petroleum and natural gas properties 67,027 22,346 44 681
Furniture and equipment 120 60 60
67,147 22,406 44741
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3

Properly and Equipment (continued)

Fuiure development costs relating to proved reserves of $9,808,000 (December 31, 2006 -
$10,568,000) have been included in the depletion calculation. The Company did not capitalize any
general and administrative costs during the three months ended March 31, 2007 or March 31, 2006.
The Company excluded $1,926,000 (December 31, 2006 - $1,785,000) of undeveloped properties from
the depletion calculation as follows:

March 31 December 31

2007 2006

{000s) %) %
Unproven costs

Land 1,183 1,056

Geological and geophysical 278 278

Drilling and completion 465 451

1,926 1,785

The Company performed a ceiling test calculation at March 31, 2007 to assess the recoverable value of its
oil and gas properties. The undiscounted value of future net revenues from the Company's proved reserves
exceeded the carrying value of the oil and gas properties at March 31, 2007.

4,

Bank Indebtedness
{a) Revolving bank loan

At March 31, 2007, the Company had a $10,500,000 (December 31, 2006 - $10,500,000) revelving line
of credit agreement with a Canadian financial institution. The line of credit bears interest at prime plus
0.25% per annum, secured by the assets of the Company, and is due on demand. At March 31, 2007
the effective rate under the revolving line of credit was 6.25% (March 31, 2006 - 5.75%). At March 31,
2007, the Company was in compliance with all covenants related to this credit facility.

In May 2007 the credit facility was increased to $16,500,000 following the completion of the annual
review.

{b) Long-term bank loan

At March 31, 2007 the Company had drawn $1,134,000 {December 31,2006 - $Nil) on its long-term
credit facility with the same Canadian financial institution. This credit facility bears interest at 7.5%. This
credit facility is fully drawn and the outstanding balance is repayable through blended monthly payments
of interest and principal of $37.000. The balance is repayable over the next 34 months, the final
installment being due January 31, 2010, This credit facility is secured by the assets of the Company,
including a specific charge on the Tower Creek property.

Asset Retirement Obligation

The following table presents the reconciliation of the beginning and ending aggregate carrying amount
of the obligation associated with the retirement of oil and gas properties:

March 31 December 31

2007 2006

{000s) %) (%)
Balance, beginning of period 1,223 894
Liabilities incurred in period 12 273
Asset retirement costs incurred - (29)
Accretion expense 18 85
1,253 1,223

Less current portion 295 262
Balance, end of period 8958 961
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5. Asset Retirement Obligation (continued)

The undiscounted amount of cash flows, required over the estimated reserve life of the underlying
assets, to settle the obligation, adjusted for inflation is estimated at $3,016,000 (December 31, 2006 ~
$3,063,000). The obligation was calculated using a credit-adjusted risk free discount rate of 8% and an
inflation rate of 2%. It is expected that this obligation will be funded from the Company's general
resources at the time the costs are incurred with the majority of costs expected to occur between 2009

and 2015. No funds have been set aside 1o settle this obligation.

6. Share capital
(a) Authorized

The authorized share capital consists of an unlimited number of common shares without nominal or

par value.

(b) Issued and Qutstanding

Shares Amount
{000s) #) (%)
Balance, December 31, 2006 31,815 30,489
Issued on exercise of options Note 5/e)) 481 509
Transfer from contributed surplus . 375
Tax effect flow-through shares ' - {1,306)
Balance at March 31, 2007 32,396 30,067

(1) Caleulated at an effective rate of 31.10% on renounced expenditures.

{c) Per Share Amounts

The following table summarizes the calculation of basic net loss and diluted net loss per share for

the three months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006:

March 31, 2007 2006
{000s, except par share amounis} {$) (%}
Net loss available to common shareholders {320) (425)
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding — basic 32,135 29,769
Dilutive effect of stock options - 768
Weighted average number of common shares 32,135 30,537
outstanding — difuted
Net loss per share

Basic and diluted (0.01) (0.01)

(d) Flow-Through Share Information
March 31 December 31
2007 2008

(000s) {8} (8}
Remaining abligation, beginning of period 3,855 6,740
Amount of flow-through shares issued - 4,200
Expenditures incurred (991) (7,085)
Remaining obligation, end of period 2,864 3,855
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6. Share Capital (continued)

{e) Stock Options

The Option Plan aliows directors, employees and consultants o be granted incentive based
compensation under the Option Plan while allowing a rolling maximum of 10% of the number of
issugd and outstanding shares from time-to-time to be granted under the Option Plan. Options
may be granted under the Option Plan at an exercise price and vesling provisions as set by the
Board of Directors of the Company from time-to-time, subject to the limitations of any stock
exchange on which the common shares are listed.

As at March 31, 2007, the Company had the following stock options outstanding:

Cption Weighted

Price Average

Share Per Share Exercise

Options Range Price

{#000s) (%) (L]

QCutstanding, December 31, 2006 2,854 1.00-1.80 1.24
Granted 838 1.40 1.40
Exercised (481) 1.00-1.25 1.06
Expired (90) 1.25-1.65 1.49
Outstanding, March 31, 2007 3121 1.00-1.80 1.31

The following table summarizes information about the stock options outstanding at March 31, 2007:

Options Qutstanding Options Currently Exercisable
Weighted Weighted

Average Weighted Average Wheighted

Rermnaining Average Remaining Average

Share  Contractual Exercise Shares  Contractual Exercise

Option Price Options Lifa Price Oplions Life Price

{$) (#000s) {Years) (%) {#000s) {Years) (%)
March 31, 2007

1.00 10 4.1 1.00 10 4.1 1.00

1.05 970 33 1.05 970 3.3 1.05

1.15 150 3.6 1.15 150 36 1.15

1.25 497 4.3 1.25 327 38 1.25

1.40 838 6.0 1.40 280 5.0 1.40

1.65 642 4.8 1.65 450 4.4 1.65

1.68 4 5.5 1.68 1 4.5 1.68

1.80 10 5.2 1.80 3 4.2 1.80

3121 4.5 1.3 2,13 3.8 1.26

() Issued on Exercise of Options

During the first quarter of 2007, the Company issued 481,600 (2006 — 40,000) common shares at
$1.00 to $1.25 per share for cash on the exercise of options.
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7. Contributed Surplus

March 31 December 31

2007 2006

{000s) (%) (%)
Balance, beginning of period 2,448 1,790
Stock compensation costs 257 836
Transfer to share capital upon exercise of options {375) (178}
Balance, end of period 2,330 2,448

8. Stock Compensation

The total fair value of share options granted during the period was estimated at $257,000 (March 31,
2006 - $781,000) using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

March 31, 2007 2006
Dividend yield Nil Nil
Expected volatility (%) as 74
Risk free rate of return %) 4.5 45
Weighted average life (years) 6 5

9. Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions are in the normal course of operations and have been measured at the
agreed to exchange amounts, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the
related parties and which is similar to those negotiated with third parties. The Company had the
following related party transactions:

(a) The Company conducts oil and gas exploration and development activities and related transactions
with organizations rmanaged or controlled by directors. These transactions are negotiated and
conducted using standard industry agreements and terms.

(b) Included in general and administrative expenses are consulting fees of $87,000 (2006 — $61,000)
incurred with companies controlled by officers of the Company for the quarter ended March 31,
2007,

{¢) Included in general and administrative expenses are legal fees of $8,000 (2006 - $11,000} incurred
with a firm in which one of the Company's officers was a partner for the quarter ended March 31,
2007.

(d) Included in general and administrative expenses is $14,000 (2006 - $12,000) paid for directors'
fees to independent directors for the quarter ended March 31, 2007,
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10. Statement of Cash Flows

{a) Changes in non-cash working capital balances are comprised of the following:

March 31, 2007 2006
{000s) (%) (5}
Accounts receivable 1,310 (698)
Prepaid expenses and advances 38 12
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (357) 4219

991 3,533
Less amounts related to investing activities 135 3,574

Less amounts related to financing activities - -
856 {41)

(b) In the guarter ended March 31, 2007, the cash interest paid was $179,000 (March 31, 2006 —
$47,000).

11. Subsequent Event

On May 3, 2007 the Company closed the sale of its Stoughton/Viewfield property in Saskatchewan for
net proceeds of $8,100,000.
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GRAND BANKS ENERGY CORPORATION

For Immediate Release (“GBE” - TSX-V)

Grand Banks Announces Sale of Stoughton/Viewfield Qil Prope

Calgary, Alberta — May 1, 2007

Grand Banks Encrgy Corporation (the “Corporation” or “Grand Banks™) is pleased to announce that it has
closed the sale of its producing oil property in the Stoughton/Viewfield area of south east Saskatchewan. The
price received for the property was $8.5 million. The sale process was conducted with the assistance of Rundle
Energy Partners, who acted as exclusive agent.

The Stoughton/Viewfield property involved a large farm-in agreement with a major producer. The farm-in
deal was opcrated by Grand Banks with a 50% working interest, and to date 4 horizontal Bakken oil wells (2
net) had been successfully drilled on the lands, ¢arning 10 (5 net) sections from a total potential land base of
about 34 (17 net) sections. The 4 oil wells were producing a total of about 80 bopd (40 net to Grand Banks) at
the time of the sale.

Edward McFeely, President of Grand Banks, stated “The sale of the Stoughton/Viewfield property is the
successful culmination of a deal that we entered into in late 2005. We were able to add value by successfully
exploring the lands with the drilling and completion of 4 Bakken oil wells. We expect our profit on the
venture, net of capital expended, to be over $4 million, Although we think that there are many, many more
development locations to be drilled, we felt that the development of the area was better suited to a much larger
company, and funds from a sale could be used to fund development in areas where we think we can achieve
better capital efficiency.”

“We plan to drill 6 to 10 wells, mostly at a 100% working interest, by the end on the year on our lands in the
Torquay/Three Forks light oil play located at Sinclair Manitoba near the Manitoba Saskatchewan border.

Most of these wells are development wells and will be drilled horizontally. We also intend to spud, before the
end of June, the second exploration well at Tower Creek, which targets an over-pressured , high deliverability
Wabamun gas reservoir, at a depth of about 4,500 meters. We will pay 19.6% of the costs of this well to earn a
17.6% working interest. Qur corporate production exit target for the year end 2007 is 1,400 boe/d, and with
this sale now completed, we can reach that target using primarily cash flow and bank debt to fund our capital
expenditures. Our long term goal is to increase our production to the 4,000 to 5,000 boe/d level in three to four
years white prudently balancing debt and equity to optimize the growth in our value per share.”

Grand Banks currently has a revolving bank line of $10.5 million and after giving effect to the sale, expects to
have net debt (including working capital deficiency) of less than $3 million. In addition, Grand Banks has a
term facility of $1.13 million that is being used to fund our share of a dehydration plant that is being built to
process gas from the Grand Banks et al Tower Creek 2-21-55-27 W5M Leduc sour gas discovery. The
construction of a 12 mile tie-in to the well and the $12 million dehy are now over 90% completed, and we
expect to have the well on production by the end of June. With an anticipated gross raw production rate of 20
to 25 MMcf/d, Grand Banks 16.67% share of the well is expected to net us over 400 boe/d sales, bringing total
corporate production to about 1,100 boe/d.

Grand Banks is listed on the TSX-Venture Exchange under the Symbol GBE.

For further information Grand Banks Energy Corporation
please contact: 1600, 444 — 5™ Avenue S.W.
Calgary, Alberta T2P 2T8



Phone: (403) 262-8666
Fax:  (403) 262-8796

E.C. (Ted) McFeely

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

The TSX Venture Exchange does not accept responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy of this release.

END




